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About Us [ 52 & 1M

Minmetals Land Limited is a subsidiary and the Hong Kong-listed real estate flagship of China Minmetals Corporation.
It principally engages in real estate development and specialised construction businesses. Currently, its real estate
development business covers the Pan Bohai Rim, Yangtze River Delta, Central China and Pearl River Delta regions;
while the specialised construction business that based in Shanghai and Hong Kong has coverage over fifty cities in

the country.

IREFRERLABMTEIREELCANNMBLAARAEFHEXRENT B LMERE A HERRE
REXZEDRITLEEK B THRERBRAANFHLEBREZBERERAE R=A  FFRIK
ZASHE MEXREERANLEBRERERENL EOUEZEBEBA +EAHET -

 Contents B &%

Corporate Information

nEER

Financial Highlights

MEHE

2014 Event Highlights
—E-NFEARSHE

Honours and Awards

EREERIE

Five-Year Financial Summary
TEMBHE

Chairman's Statement

EFERE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE R R D

Corporate Governance Report
SEERBE

Directors' and Senior Management's Profile
HERSEEEBASHN
Report of the Directors

EEEWRE

Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZEMRE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEBmE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

FeBEnkHEMEARE R

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBEMRR R

Statement of Financial Position

B 7 iR OR &

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERERBEHE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERME

Glossary of Terms

AR

About China Minmetals Corporation

ERTEAREER AT



Corporate Information
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Yuanrong — Chairman

Mr. Tian Jingq HREEE
Mr. Liu Zeping 281 F % &
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BITESE

MelREt —BETRREFTALE
FRALt —BEFTEHEIAKE
A/ NBEEt — BEFRRNEKRE

Mr. He Jianbo — Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
Mr. Yin Liang — Senior Deputy Managing Director
Ms. He Xiaoli — Deputy Managing Director

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel

Mr. Selwyn Mar

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chung Wing Yee

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35th Floor, One Pacific Place,
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communication Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

China Construction Bank Co., Ltd.

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Wing Lung Bank Limited
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BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716,

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Canon’s Court,

22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
18th Floor, China Minmetals Tower,

79 Chatham Road South, Tsimshatsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel : 2613 6363

Fax : 2581 9823

Email : info@minmetalsland.com

WEBSITE

http://www.minmetalsland.com
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Financial Highlights
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REVENUE

(HK$"000) (F%&7T)
For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=T+—BILFE

5,983,634

BEEH
TOTAL ASSETS

(HK$'000) (F7&oT)

As at 31 December

T —RA=+—8H

33,175,633

iR

EEFE
NAV PER SHARE

(HKS) ()

As at 31 December
‘ A=+—H
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2014 Event Highlights

—E-NEXERE

March 3H

Mr. He Jianbo, Deputy Chairman &
Managing Director of Minmetals Land,
attended the 2014 Annual Guandian
Forum

1] 08 Bl X FE SR B AR S 12 R 2014
FHHFERE

2013 Annual Results Press Conference of
Minmetals Land

IBEERBIT20BFEXEEMS

Signing ceremony of Guangzhou Nansha
Project Investment

TEER2EEMEY RBEBAERE
HERN

Minmetals Land hosted the First Supplier
Conference

IEERBREEHRERAS

April 48

2014 Campus Recruitment of Minmetals
Land

AFEEFZR04FERBEHFEITIE

20148 RS

IAET RS STy

Ground breaking ceremony of Changsha
Kaifu Project

EYAEOLESWMBERRTEEEN
\"

CHMMRKAE S MEs

IBEERBERRQ

BEN

July 78

Training and continuous development
program of Minmetals Land

IEERENEFEERAE

August 8 H

Mr. He Jianbo, Deputy Chairman &
Managing Director of Minmetals Land,
attended the 2014 China Real Estate
Capital Forum

Mgl el EfFREEBEENF2014
FAHEES A RIBIED

W

Uhina el Estate Finae D

20141

October 10H

Acquisition of the land for Yan Shan Ju
Project in Nanjing

IBERECER=IUEEBMIR
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Honours and Awards

R EHLAE IR

REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT & it 7 % &

Minmetals Land ranked 69th on “Top 100 Real
Estate Companies of China 2013"

TRBRAI2013F EHEFES 1005
691

Minmetals Land ranked 16th on “Real Estate
Enterprises with Top Management Team 2013"
FRERBIN0BFEFEFMEE R EEKE
M E164L

Minmetals Land ranked 29th on “Top 30 Real Estate Listed e Nanjing regional company ranked 8th in the sales in
Companies of China 2013 (Estate G30)” Nanjing market

AEEHRAT203FEFRF i E Emh X308 00 EG30)] HREHAFRAIERTEHERAF8H

2901

e Academic Royale ranked 10th in the sales of single
Fortune Garden achieved the top sales in Beijing high-end project in Nanjing City 2014
property in the first six months of 2014 AR S AH04ETEmERYES0L

Gt ERMEE0UF EEF R R MERES 1A

e Sello Royale was honoured as the “Best Residential

e Minmetals International achieved the top sales in Tianjin Development in 2014 (East and Central China)”
Xiangluowan District 2014 NENESKBRNAFEFHERREH
FRARESAEE0UERETERREHESIE e xEEEEE]

e o §  SPECIALISED CONSTRUCTION Z ¥ & &£
;:anﬂu E Condo Shanghai & #01 L i§
e & e Awarded the “Bai Yu Lan Award” in respect of the curtain wall construction for China

SR BN EATRE IR

Mingyuan project

BERZEOERK

ROUFLBEFEESEHIEXE]

Condo Hong Kong Hi f1 & i

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT ¥ ¥ & &

6

China Minmetals Tower was awarded “Star Managed Property”

TREARAEREERERNER]

ONFEM Tower was awarded “Outstanding Industrial/Commercial Property
Management”

RITBEREREIBETIRANEER K]

Hallstatt See, to which Huizhou Gracehome provides property management service,
was awarded “Best Villa Award” and “Luxury Collection Property” by Golden Key
International Alliance
HEMNEEREDERGBZ LB -REESEcBALERBERR(RELR
HANEEE I RBEEEY S RE
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e "2014 Shanghai Curtain Wall Construction Enterprises”

e Awarded the “2013-2014 National Quality Engineering Award” in respect of the curtain
wall construction for Tianjin Health Industrial Park

RAAERFEXEEFENNEZTER T ERE013204FERRELE TR &)

e “2014 Best Business Partner” awarded by Gammon Construction Limited

BeMEEBERAAMENROAERESEBHE LK K]

Europe International Business School, Xinjiangwancheng project and Xijiaobandao

TRERIFSENREEETE MISHAMEGEARRERFEREERET

“HHW

B bty

Chibsa hinmetals Tower
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFMEHE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“¥-NE —_T-=F —T-——F _T——F _T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FET FET FHET FET
Results E 4
Revenue LON 5,983,634 5,905,854 4,306,454 5,329,279 1,658,811
Operating profit 1SR A 691,224 1,014,809 909,637 1,384,619 809,019
Finance income B U A 78,858 62,404 91,271 79,591 14,111
Finance costs ﬁﬁ%}ﬁ$ (65,845) (107,213)  (186,460) (31,119) (1,867)
Share of results of b (el /N
associated companies E 183,936 55,262 (28,008) (20,426) (2,936)
Profit before tax B 1% Bl A 888,173 1,025,262 786,440 1,412,665 818,327
Tax charge BIESH (452,244) (449,466)  (356,932)  (640,758)  (209,029)
Profit for the year KEE % F 435,929 575,796 429,508 771,907 609,298
Profit attributable to: BB R
Equity holders of the ZN/NET g
Company HEA 425,171 476,832 273,804 610,549 527,449
Non-controlling interests — FF 4% i% % 54 = 10,758 98,964 155,704 161,358 81,849
Assets and liabilities EEREBRE
Non-current assets IEmBEE 3,705,549 3,050,867 2,904,977 1,831,845 1,910,965
Current assets mB & E 29,470,084 26,358,005 14,610,837 15,202,634 13,618,883
Total assets B EMRE 33,175,633 29,408,872 17,515,814 17,034,479 15,529,848
Capital and reserves AR #EFREA
attributable to equity Rz EARK
holders of the Company & 8,002,783 7,737,531 7,005,111 6,505,651 5,924,311
Non-controlling interests  FE 4% i% B% B4 25 4,017,680 3,606,661 896,143 746,400 356,476
Total equity 12,020,463 11,344,192 7,901,254 7,252,051 6,280,787
Non-current liabilities EMEBAE 11,646,039 8,837,741 3,212,095 2,609,195 790,119
Current liabilities mEIAE 9,509,131 9,226,939 6,402,465 7,173,233 8,458,942
Total liabilities BEETE 21,155,170 18,064,680 9,614,560 9,782,428 9,249,061
Total equity and liabilities #£ 25 & B{EE%E 33,175,633 29,408,872 17,515,814 17,034,479 15,529,848
ARERERAT —TNEER |



Chairman’s Statement

ERHkE

Dear Shareholders,

The year of 2014 has been the toughest one in terms of operational
environment in recent years. In light of an extremely challenging
market condition, the Group’s financial results for 2014 remained
stable, revenue in our PRC real estate development operations
and specialised construction business in Hong Kong and the PRC
remained steady. Benefiting from higher rental rate and higher
occupancy rate, the Group achieved higher rental revenues in property
investment business in Hong Kong. Under the backdrop of continuing
policy measures and economic adjustments by the Chinese central
government, the Group recorded stable revenue in its recurrent
business whilst profit recorded a decline. Further explanations will be

provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2014, China’s economy entered into a “new normality” of
“improving structural composition with moderate growth”. Thereby,
the business environment under which the real estate industry
operates has also been affected. The Chinese central government
has adopted a “stabilising growth” policy amid such slowdown,
taking effective measures to revive reasonable housing demand and
resurrect housing consumption through monetary policy easing and
household residency registration (“Hukou”) reform. Not only did local
governments gradually lifted restraints previously implemented on
home sales and mortgage applications in a case-by-case and phased
manner, favourable support measures such as housing provident funds,
financial subsidies were also introduced to stimulate housing demand

and boost sale momentum in the second half of 2014.

The PRC real estate market has gradually restored through self-
adjusting mechanism as the administrative measures have been
weakened as a result of market oriented approach at both the central
and local government levels. Propelled by strong contract sales from
our real estate development projects in Beijing and Nanjing, the
Group’s 2014 total contracted sales rose 25% to RMB7,513 million,
equipping the Group with a solid foundation for future revenue
and earnings generation. In terms of land replenishment, the Group
has always adopted a conservative strategy of “deepen our existing
footprint and expand moderately”. During the year under review, the
Group added a new development project in Nanjing, with 79% of the
Group’s land bank by value situated in Tier 1 and core Tier 2 cities as
of the end of 2014.
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In 2014, 1.3%
to HK$5,983.6 million. However, as a result of progressive sales

the Group’s consolidated revenue increased by
promotional strategies and change in product mix of property sold and
delivered, gross margin was repressed and operating profit reduced
31.9% to HK$691.2 million. Including fair value gain on investment
properties, net profit attributable to equity holders of the Group
shrunk by 10.8% to HK$425.2 million, representing earnings per Share
of HK12.74 cents (2013: HK14.29 cents). The Board has proposed a
final dividend of HK1.5 cents per Share (2013: HK1.5 cents) for the

year of 2014.

Policy and Industry Outlook

Looking into 2015, as China’s economy develops within the framework
of “stabilising growth”, we anticipate most of the sector-favoured
policies to remain intact. We expect the fundamental of China real
estate sector to remain cautiously stable, whilst the market gradually
enters into a mild recovery. The sales volume rebound towards the end
of 2014 may be cyclical after consecutive months of decline since the
second quarter of 2014. We believe that the sector-favoured policies
currently in force or further potential loosening may lead to further
improvement in market sentiment, which helps to generate sales
momentum. However, having factored in the large quantity of available
stock in the market and purchasing power of urban residents, sales
recovery is expected to be led by Tier 1 cities, whilst Tier 2, 3 and
4 cities may see limited upside in the short run. In terms of housing
price, first-hand transaction prices stood firm in certain Tier 1 and

Zhang Yuanrong & Jt &
Chairman &

EZZT—NF AEEZHEERALIN3%ZE
5,983,600,000/8 7T + AR SHKMEE - LA REF
EAENEREAGELEREZTZET  BEE
FEZ B - L2557 831.9%%691,200,000
B BREREMEZAABREERN KR
JE {5 5% 5% F) B& {£10.8% £425,200,000% 7T © 17
ERERAEM2IABW(ZE — =% :14.29%
W) - ZEECEFRE T HFERHERETR
158U (ZF—=F :1.551L) -

BRRITERE

RE-_FT—H%F  ETBEEESEREEER]
MAREZRZT Bt KB BNREHEITE
BROBRBEEUNEE - RMABERN_-_FT—7n
FHREEMEAABRIGERFR BWEE
FRMEHK —T-NFFRERNH B
BERENE TEAREB-_FT-DRNFE_FE
AREBHANTIMREDSHRBHMED
B BMTRRE_ZT—AFLEERXLE ' =X
BE—TREATSHENTEY  RIIEZH
BEEEBAT - AXFIRMEAEFE RN
TABRBENSEIZREZZE  ARXOE T
—@EWmARE = = NOEWTmETREEL
RAOEBR - REBRKE BT HFEMN
KBy ——RAWTHEERDKEER - M
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Chairman’s Statement

FRHE

2 cities since the end of 2014. Sales resurgence in these cities may
infiltrate into surrounding areas, paving the way to a faster inventory
turnover rate and strengthened pricing on a nationwide level.

In addition, we also note an industry development trend in recent
years whereby sector players actively ventured into alternative business
models, with a particular focus on product specialisation, product
innovation, strategic alliance formation, mergers and acquisitions and
internet thinking. Driven by a new normality and an enlightened way
of thinking, it is imperative that further transformation and upgrade
in the industry business model will continue to take place.

From a funding perspective, since the loosening of mortgage restriction
by the central government in September 2014, liquidity started to
show signs of improvement. However, as the shift in monetary policy
only serves as a “targeted easing” measure, Chinese banks lending
remains weak under economy deceleration. We see a structural change
whereby a significant portion of Chinese nationals’ assets have been
diverted into the share market. Furthermore, as the borrowing rate
for personal housing loan remains high, purchasing power driven by
“rigid demand” has not been fully released. To summarise, in the mid
to long term, sector fundamental is closely aligned with economic
changes. Despite short-term recoveries and periodic fluctuations, the
industry has entered into a longer-term correction period. The crux of
the current housing deadlock lies with sluggish demand, and inventory
turnover improvement will continue to be the key theme within the
PRC real estate market.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Under the current market landscape with intensifying competition,
rising funding cost and surging land premium, the Group will strive
to develop a diverse growth model by incorporating joint venture
cooperation and mergers and acquisitions development strategy. We
will also seek divergence in other areas of development footpath to
expedite our business expansion and operating scale. In the area of
land replenishment, the Group will handle the ever-changing land
market with composure, taking into account the cash inflow from its
sales, and apply an investment strategy that is “moderately cautious,
focused on existing footprint, promotes strategic cooperation and
business innovations”. We will maintain a suitable scale of investment
and capture opportunities offered by market adjustments to replenish
our land bank and execute a prudent land policy. Leveraging on the
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committed support of the controlling Shareholder, we will focus on
buying the better located high quality sites situated in Tier 1 and 2
cities with high future sales growth potential. In terms of financial
management, the Group will continue to adhere to prudent financial
management, improve sales cash collection, and monitor its costs and
expenses stringently. Meanwhile, depending on the Group’s funding
needs, we will continue to explore new fundraising channels and utilise
its fundraising capability in the offshore financial market, to ensure
ample funding for its business development in the future.

CONCLUSION

| wish to express my sincere appreciation to the Shareholders and
business associates for their support and trust and our staff for
their dedication throughout the year. | would also like to express my
gratitude to my fellow Directors for their contributions. Minmetals
Land will continue uphold our core values of “Integrity, Innovation,
Practicality and Excellence” to serve and create value for our
Shareholders and stakeholders whilst contributing to the well-being
of our community. We aim to attain a harmonious outcome that
is mutually beneficial for the Group, the Shareholders, business
associates, staff members and the community.

Zhang Yuanrong
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESRETH

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s consolidated revenue for 2014 was HK$5,983.6 million,
representing an increase of 1.3% compared to HK$5,905.9 million of
last year. Real estate development segment recorded a revenue growth
of 2.3% to HK$4,844.8 million (2013: HK$4,734.7 million). Revenue
from specialised construction segment recorded a slight decrease of
3.5% to HK$1,071.3 million (2013: HK$1,109.7 million) whilst revenue
from property investment segment increased by 9.8% to HK$67.5
million (2013: HK$61.5 million).

Segment Revenue

¥ ¥ OE

REBR T —MFER RS WA R5,983,600,000
BT B & F [ 8§ #95,905,900,000/% JT E Ff
13% - EH EHEZRELE»HTIRNFAZ
U A F+2.3% £4,844,800,0008 T (=T — =
% :4,734,700,0008 T) - EERELKE D H 2
U A R %63.5% %1,071,300,00058 T (— T — =
£ :1,109,700,000/ L) - MERELE D B2
U A 3 419.8% £ 67,500,000 T (Z T — =4 :
61,500,000 7T) °

5B A

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2014 2013 Year-on-year
—E—ME —E—=F change
HK$ million HK$ million RERY
BHEET % BEABT % %
Real estate development [ E % & 4,844.8 81.0 4,734.7 80.2 2.3
Specialised construction EEE % 1,071.3 17.9 1,109.7 18.8 -3.5
Property investment MEXRE 67.5 1.1 61.5 1.0 9.8
Securities investment BEEE — — — — —
Total st 5,983.6 100.0 5,905.9 100.0 1.3
Segment Results SEBEELE
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HILEE

2014 2013 Year-on-year
—E—NE —E—=%F change
HK$ million HK$ million BREEE
BHEET % BEBT % %
Real estate development = ith & 3% & 587.8 66.5 979.5 81.9 -40.0
Specialised construction —EZE R 57.1 6.4 (22.4) (19 N/A ~@EH
Property investment WERE 217.4 24.6 2232 18.7 -2.6
Securities investment BERE 21.9 2.5 16.1 1.3 36.0
Total st 884.2 100.0 1,196.4 100.0 -26.1
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Due to the change in product mix of property sold and delivered,
overall gross profit margin declined from 24.4% to 20.5%. In
addition, selling and marketing expenses of the Group rose 56.3% to
HK$289.0 million (2013: HK$184.9 million), which was primarily due
to the increase in the number of projects launched and nationwide
promotional activities.

During the year under review, the Group implemented strict control
over operating expenses, resulting in a slight increase of administrative
expenses of 1.8% to HK$456.2 million (2013: HK$448.2 million).
Finance costs charged to profit or loss dropped 38.5% to HK$65.9
million (2013: HK$107.2 million), as a higher portion of interest
expenses was capitalised as properties under development in 2014.
Due to project completion and delivery of properties by an associated
company with profit recognition, share of results of associated
companies posted a significant increase of 232.5% to HK$183.9
million (2013: HK$55.3 million). Nonetheless, profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company slid 10.8% to HK$425.2 million from
HK$476.8 million of last year, representing a basic earnings per Share
of HK12.74 cents (2013: HK14.29 cents) for the year.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total assets rose 12.8% to
HK$33,175.6 million (2013: HK$29,408.9 million) whilst net assets rose
6.0% to HK$12,020.5 million (2013: HK$11,344.2 million). The financial
position of the Group remained healthy. The Group’s net gearing
ratio maintained at a relatively low level of 49.2% and its net current
assets rose 16.5% to HK$19,961.0 million (2013: HK$17,131.1 million).
Deferred revenue, which mainly represented contracted sales carried
forward and will be subsequently recognised as the Group’s revenue
when presold properties are completed and delivered to purchasers,
rose 90.6% to HK$3,858.0 million (2013: HK$2,023.8 million).

He Jianbo {3 &
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director Bl #ES @B KR

AEgFRERIMNEHEMEERNNNE K
EEBEE N RR24.4% WEE20.5% ° 4
HREHEENEHEEERZBEETSERE
EBNIEE  AEEZIHEREHEME EA56.3%
289,000,000/ JL (==& — =4 : 184,900,000/
JL) ©

REBEFRN  AEEREEHNEERY - THRH
815 BN IE R1.8% £ 456,200,000/ 7T (ZZ —
—4F : 448,200,000 7T) : AIRER-_Z—MF A
BERBAFIBZHAER A BAERIME
RNEBMRIE 7= BRI R8BI 75 A AR 2 38.5% 2
65,900,000/ 7T (ZZ—=% : 107,200,000 T ) °
HEtE A ARERNEESE I SN EEFE o
1 B & X ) 2 4R KR 18 . 232.5% 22183,900,000
BT (— & — =4 :55,300,000/8 JT) o &% it
RE - AARRESBABEENHBEFRRA L
476,800,000 7T 4°10.8% £ 425,200,0007 7T,
FRERAEFA1274BW(ZF—=F 1 14.297%
i) ©

R-EZE—NME+-_A=+—8 AEEZEE
48 %8 1% £12.8% £ 33,175,600,0008 T (— T — =
£F :29,408,900,000/87T) * EEFELF6.0%=
12,020,500,0007% Tt (=& —=4F : 11,344,200,000
BT AEENTBMRRDAERIEZR &
7 FaEREHEA9.2% 2 MEBEKE K
£ B 2 F 58 E E #HN16.5% £19,961,000,000
BT (ZZ — =4 :17,131,100,0003 JT) ° I& iT Uk
MEEAASBEAG 2FHNHEER  HREE
MEZRTRZINFTFTERERABEAEE ZHAN)
RERIE HN90.6% = 3,858,000,0008 7T (ZFE—=
£ 1 2,023,800,0007% 7T) °

EWMBERARAT —T—meEs® |13



Management Discussion and Analysis
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REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT

Contracted Sales*

In 2014, the Group’s total contracted sales rose 25.0% to RMB7,513
million (2013: RMB6,011 million) and the accumulated gross floor area
("GFA") sold amounted to 415,000 square metres (2013: 448,000
square metres) over 3,483 units (2013: 3,493 units). The average
selling price ("ASP”) rose 35.1% to approximately RMB18,100 per
square metre (2013: RMB13,400 per square metre) and the majority
of the contracted sales were derived from Tier 1 and 2 cities.

The table below provides an analysis of contracted sales by project
for years 2013 and 2014:

EXERER

EUHERE

RZE—WF  AEBEZHENEESAERLL £
F+25.0%%7,513,000,000TT A R (—F—=%:
6,011,000,000;t A B¥E) - RETEHIHELEEE
HE(BEAEE] B415000FFK(ZE—
=4 : 448,000 F 7 K) - E A5 E 83,4831 &
L (ZF—=%F :3,493fAEM) - FHEE([FH
EEB]) EA351%EF FHKE18,100T A R
—TTE-ZF:FFHKIBLA00TTARE) K&
EENOHEREIZERE—SR_GHT 2 EH
EXRIER -

TE-CZFR ST -MOF2ROHERKIAR
ElPaNz0Ps A*EEE&'IJZZDT

Year ended 31 December 2014 Year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-—NE+=-A=+—HILEE BHE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HLEE

Contracted Contracted

Contracted  Contracted

amount GFA ASP amount GFA ASP

HHeHE BEEEHE EHEE EHNeHE BEEEE FHEE

(RMB million) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.) (RMB million) (sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)

(AR¥% (BEH K (AR# (BFHK

Project IHH BEEX) (FEF5K) AR¥) BEIT) (A K) AR®)

Beijing Fortune Garden iy 2,810 57,355 48,994 2,276 46,897 48,532

Yingkou Platinum Bay EOREeH TS 151 21,873 6,887 202 27,492 7,328

Langfang Minmetals Vanke City BF 37 71 72 & RHi 282 41,048 6,871 — — —

Tianjin Minmetals International X % ff Bl 71 & 7 7% K B 98 8,712 11,248 231 19,428 11,900

Nanjing Laguna Bay AR R 7 e B E 80 6,652 12,039 105 7,945 13,272

Nanjing Riviera Royale AR T e 4T & 46 2,259 20,583 405 16,243 24,957

Nanjing Sello Royale FARAFENES 837 57,971 14,444 1,052 71,179 14,781

Nanjing Academic Royale ARAEE &M 2,442 101,703 24,008 — — —
Changsha LOHAS International & FifE 82 /8 B B it (&

Community 626 107,201 5,842 862 130,369 6,609
Changsha Scotland Town ROKEHE 31 536 5,770 550 95,824 5,741
Changsha Kaifu Project ’J\ﬁﬁE-/L l%tﬂ 40 3,097 12,947 — — —
Huizhou Hallstatt See BN TR « 18 e 38 455 70 6,676 10,507 328 32,234 10,159
Total st 7,513 415,083 18,100 6,011 447,611 13,429

Note: * “Contracted Sales” refers to sales contracts entered into between the Group and &t :* [FAEEEIRAEEEERREEF MM BLEE
purchasers pursuant to the Administrative Measures on the Sales of Commodity AT —FANHE R & EAfzz—ix\ﬁ -
Buildings promulgated by MOHURD on 4 April 2001 and implemented on 1 HEMmM - EmEHEEBMEMBIZHE
June 2001. Sale of commodity buildings included both pre-completion sales AmEHERREEERERIRZEHE -

(pre-sale) and post-completion sales.
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Project Profiles IH H#i5

Attributable GFA held
interest to the Estimated GFA GFA under for future
Group Site Area GFA  completed development development
*5E 4 B#%T BRY REAEBERZ
Fiib i WBEEE CEEEE CHEEE 2 HEEEHE EEEERE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
Location/Project 25/ IEE (EHXK) (EHK) (ERXK) (EFHXK) CEFHK)
Pan Bohai Rim RHSHE
1. Beijing Fortune Garden bR a0 B 51.00% 139,000 416,000 150,000 139,000 127,000
2. Yingkou Platinum Bay EORTEeHEE 100.00% 396,000 517,000 103,000 44,000 370,000
3. Langfang Minmetals Vanke City BB 4 7 & BHAL 50.00% 395,000 622,000 — 202,000 420,000
4. Tianjin Minmetals International REFEABREEAE 100.00% 21,000 183,000 183,000 — —
Yangtze River Delta REAKE
5. Nanjing Laguna Bay FRRHeiilE 71.00% 310,000 310,000 310,000 — —
6. Nanjing Riviera Royale HARARHTIEH 98.88% 73,000 222,000 222,000 — —
7. Nanjing Sello Royale ARAENER 100.00% 179,000 270,000 236,000 34,000 —
8. Nanjing Academic Royale FARABeENEH 66.67% 136,000 465,000 — 327,000 138,000
9. Nanjing Yan Shan Ju* AREILE* 100.00% 91,000 197,000 — — 197,000
Central China EhihE
10.  Changsha LOHAS International RYAReEEBRR
Community i 100.00% 643,000 1,084,000 744,000 194,000 146,000
1. Changsha Scotland Town RHBE /R 100.00% 333,000 440,000 440,000 — —
12, Changsha Kaifu Project Y ABOGLE LB 100.00% 150,000 520,000 — 128,000 392,000
Pearl River Delta KEAE
13. Huizhou Hallstatt See BB o 15 e 3 45 80.00% 984,000 1,154,000 115,000 132,000 907,000

Note: * new project acquired in 2014

M R-Z-WEBAZIEAR
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Beijing Fortune Garden

Fortune Garden is a residential development project located at
Xibeiwang Town, Haidian District, Beijing. The development occupies
an aggregate site area of approximately 139,000 square metres and
has an aggregate planned GFA of approximately 416,000 square
metres.
Award”
recognition of its outstanding landscape design. The project will
be developed in two phases. Development of Phase | commenced

In December 2012, the project received the “International
by the British Association of Landscape Industries in

in October 2011 and has been partially completed and delivered.
Construction of Phase Il commenced in June 2013, pre-sale was
launched in July 2013 and is scheduled to complete by the end of
2016. In 2014, the contracted GFA sold was around 57,355 square
metres.

Location

3 2

Usage

A&

Site area

3 A% T A5

Gross floor area
RIEEEE

Group's interest

N B PTG R AR
Expected construction completion date
TREAEE T2 A B H
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tRwE

ka@lﬁu NMEFUEE B LR 2 FE
RIER - BB EIEL2139,000F 5K 2R
%M%@%Ew\ﬂﬁmmoo%ﬁ“ E-_ET—C
F+ZA ZEEBHEMNSBRTER IIM
EMpeEEBEEE] - ZEEYWERE
—HEER-_TE——F+AHAB ,\qﬂaﬁfﬁ%
EEERK WERNER  F_HERKN_F—
—FRXAHIT - AFEAHETEE H BiRZ
T-RNFFEAMZEXNAE RZZT—NHFR
ZIEBELNBREMEEL B57,355FFK »

Xibeiwang Town, Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC
B 4k B E [ 78 L AT SR

Residential

=

Approximately 139,000 square metres
#)139,000F 75 K

Approximately 416,000 square metres
#9416,000F 77 2K

51%

4Q 2016



Yingkou Platinum Bay

Platinum Bay is a residential development project that comprises villas
and apartments. It is located at Liaoning (Yingkou) Coastal Industrial
Base, Yingkou City, Liaoning Province. The project occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 396,000 square metres and has
an aggregate planned GFA of approximately 517,000 square metres.
The project will be developed over six phases. Development of Phases
I and Il was completed in December 2012. Construction of Phase IlI
commenced in March 2014, pre-sale was launched in June 2014 and
is expected to deliver at the end of 2015. The remaining three phases
are currently under planning. In 2014, the contracted GFA sold was
around 21,873 square metres.

Location

i B

Usage

A&

Site area

3 A% T A&

Gross floor area
RIEEMEE

Group's interest

N PTG R AR
Expected construction completion date
TRHAEE T2 A E

BOAtE-$HEE

AR HBERBERERAEEMN 2 FEER
HE MAREELEOMES (RO EESE
Hih - BB EIEL A396,000F 5K - ERE
ABIBTE MM 4 A517,000F 5K » 2B H AN H
ME: E—HREFE-BHER_T—=-F+-A%
T:F=—HEINT—NF=AFT BAFAX
ARMAEE  BiARZZE—AFFEXIMN:HT
“HIEAMEEREBER RZT—HFRN - Z
BEENREEEELNA21,873F 5K -

Liaoning (Yingkou) Coastal Industrial Base, Yingkou City,
Liaoning Province, the PRC

TREEREOMEERE O ABEXEN
Residential

F=

Approximately 396,000 square metres
#)396,000F 75 K

Approximately 517,000 square metres
#)517,000F 75 K

100%

Phase Il in 4Q 2015
F-H — T —RFENF
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Langfang Minmetals Vanke City

Minmetals Vanke City is a residential development project located in
Xianghe County, Langfang City, Hebei Province. The project occupies
an aggregate site area of approximately 395,000 square metres and
has an aggregate planned GFA of approximately 622,000 square
metres. Construction of the project commenced in October 2014 and
pre-sale was launched in December 2014. In 2014, the contracted GFA
sold was around 41,048 square metres.

Location

i B

Usage

B &

Site area

3 A% T AR

Gross floor area
RIEEMEE

Group's interest

N5 B P 4G R AR
Expected construction completion date
TRHAEE T2 A B &

Tianjin Minmetals International

Minmetals International is a completed mixed commercial and
residential development project located at the east of Yingbin Main
Road and the south of Tuochang Road, Tanggu District, Tianjin. The
project is comprised of office space, apartments and retail stores as
well as car-parking spaces. The project occupies an aggregate site area
of approximately 21,000 square metres and has an aggregate GFA
of approximately 183,000 square metres. So far, 75% of the gross
saleable floor area including car-parking lots was sold. In 2014, the
contracted GFA sold was around 8,712 square metres.

BB 5 At B Bl
hESERBAUNITILEBY ME NG ZEE
BHRIEAE - BHEAEELA395000F K B
RE RIS E M4 A622,000°F 5 K - 2 EE
R-ZB—ME+AHIT AE+-_AEREE -
RZZE—NFAN - ZBEEENVEEEARREBENA
41,048 75 K °

Jingxintun Town, Xianghe County, Langfang City,
Hebei Province, the PRC

Hh [ AT b & BB Uy T & A 55 % < R A

Residential

=

Approximately 395,000 square metres
#)395,000F 75 K

Approximately 622,000 square metres
#1622,000°F 75 K

50%

2016

—E—REF
XETERARERBXE

FEAEEBSAEARESRAEZ - A8 BHK
FESBZERTHEMBARRER  URKE
EHENE NEBEARREISENRE  BHEE
FE#)521,000F 52K + 4242 M @ & %) 4183,000
FEFHKe2S  ZEEEDEHIS%ENEER
HEE(BIEEM)  R-T—MNFER - ZHEARL
WIEMEELY A8, 712F K -

Location At the east of Yingbin Main Road and the south of Tuochang Road,

3 2 Tanggu District, Tianjin, the PRC
REIREMEEEDE NBE AR RFESENRE

Usage Commercial and residential

& FEREE

Site area Approximately 21,000 square metres

A8 TH 15 #)21,000°F 75 2K

Gross floor area Approximately 183,000 square metres

#8012 H H A #7183,000°F 75 2K

Group's interest 100%

NE B PTG

Construction completion date 2011

BETRTKA R —ET——%F
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Nanjing Laguna Bay

Laguna Bay is a completed project located at the junction of Xue
Si Road and Xue Qi Road, Science Park, Jiangning District, Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province. Having developed this residential development
project over three phases, it is comprised of terrace houses, high-rise
apartments, low-rise villas together with a three-storey commercial
building. The project occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
310,000 square metres including the lake area and has an aggregate
GFA of approximately 310,000 square metres. It features two lakes and
an open green space at the centre of the development, supplemented
with neighbouring land totaling 20 acres reserved for education
purposes and other ancillary facilities. So far, 99.4% of the gross
saleable floor area including car-parking lots was sold. It is noteworthy
that this project has successfully established a high benchmark in
Nanjing and the Group has gained considerable market recognition in
the region. In 2014, the contracted GFA sold was around 6,652 square
metres.

R R 75 - BE

R7GBEMNEMNIHAT R IERNEERSR
MEEELEIA  B—HACRINEETER
HE RE-HNFAZEEREEBHNE &
BRAE BUNEN-—B-ESEEARE - Z%
TBRAREE (B HAHETE) 4 %310,000F

oK - 48T 1S 40 A310,000F K - HE
LB A MR AE A K B ARt o B AF20 K X 1

HEXRBREMEERMAL - ZHEBES

EH04% BRI ERMMEE(BIEEN) - %EE
RERWEXNE LEEEEIRE MR -
FAEETEEHNMBESEIZEZE KT —
WFEA - ZEBEFNBEAEELNRG6,652FH

Location At the junction of Xue Si Road and Xue Qi Road, Science Park,

i Bh Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
RETHEERIEEN Z2ESBMBKES KR

Usage Residential

A& =

Site area Approximately 310,000 square metres

i #2 TH A5 #7310,000F 75 2K

Gross floor area Approximately 310,000 square metres

#812 H H E #7310,000F 75 2K

Group's interest 71%

ANE B PTG R

Construction completion date 2013

BETIETKEH —E—=F
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Nanjing Riviera Royale

Riviera Royale is a completed residential development project comprises
villas, apartments and LOFT units aiming at the high-end market. The
project is located at Mengdu Avenue, Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province. It has ancillary facilities including a central park and a club
house of approximately 12,000 square metres and approximately
2,000 square metres respectively. It occupies an aggregate site area
of approximately 73,000 square metres and has an aggregate GFA
of approximately 222,000 square metres. So far, 99% of the gross
saleable floor area including car-parking lots was sold. In 2014, the
contracted GFA sold was around 2,259 square metres.

ARAR-EI2E
hige I WM ABREHE A8 RLOFTEN
MERTIFEEEE UemmEEPAHEY
S NRIHEEREBRESHAYT BEXR
BB HE £912,000°F 75K R R 2 E 2 £92,000°F 75
KEGFT - B BEFEH HB73,0005F 5K @ 424E
E A4 5222,000°F 75K » 25 B& H99% 4
AEBERAEEFEEM) R_T—NFR
ZEBHEYVREMBMELNA2,259F FK o

Location : No. 188 Mengdu Avenue, Jianye District, Nanjing,
i B Jiangsu Province, the PRC
REIHREAERERRSHBAE —B/N\T/\R
Usage . Residential
A& F=
Site area . Approximately 73,000 square metres
I A% [ 18 #173,000F 75 K
- |
Gross floor area . Approximately 222,000 square metres
REEEE #9222,000F 75 K
Group's interest : 98.88%
ANER B P 4G M &
Construction completion date : 2012
EETRETKHEH —E—=F
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Nanjing Sello Royale

Sello Royale is a residential development project located at the south
of Hongjing Road, Science Park, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately 179,000
square metres and has an aggregate planned GFA of approximately
270,000 square metres. The project is planned for development of
villas and low-rise apartments. Construction of the project commenced
in April 2012 and pre-sale of the project was launched in December
2012. Development of residential portion was expected to complete
and be ready for delivery by the end of 2015. The project was awarded
the title of “Best Residential Development in 2014 (East & Central
China)” at the First China Property Awards held by Ensign Media.
Majority of the development works of this project have completed.
So far, 77% of the gross saleable floor area including car-parking lots
was sold. In 2014, the contracted GFA sold was around 57,971 square

metres.

ARARE-NESR

AENEAUN TIHAM A/ IEREE2FSA
SRELAFE - BB EEL A179,000F 75K -
EREREmMMEELA270,000F 5K » 1R E %
RAREHRERZERAE NZT—Z_FWMA
BT AFTZAETES  BiARZZ—1F
ETKEEIEMN®RIHER - % HEE M Ensign
Media & ## 2 % — fE China Property Awards# &
RROUVFEFRBHERRERME KEETEIE
Bl - ZBEEMHBIRBEEARR  £5CEH
T7% @B EREERE (BIEEM) c RZE—N4F
N ZIBBRENBEEEMMELNRS7971TFHK -

Location At the south of Hongjing Road, Science Park, Jiangning District,

i B Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
HEIHEE R IEENBELRKNENAE

Usage Residential

& =

Site area Approximately 179,000 square metres

I A2 T A5 #7179,0007F 75 2K

Gross floor area Approximately 270,000 square metres

RIEEEE #9270,000F 75 K

Group's interest 100%

REE 5 #EE

Construction completion date 2014

BETRETKAH —E-F
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Nanjing Academic Royale

Academic Royale is a residential development project located at Tian
He Road, southern part of Hexi, Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province, approximately 5 kilometres from the Nanjing Olympic Sports
Centre, the main stadium for the Nanjing 2014 Summer Youth Olympic
Games. The site is located within the Nanjing Hexi New City Zone,
a district of key future development with a construction plan of
becoming comfortable living Eco-City. The project will be developed
into a high-quality residential community with low density. It occupies
an aggregate site area of approximately 136,000 square metres and
has an aggregate planned GFA of approximately 465,000 square
metres. The project will be developed over four phases. Development
of Phase | commenced in the third quarter of 2013 which is expected
to complete in the third quarter of 2015. Pre-sale of Phase | was
launched in April 2014 and market response has been very positive.
Development of Phase Il commenced in the first quarter of 2014
and is expected to complete at the beginning of 2016. Pre-sale of
Phase Il was launched in the third quarter of 2014. Development of
Phase Il commenced in January 2015 and is scheduled to complete at
the end of 2016. Pre-sale of Phase Ill will be launched in July 2015.
Development of Phase IV is currently under planning. In 2014, the
contracted GFA sold was around 101,703 square metres.

Location

I B

Usage

A&

Site area

i 48 H 18

Gross floor area

#12 E H 1E

Group's interest

AR B P A5 g

Expected construction completion date

EREE TR K E A
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ARAR-ENEH

SN e W ABNRNIHEAERERE A
EHRAIE2EERHEEE  E#EER T —
WFEFEFTREBGTHE — BMREMKLTE
ERLHARNE - ZM B ATE KON AT
EERIAFREOREERN  REERAE
FREEEHNIM - ZEELMETELY A136,000F
Tk BREBEMMEEL A465,000F 75K -
EBERARKEESHMMEER - ZBEEH W
E: FE—HEER_ZT—=F5=FHK N
ZE-NFHAETEE  MHERERR - E
AR —hFE="FRT F_HEREN_F
—NEE-—ZTHL R NFEFE==FEH
BE  HHR-ZE - "FYEL: F-HERD
R-Z—hFE—AHT BHR -_ZT—AFE+LA
ETEE  ZE—ANFRRI: FEBERBEA
THBEER R-_ZT—MER  ZEBEL
MIZTEMEL A101,703F K o

At Tian He Road, southern part of Hexi,

Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
BT B A R R R #0 m O] 7E  EB OROA B
Residential

F=

Approximately 136,000 square metres
#7136,000°F 75 K

Approximately 465,000 square metres
#)465,000%F 75 2K

66.67%

Phase | in 3Q 2015

F—H — T -—RHFFE=F
Phase Il in 1Q 2016
FH — T -—RNFEFE—F
Phase Il in 4Q 2016
F-H — T —RNFENZF



Nanjing Yan Shan Ju

The site was acquired from the Bureau of Nanjing Land Resources
in October 2014 at a consideration of approximately RMB2.0 billion.
At the Southeast of Zijin Mountains in Nanjing Xuanwu District, the
site is located at the established prime residential area of the district
where land supply is limited. There are well developed transportation
facilities and the site is in close proximity to the Ninghang Expressway
and Subway Line 2. Well equipped with a wide range of facilities,
the site enjoys excellent surrounding environment and neighbours a
number of educational and research institutions. According to the
construction plan, the site will be developed into a high-end low-
density residential community comprising low-rise apartments for first
time buyers and upgraders from the local district and Nanjing City.
The aggregate site area is approximately 91,000 square metres and the
maximum GFA is approximately 197,000 square metres. The project
will be developed over two phases. Construction of Phase | is expected
to commence in the second quarter of 2015, pre-sale is expected to
launch in September 2015 and construction is scheduled to complete
in the third quarter of 2016. Construction of Phase Il is expected to
commence in the third quarter of 2015 and pre-sale will be launched
in the third quarter of 2016.

Location

B

Usage
A&

Site area

A% A

Gross floor area
IR TH E S
Group'’s interest

7N 55 [ P 4 #E 28

Expected construction completion date
TEBREE S T2 58 K A Bf

AHREWE
AREEBR-ZE-—METAU0EBTARE RS
RHELERBEAZMI - IR RE R
EmamEEEnz EBEESLBREA - B
Al RZ (@ Db FE N % o BRI 28 2 BS54 2
SiAR o ZEAXRBEN FERERI  BEE
EECHEMBARBES - BIBEEERE
BiTERAEmERE  aEFERE  BERE
ﬁ%%@&ﬁﬁﬁ%éﬁxéﬁzﬁoam

Em,mﬁmoomFﬁf SAEEEEELD
197,000 75 K - m%%% F—HIBRE
R-ZZ—RFF EI'WﬂinﬁLﬁﬁ
g R-TZT— /\E% ZHTF Hﬂ%*@%ﬁiﬁ'l’
RIE—RFE=FHT N _FT—RFFE=
ERBEE

At Zhong Ling Jie, Xuan Wu District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC

PEIHERRAZE REEY

Residential

=

Approximately 91,000 square metres

#991,000%F 75 K

Approximately 197,000 square metres
#9197,000F 75 K

100%

2Q 2017
—tEE=F
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Changsha LOHAS International Community
LOHAS large-scale
development project with ancillary facilities, such as clubhouse, shops,

International Community is a residential
car-parking lots, schools and landscaped garden. Located at Gaoyun
Road, Muyun Town, Changsha County, Hunan Province, the project
occupies an aggregate site area of approximately 643,000 square
metres, including a private lake of 30,000 square metres, and has an
aggregate planned GFA of approximately 1,084,000 square metres.
The project will be developed over five phases. Development of Phase
| was completed in December 2010. Development of Phases Il and Il
was completed in August 2013. Development of Phase IV commenced
in March 2013 and was completed at the end of 2014. Development
of Part | of Phase V commenced in December 2013 and is scheduled
to complete in the fourth quarter of 2015. Development of Part Il of
Phase V is currently under planning. So far, 54% of the gross saleable
floor area including car-parking lots was sold. In 2014, the contracted

GFA sold was around 107,201 square metres.

ROVAGR-REEBERHE

TR ERBHREARITEERIER  #F
R EH B BEREBSTEESZEL
ERE URNHEEARSPZEZESER &
AR 1B 47 /5643,000F 52K (B23530,000F ;5 2K
FLAMR) - B EI 2 E E &4 A1,084,000
FHK - ZHEESAHAE  E—HER=ZZ
—EFEF AR T E_HRE-HHERZZE—
=FNART FNHERAR-_TE—=F=A%
T BERZZ-—NFEET: FRAH-EERR
—E—ZF+-AHT HER T —RFEN
FRT BERP_RBAELAREIEE - 25 -
EEHS4% R ERMERE(BEBMN) - RZT
—UFERN - ZIEEFLBETR A ELA107,201

Location At Gaoyun Road, Muyun Town, Changsha County,

i B Hunan Province, the PRC
HEREERSGETES ERK

Usage Residential

A& =

Site area Approximately 643,000 square metres

8 [ F8 #1643,000F 75 2K

Gross floor area Approximately 1,084,000 square metres

BEmMEE 491,084,000 75 K

Group's interest 100%

ANEE B PTG R

Expected construction completion date Part | of Phase V in 4Q 2015

TEHREETRETKHEH FhH—= T -RFEENF
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Changsha Scotland Town

RPHEE/NNE

Scotland Town is a completed residential development project located BE/NBEANNPHEEED ZEZHEER KL
at Yuntang Village and Yuetang Village, Muyun Town, Changsha A#NZD®IEERRIER @ B4 TIE« 88 &
County, Hunan Province, and is adjacent to LOHAS International EIBR#t[E + 4230 B2 & 49 4333,000°F 5K » 42
Community. The project occupies an aggregate site area of IEMEEELA440,000F 5K - ZEHE—HK
approximately 333,000 square metres and has an aggregate GFA of FE-_HH R _TE——FNARZT—=F+
approximately 440,000 square metres. Development of Phases | and Il  — B T - 245 B & H96% 42 7] £ 1€/ M 15 (&
reached completion in August 2011 and November 2013 respectively. 3EHEf)c R=ZZT—WFAN - ZEHBEEOEEE
So far, 96% of the gross saleable floor area including car-parking lots [ & #) &536°F 5 K o

was sold. In 2014, the contracted GFA sold was around 536 square

metres.

Location

I B

Usage

A#

Site area
4% T AR
Gross floor area
BIEEEE

Group's interest

A5 B P A R an

Construction completion date

HETIE K BH

At Yuntang Village and Yuetang Village, Muyun Town,
Changsha County, Hunan Province, the PRC
RENEERSP B EEEEEN R AEN
Residential

T=x

Approximately 333,000 square metres
#1333,000°F 75 K

Approximately 440,000 square metres
#7440,000F 753K

100%

2013
—T—=F
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Changsha Kaifu Project

Kaifu Project is a residential development project located at Fu Yuan
West Road, Kaifu District, Changsha County, Hunan Province. It is
located at a comfortable living Eco-City zone under planning, with
close proximity to the Kaifu District Administration Centre. The project
occupies an aggregate site area of approximately 150,000 square
metres and has an aggregate planned GFA of approximately 520,000
square metres, of which approximately 331,000 square metres is
designated for residential purpose, approximately 113,000 square
metres for commercial purpose, approximately 5,000 square metres
for public ancillary facility purpose, and approximately 71,000 square
metres for car-parking and civil air defense purpose. According to
the development plan, the residential portion will be turned into a
residential community for first time buyers and upgraders, whilst the
commercial portion will be positioned as a 5A graded office building.
The project will be developed over three phases. Development of
phase | commenced in September 2014 and is expected to complete
in the fourth quarter of 2016, in which development of the villas is
scheduled to complete by December 2015, and development of the
high-rise units is scheduled to complete by December 2016. In 2014,
the contracted GFA sold was around 3,097 square metres.

Location

I B

Usage
Az

Site area

3 4% [ &

Gross floor area
418 TH E 18
Group's interest
ANER B PTG R

Expected construction completion date
TR E TR KA A
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hEOCEEMANRNEEARPERERSE
TABCZEERREEE UEBRNERTNE
EREER BAREETERBERD - BHA
M4 A150,000F 5K - DS BRIEEEELD
7%520,000°F 752K - A A F £ ¥ 5 £7331,000°F
K EmEBHHNZ,000F 5K BERAEY
5,000 F 752K - {2835 Rk AB k5 471,000F 75
Ko RBZMMEERE  ZEENEELS
BREANEE BREFAEMNSHEEZAE=E
B EEBHANTMAALETTE - ZBEEH
“HHE  F-HERAN-_ZE—NFNLAFEE
EEHRZE-—A"FFEOERT - EhBHERE
AEINZE—RFTA%RT meEBEAMAE
ERZZTE—RFT+ARERET - RZF—HF
AN ZEBRNEEEEELNA3097F K -

Fu Yuan West Road, Kaifu District,
Changsha County, Hunan Province, the PRC
H B R R D 5 R AR R AR T B
Residential and commercial

(BRSPS R 3

Approximately 150,000 square metres
#9150,000°F 75 2K

Approximately 520,000 square metres
#3520,000F 75 K

100%

Phase 1 in 4Q 2016
F—H — —_FT—XFENF



Huizhou Hallstatt See

Hallstatt See is a large-scale residential development project located
in Boluo County, Huizhou City, Guangdong Province and is in close
proximity to many amenities including golf course. Surrounded by hills
and a 20-acre lake, the project occupies an aggregate site area of
approximately 984,000 square metres and has an aggregate planned
GFA of approximately 1,154,000 square metres. The project was given
an award for its innovative cultural and resort real estate model in
the 10th Annual Real Estate Billboard event hosted by the China
Commercial Real Estate Commission. The project will be developed
over seven phases. Development of Phase | and part of Phase Il was
completed and delivered in 2013 and 2014 respectively. The remaining
part of Phase Il and Phase Ill are currently under construction. The
entire project is scheduled to complete by the end of 2019. In 2014,
the contracted GFA sold was around 6,676 square metres.

B B 1R 15 b 1B 4
FReMEERANNREREAEMNTERZZ
ABEFEREEE  HORZURBKRIKESE
CRIZERME WAL N 0EB ZHARE &
58 T 78 49 A984,000F 5Kk - BREIAEM
M4 /1,154,000 F 5K - ZIBEREZEITH
HEWERSRP I F+TEHNEREE LER
[ XAt B R e S R ERBIFT A8 ] - Z1BE
HAO+HER: - F—HRE_HBHITED
ERZE—=FRZZE—NEFEREZN =
RS T O E - EEEHR IR
BEBEBHR-_Z—AFEATK R=-F
—FERN - ZBEEFNEEEMELA6,6767F
FK o

Location Mai Tian Ling, Boluo County, Huizhou City,

I B Guangdong Province, the PRC
PEEREEMNTIEESZERSE

Usage Residential

A& T=

Site area Approximately 984,000 square metres

i A2 T 75 #)984,000F A K

Gross floor area Approximately 1,154,000 square metres

#8128 TH H & #)1,154,000F 75 K

Group's interest 80%

N6 B PTG R

Construction completion date 4Q 2019

BETHRTKEH —E-NFENE
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Land Bank

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a land bank developable in
GFA of approximately 4.3 million square metres across 13 real estate
development projects in 7 cities located in mainland China, including
Beijing, Yingkou, Langfang, Tianjin, Nanjing, Changsha and Huizhou.

Newly Acquired Land Reserves

In light of market uncertainty in 2014, the Group has adopted a
conservative land replenishment strategy of “deepen our existing
footprint and expand moderately”. As a result, the Group has only
added a new real estate development project in Nanjing and the
developable GFA of land bank increased by approximately 197,000
square metres.

T i

RZT—NMF+ZA=+—H0 AEEET+=
BEMEZEREBEMNIER - &0 - B -
XZ BR RPREMNSELtEBRAKRT &
AT 8 - Mo R A R AE TE E 5 4V /2 4,300,000F

e Lk e
ERFRTTES DT ERA A& B EEN
THREERTE O RIRTIERAM  BEERRE]
MEERE AT NETERME—EE
B LR AT R EETE SR
197,000 /53K o

Site Area  Total GFA®@ Total Cost Average Land Cost
WREEHE SEEEE? BRE EH R E
City Project Name™ Property Type (sq.m) (sq.m) (RMB million) (RMB per sq.m)
W IEH&REO iR EE (FFHXK) (FFXK) (AREBEEBR) BFEFRARER
Nanjing  Yan Shan Ju Residential 91,000 197,000 2,000 10,150
R 2 /E T=
(1) Project name is subject to change. (1) EEAWREENR -

(2) Total GFA for the entire project includes GFA pending the grant of land use rights.
GFA includes saleable and non-saleable GFA. Saleable GFA represents the GFA
of a property which we intend to sell. Non-saleable GFA represents the GFA of
a property that is not for sale and largely includes ancillary facilities.

(3) Figures are based on internal records and estimates.

SPECIALISED CONSTRUCTION

The Group is engaged in the business of specialised construction
mainly encompassing the services of design, production and
installation of curtain walls system via two wholly-owned subsidiaries,
namely Condo Shanghai for the PRC market and Condo Hong Kong for
the Hong Kong market. In 2014, revenue derived from this operating
segment showed a slight decline of 3.5% and its operating results,
net of intra-group transactions, showed an operating profit of HK$57.1

million (2013: operating loss of HK$22.4 million).
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In 2014, Condo Shanghai implemented stringent management on
financial and cashflow. Through systemic project review, Condo
Shanghai achieved positive operating cashflow and lowered financial
risks. Condo Hong Kong recorded significant revenue growth and
successfully won the tender of a new project with a contract value
exceeding HK$300 million. In addition, gross profit margin in year
2014 has returned to the anticipated level, resulting in an increase in

operating profit.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group’s investment property portfolio in Hong Kong comprises
two commercial office buildings, namely China Minmetals Tower
“LKF 29") in
Central, and four residential units, all of which are located on Hong
In 2014,
revenue from this operating segment rose 9.8% to HK$67.5 million
(2013: HK$61.5 million). As at 31 December 2014, the occupancy rate
of ONFEM Tower was 95.9% (2013: 80.9%) while China Minmetals

Tower remained 100% occupied (2013: 100%).

in Tsimshatsui and ONFEM Tower (to be renamed as

Kong Island with a total GFA of 15,826 square metres.

R-T— El¢ SR NS Sl B 9 &5 e g 4

BIEEE  BAYEBEAETEEME L% EE
enBRE&ER  BERRBREURE - mNES
FH G FREXERGSINBRIRT ARFAH
B-—HB=EBITZHITRER - ko HmM
BERER-_ZE-—HNFHNENXEEEZFEHKE -

MAZ2HRIER -

MERSE

REBRBEBZREMELAGBRELNRDHE
LHERABRERFR IR SEEREGE
HAIKF 29] ) MIMERg 2 KB + DA R U B iz A 78

BZEEMF  LEBEEESH15826F 5K o
REZF—F ZEEDH WAL RIBHE

67,500,000 7T (== — =4 : 61,500,000/8 L) °
%:%—@¢+*ﬂ:+—avﬁﬁﬁéﬁg
2T EI59% (ZF—=%F :80.9%) * M+ E
REARES L EEAERER00% (ZT—=F:
100%) °

China Minmetals Tower

No. 79 Chatham Road South, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BERNERDERBER L TN

ONFEM Tower (to be renamed as

BEAEEKEHERAILKF 29))

No. 29 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong
EEPREME TR

“LKF 29")

Building

ANEHETE REAEANE
Location

Hh B

Usage Commercial
A& [HES

Lease term Medium term
HEHR H R

Building

ANEHETE

Location

Hh 2h

Usage Commercial
A& [HES

Lease term Long term
HEHBR K H

ARERERAT —T-mEEH | 29



Management Discussion and Analysis

B EST o &5 AT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During 2014, the Group’s operations were mainly financed by cash
flows generated internally from business operations as well as
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2014, cash and bank deposits (excluding restricted
cash and bank deposits) of the Group amounted to HK$5,240.5 million
(2013: HK$6,102.3 million), of which 99.2%, 0.6% and 0.2% (2013:
88.7%, 3.1% and 8.2%) were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong
dollar and United States dollar respectively.

The Group had utilised financing to supplement internal resources
to finance the acquisition of new projects and the development of
existing projects. Total borrowings of the Group stood at HK$11,641.5
million as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$10,151.8 million), which
mainly comprised of borrowings from banks and bond issuance. The
net gearing ratio (net debt to total equity) of the Group as at 31
December 2014 was 49.2% (2013: 34.7%).

Maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is as follows:

31 December 2014
—®¥-mE+=A=+-8

RBESRMBER
ACT-MER ARECEBESTERE
EBREFRERZBERRBER -

R-ZT—mME+-A=+—H £KAEEH%
RBTFR(TREZXREBERRITEFRA
5,240,500,0007% JT (= & — = £ : 6,102,300,000
IT)  HH99.2% * 0.6% M0.2% (ZF—=%F:
88.7% ~ 3.1% K8.2%) D RIA AR Btk *E
TLHIE .

AEECHAMEERNITERAKEIHIER
RERBEBEEREES - AEBER-_ZT—
FT+ZA=1T—H BN #E% /11,641,500,000
BT (=—Z—=%:10,151,800,000/8 L) £ &
PREBITERRESF T RZTE—WOF+=
A=Z+—R AEBZFABER(EBFELEE
SEAERE) BA9.2% (ZE— =4 :34.7%) °

AEBZERINBBERMAT :

31 December 2013
—E-=Ft-A=+-H

HKS$ million HK$ million
BHEET % ER-Yowi %
Within one year —FK 116.9 1.0 1,412.2 13.9
In the second year BEF 4,596.5 39.5 2,664.2 26.3
In the third to fifth year BEZE2FERF 5,970.8 51.3 5,118.8 50.4
Beyond five years FERF LR 957.3 8.2 956.6 9.4
Total et 11,641.5 100.0 10,151.8 100.0
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The currency profile of the Group’s borrowings is as follows:

31 December 2014
—®-ME+-A=+-H

AEBZEFREEBERNMT

31 December 2013
—F-=ft+t=-A=t+—H

HK$ million HK$ million
HEET % BAEET %
Renminbi AR 1,194.3 10.3 734.9 7.2
Hong Kong Dollar & TT 7,761.6 66.6 6,738.4 66.4
United States Dollar ETT 2,685.6 231 2,678.5 26.4
Total et 11,641.5 100.0 10,151.8 100.0

During the year ended 31 December 2014, finance costs charged
to the profit or loss amounted to HK$65.9 million (2013: HK$107.2
million) after capitalisation of HK$458.7 million (2013: HK$381.2
million) into properties under development. The unutilised banking
facilities of the Group as at 31 December 2014 amounted to
HK$4,597.5 million (2013: HK$3,208.7 million).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES
During 2014, most of the Group’s revenue and costs were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi. The Group is exposed
to exchange rate risk on transactions that are denominated in a
currency other than Hong Kong dollar, the reporting and functional
currency of the Company. The Group has not implemented or entered
into any foreign exchange hedging arrangement to manage its
exchange rate risk during 2014. However, the Group has been closely
monitoring the recent fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate, and
will adopt necessary measures to minimize the impact arising from
adverse currency fluctuation including adjustment to the proportion
of borrowings in foreign currency and adoption of foreign exchange
hedging instruments.

HE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—BILFEE &4
Br DA & AR 1{E 77 3 # A 8% & HR ) %458,700,000
L (—Z — =4 381,200,000 L) & » I8
= N FE SR 2 B %5 K 7K A65,900,00008 7L (ZF
— =% :107,200,000/870) - AEB R =ZF—
FT_A=+—HHRERAZRITREEER
4,597,500,000/% T (=& — =4 : 3,208,700,000
BT °

BE 22 % B) . B

R-ZE-—EHE  REBERBHBARKAY
RETRAREIE AEERUAKRRE 2T
REIGEEENBTAIINEENRZHEN®
o DE R AR [ o AN SR RO 1A I MR PR AN ER
TTEMERE P HFAEGEEXSEBER -
A AEBEEYNEIORARBEERZRD

KBRS - TR AGS ER AR B RO MERE 1A 56 - R
VERRBUAEBEEXETRNTE 215

EIONEEREPIRRBERHHTA -
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, certain assets of the Group were pledged to

secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group and mortgage

loan facilities to the buyers of the Group’s properties, and these
pledged assets of the Group included:

i. investment properties with carrying amount of nil (2013:
HK$1,205.1 million);

i land and buildings with carrying amount of nil (2013: HK$83.0
million);

iii.  properties under development with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$7,185.5 million (2013: HK$1,583.9 million);
and

iv.  bank deposits with carrying amounts of approximately HK$127.2
million (2013: HK$94.6 million).

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the financial guarantees of the Company and the Group are
set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

Total number of staff of the Group, including the Directors, was
1,152 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 995). The Group will continue
to adopt a remuneration policy in line with local market practice
and standards. Total remuneration and benefits of the Directors
and staff of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 were

approximately HK$235.6 million (2013: HK$246.8 million).

He Jianbo
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
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Corporate Governance Report
TEXESHRE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
and responsible for the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices. The Board has put in place a corporate governance structure
for the Company which is principally responsible for setting directions,
formulating strategies, monitoring performance and managing risks of
the Group. The respective Board committees oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs and perform their distinct roles in accordance
with their respective terms of reference.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31
December 2014, the Company has complied with the code provisions
of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except
for the following deviations:

1. Code provision A.4.2 requires that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy in listed companies be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
Every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

Instead of having elected at the first general meeting, Directors
appointed by the Company to fill a casual vacancy would be
subject to election at the first annual general meeting after their
appointment. Besides, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in the manner as set out in the said code provision save
for the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company
where they are not required to do so pursuant to the private
company act 1991 by which the Company was incorporated.

2. Code provision E.1.2 requires that the chairman of the board and
the chairman of all the board committees of listed companies
to attend and answer questions at the annual general meeting.

EEgRhREAE T —NF+_A=+—
BEFREZERERRE -

ARALERBHINABERT KT 2L
BE - EEQLRAARRARLEEZLERER
Rig - TRRBR/AKEEERES - FIERE
ERXALEERR EFEETZEMEEER
€ AREBRARTRBENER EETR
AB RESEZHESEETHERE -

EEELTH
EERAFARANR-E-—NF+-B=+—8
I AEAER - —E M LR AN+
PO 2 0 < B AT 82 S RG-SR LT
Al {6 XX 2 1 B 2 B 4
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EEREEEEEH 2 ER) ENRFBF
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EXEARE

Mr. Sun Xiaomin, the then Chairman of the Board and of the
Nomination Committee, was not available for the Company’s
annual general meeting for 2014 due to ad hoc business
commitment. Accordingly, Mr. He Jianbo, the Deputy Chairman,
Managing Director and a member of the Nomination Committee,
took the chair of the said meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company, however, are delegated to the
management of the Company.

The Board comprises nine members as at the date of this report, the
composition of which is set out below:

RRFEENRB LY ARBEFER
REAZBENEFEABRREEREHER
ARAN—FT-NFERRBFRE AR
AETEREFAKENRERZBEENE
MR EERMKBEIHZERE -

EEE
FFEMEAEERERAAT 2 EE L&
BEERAREEARTZEL MERASB

A I RTARAZEEEE  TTHRMEE
EEH -

RAREAH  SECHNBESHRK  F15
BEft a0 R -

Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Director Designation Committee  Committee Committee = Committee
EEng B 167 BITEEE BZEBE mNEBE REEEE
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong Chairman & Non-executive Director M C
RITRAELE IFERIFATES
Mr. He Jianbo Deputy Chairman, Managing Director & Executive Director C M M
fa] R 5 A BlER EFLKERNTES
Mr. Yin Liang Senior Deputy Managing Director & Executive Director M
FREE EEEBRELCERRITES
Ms. He Xiaoli Deputy Managing Director & Executive Director M
fal/NB& L EFRAKCERNTES
Mr. Tian Jingqi Non-executive Director
HREEE FRTES
Mr. Liu Zeping Non-executive Director
B8 e FBRITES
Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel Independent Non-executive Director M M M
MREE BIIFRTES
Mr. Selwyn Mar Independent Non-executive Director C M M
BREXE BYFATES
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria Independent Non-executive Director M C M
-7 Setun BUFATES

C: Chairman M: Member
Note: Mr. Sun Xiaomin resigned as a Director on 18 March 2015. Prior to Mr. Sun’s

resignation, he was the chairman of the Board and of the Nomination Committee

and a member of the Remuneration Committee.
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Biographical details of Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Profile” in this annual report. To
the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships amongst members of
the Board.

All Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term of three
years. Save as disclosed in the previous paragraph headed “Corporate
Governance Code”, all the Non-executive Directors (except Mr. Zhang
Yuanrong) are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
provisions of the Bye-laws.

The Company has met the requirements of the Listing Rules to have
at least three Independent Non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board and with at least one Independent Non-
executive Director possessing appropriate accounting and financial
management expertise and professional qualifications.

Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel, being an Independent Non-executive Director,
is also an honorary consultant of Shanghai City Development Law
Firm E/EMEEZMESH (“SCD”), a lawyer firm in the PRC
which is the legal advisor acting for a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company in a litigation proceeding conducted in the PRC and also
provides other legal services to the Group from time to time. Mr. Lam
is not a director, partner, principal or employee of SCD nor has any
administrative or management role in SCD. Mr. Lam confirms that he
receives no economic or monetary benefit from the position nor do
any obligations or duties arise which he must or is encouraged to
perform.

Written confirmations were received from all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors confirming their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

REF/ERENAFRIEZTRSEEEAR
BNI—ER - RARF AN EFGEKEZ
B EPH - X5 KEIEMERLEBZ
BAR °

FIBFATEEZENA=F - B LXIEXE
ATRI—BABEEIN  MEFATEZCR
TTRFEERIN BRBARRZRAUNAEHR
BERZBXEIEE-

ARB—BHETEMRAUANEE LT RRAR
ERLV=ZRBIUFNTES  HZFBIUIEH
TEERHEFEARRLI=Nz— MEF
RO—RBUFATESTEABSARUBEE
XERMNERERZAE -

BYERTEEMBREEN R LT REERM
EBATLEEER] B—RRPEARE ZEE
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BT ZHAREERARF K2 EHB AR
ZHRRERD - X A AR B R E MR RR
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EANSEE NEZELEEEZ2EMITHREK
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EXEARE

During the year, a total of five physical Board meetings and the annual
general meeting were held. Notice of at least fourteen days is given for
regular Board meetings. The attendance of the Directors is as follows:

RAFER ARBIRITTERAOIREES S
MR RBERG EFSeTHER A
MANEZBITHHAMNKL THRERERE
F-REFHFERZBAMT

Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BT/HEERRE
Annual General

Board Meeting Meeting
Name of Director EEHSE EEE BEREBEXSE
Mr. Sun Xiaomin RERLE 4/5 0/1

(resigned on 18 March 2015) (R=ZE—RF=ZA+N\BEE

Mr. He Jianbo o] 1 87 5 £ 4/5 1/1
Mr. Yin Liang FrmiAk 5/5 11
Ms. He Xiaoli A/ Nt 4/5 11
Mr. Tian Jinggi AEREE 2/5 0/1
Mr. Liu Zeping 2181 F 5L &£ 4/5 0/
Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel BT E 5/5 11
Mr. Selwyn Mar BHRETE 5/5 11
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria EERZT 5/5 11

The Directors acknowledge that they have a duty to act in good faith
and in the best interests of the Company and commit themselves to
spend sufficient time to perform their duties. They are also aware of
their collective and individual responsibilities to Shareholders. As such,
they must take an active interest in the Company’s affairs and obtain
a thorough understanding of the business of the Company.

The Company enables the Directors, upon request, to seek advice from
independent professional advisors at the Company’s expense in the
process of discharging their duties. The Company has also arranged for
appropriate liability insurance to indemnify Directors for their liabilities
arising from corporate activities.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a comprehensive
induction package covering the Company’s constitutional documents,
internal policy and procedures as well as the general, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
other relevant requirements.
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The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and other
regulatory regime. The Company provides monthly reports to Directors
which contain updates on the business development and financial
information of the Company.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and the training record of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out below:

EENEREFTNLTHRR - BEER LA
RPN ZAERT B FIRAR » BRiL DASN - RAR] &
ARREZRHEBRRARREMEBEREY
BERZHE -

FEESH2AREELEE - SEENBE
SE-mE+-AZ+-BIEE 2 ENRE
m

Briefings Attending
& updates briefings,
on business seminars,
operations, conferences
regulatory relevant to
Paying visits & corporate  business or
to Company’s governance directors’
projects & matters duties
subsidiaries FRAXFEE HEHEEBS
HAREAT RLEES EESEXTHH
EER EEZEH 2HHEHEE-
Directors BEE B A F REH H:TE - ®miE
Non-Executive Directors: FRITESE:
Mr. Sun Xiaomin FEREE(WR_Z—AF v v v
(resigned on 18 March 2015) = At/\B#&1E)
Mr. Tian Jingq =R KA v v v
Mr. Liu Zeping GRS v v v
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. He Jianbo AT 1) 8% 55 &£ 4 4
Mr. Yin Liang Frmf v v v
Ms. He Xiaoli A/ NEB AL v 4 v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BILEHITESE :
Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel mE S E 4 v 4
Mr. Selwyn Mar BHREEE v 4 4
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria EEIRZ T 4 v 4

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Yuanrong was appointed in place of Mr. Sun Xiaomin as a
Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Board on 18 March
2015 and Mr. He Jianbo is the Managing Director of the Company. This
segregation of roles ensures that there is a clear distinction between
the broad strategic direction of the Group and the management of
the Board by the Chairman and the strategic planning and day-to-day
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management of the Group’s business by the Managing Director. The
respective responsibilities of the Chairman and the Managing Director are
set out in the Company’s internal documentation entitled “Guidelines in
respect of the Responsibilities of the Board of Directors”.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
The Company has established a set of guidelines as its own “Rules
and Procedures for Directors and Relevant Employees of the Company
in respect of Dealings in Securities of the Company” (the “Rules for
Securities Transactions”) on terms no less exacting than those contained
in the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, they had confirmed
in writing that they had complied with the Rules for Securities
Transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and its results and cash flows for the relevant financial
period. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Directors ensured that the consolidated
financial statements had been prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards; made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable; and had prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
The Directors are also responsible for the timely publication of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The Directors confirm that, having made all reasonable enquiries, that
to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement made by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the independent
auditor of the Company, about their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for internal control system of the
Group and, through the Audit Committee, reviews its effectiveness to
protect Shareholders’ interest and to safeguard the Group’s assets. The
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Board has authorised the management to design, implement and maintain
its internal control system by clearly defined responsibilities, investment
decision system and budgeting system for performance appraisal, etc.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee has
assisted the Board in reviewing the Group's financial, operational and
compliance controls, and risk management functions, ensuring that
controls and risk management measures and procedures are properly
implemented. The Group's Internal Audit Department follows a risk-and-
control-based approach. Different audit areas are assigned risk ratings and
an audit plan is formulated in a risk-weighted manner so that priorities
and appropriate audit frequency are given to areas with higher risks. The
Group’s Internal Audit Department has conducted audits to inspect and
evaluate the Group’s financial control, operational control, and compliance
control and risk management on a regular or as-needed basis, and
submitted internal audit reports directly to the Audit Committee, with the
purpose of ensuring that the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group has been improving continuously. The Audit Committee
would make recommendations to the management and submit regular
reports to the Board on the basis of such audit findings and views.

BOARD COMMITTEES

A. Audit Committee
All the members of the Audit Committee are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee is principally
responsible for providing independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting procedures and internal control system
of the Group; reviewing the appointment of independent auditor
and the efficiency and quality of their work; and reviewing all
internal audit reports as well as management feedback to such
reports.

The Audit Committee held three meetings in 2014. The
attendance of the members of the Audit Committee is as
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Attendance
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Mr. Selwyn Mar — Chairman BHRELE— R 3/3
Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel WAL E 3/3
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The major tasks accomplished by the Audit Committee during
the year are as follows:

a. reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013, the
independent auditor’s letter to the management and the
annual results announcement, and made recommendation
to the Board for approval;

b. reviewed the interim financial information of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and the interim
results announcement, and made recommendation to the
Board for approval;

C. reviewed the management recommendations furnished
by the independent auditor and the responses from the
Group's management;

d. reviewed the audit strategy submitted by the independent
auditor, and made recommendation to the Board for their
appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement on
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2014,

e. reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
independent auditor for providing non-audit services;

f. reviewed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group;

g. assisted the Board in conducting independent evaluation
of the effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting
procedures and internal control system;

h.  ensured that the management has fulfilled its duty
to establish and maintain an effective internal control
system including adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff working in the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function;
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i. constantly reviewed internal audit reports submitted by the
Internal Audit Department and directed the department in
its approaches to audit planning and reports and ensured
that the internal audit function was supported by adequate
resources and is effective; and

j- furnished its opinions to the management concerning
related risks in respect of significant matters of the Group.

The Board agrees with the proposal of the Audit Committee
for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the Company’s independent auditor for the year ending 31
December 2015. The Company will put forward a resolution
in respect of the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as the Company’s independent auditor for the year ending 31
December 2015 for approval by Shareholders at the AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of the Chairman of the
Board, the Managing Director and all the Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for the review of the remuneration mechanism and incentive
scheme of the Directors and senior management, and the
establishment and maintenance of a reasonable and competitive
remuneration level in order to attract and retain Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee was authorised by the Board to
determine the remuneration packages of Executive Directors and
senior management and make recommendations to the Board
of the remuneration of Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2014. The
attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee is
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
discussed the 2013 annual bonus proposal and 2014 annual
salary adjustment proposal.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of the Chairman of the
Board, the Managing Director and all the Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
formulating the policy for nomination of Directors and to lead
the process of identifying and nominating candidates suitably
qualified to become Board members. It reviews the Board
structure, size and composition and makes recommendations
to the Board on re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for the Chairman and the chief executive of the
Company. It also reviews the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
which include but are not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, integrity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee
has the primary responsibility for the implementation of the
policy and will review the policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of the policy.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in 2014. The

attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee is as
follows:

Members of the Nomination Committee
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During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed and
discussed the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors, the structure, size and composition of the Board and

the board diversity policy of the Company.

D. Corporate Governance Functions

The Board as a whole is responsible for determining the policy
for corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties including to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, to
develop, review and monitor the Company’s code of conduct
and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
to make disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
the independent auditor of the Group, received approximately HK$3.4
million (2013: HK$3.3 million) for audit services, and approximately
HK$0.5 million (2013: HK$0.7 million) for non-audit services which
include the review of the 2014 interim report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chung Wing Yee was appointed as Company Secretary of the
Company in August 2006. She is an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Chung has participated the
relevant professional training activities for more than 15 hours during

the year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

A. Convening of special general meeting on requisition and
putting forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up share capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company have the right to
requisite the Directors to convene a special general meeting of
the Company. The requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist and deposited
at the registered office of the Company.
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If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionist, or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a special general meeting of the Company.

B. Enquiries from Shareholders
The Company’s website provides email address, postal address,
fax number and telephone number by which enquiries may be
put to the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTMENT
COMMUNITY

The Company attaches great importance to communications with
Shareholders and the investment community (which refers to the
Company’s potential investors and research analysts reporting and
analysing the Company’s status and performance).

Corporate information will be communicated to Shareholders and the
investment community by way of the Company’s announcements,
websites, general meetings with shareholders and general investor
relations activities.

It is believed that effective communication with investors is
essential for promoting their understanding of the Group’s business
development. The Company releases property sales update by way of
announcement and press release on a regular basis.

A. Announcements and corporate website

The Company maintains its corporate website at
www.minmetalsland.com where announcements, press releases
and update information on the Group are available. It serves as
a key channel for Shareholders and the investment community
to access reliable and timely information about the Company.
Shareholders would raise enquiries or provide feedbacks via the

designated section on the Company’s corporate website.
The following corporate information, which has been released
by the Company to the Stock Exchange, is also posted on the

Company’s website immediately thereafter:

a. announcements, notices and circulars;
b. annual reports and interim reports;
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Bye-laws;
list of Directors;
terms of reference of all the committees of the Board; and

-~ o a n

procedure for nomination of Directors by Shareholders.

General meetings of Shareholders

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings
or to appoint proxies to attend and vote on their behalf if they
are unable to attend the meetings. They are welcome to raise
questions and comments at general meetings where members
of the Board and independent auditor of the Company are
delighted to answer.

Shareholders are informed of the voting procedures of general
meetings by the Chairman of the general meeting. The Company
also provides Shareholders with sufficient and timely information
concerning the date, location and agenda of general meetings
and other information regarding issues to be decided at general
meetings.

The Company ensures votes cast are properly counted and
recorded. Independent scrutineers are appointed to count
the number of votes cast at general meetings. The Company
announces and publishes, on the same day of the general
meeting, the poll voting results on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange.

Investor relations activities

We believe that, to enhance corporate governance, regular
and effective communication with investors is essential and in
particular, for their understanding of the Company’s business
development. We endeavour to maintain regular meetings and
frequent dialogues with the investment community through
participation in investor conferences, analyst and media briefings,
non-deal road show and investors’ and shareholders’ visits.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
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Mr. Tian Jingqi
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Yuanrong, aged 59, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company in March 2015. He
graduated from the School of International Communications of
Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1980 with a
Bachelor’s Degree and is a Senior International Business Engineer in
the PRC. Mr. Zhang joined China Minmetals in 1985. He is currently
the Deputy General Manager of China Minmetals and is responsible
for the general office, audit division, financial services business and
real estate development business of China Minmetals. He is also a
director of CMCL. Mr. Zhang has been serving various departments of
China Minmetals group for investment, trading, mineral resources and
financial services businesses. He has extensive experience in real estate
development, strategic investment, financial services and corporate
management.

Mr. He Jianbo, aged 45, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Managing Director of the Company in December 2007. He is
appointed to the position of Deputy Chairman of the Company in April
2013. He is responsible for the operation of and strategic planning
for the Company. Mr. He graduated from the Peking University in
1992 with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics. He also obtained a
Master’s Degree in International Finance from Peking University and
a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from Saint Mary's
University, Canada. Mr. He is a Senior International Business Engineer
in the PRC. He is also a Council Member of the Chinese Association
for International Understanding and a Vice President of the Liaoning
Province Youth Federation. Mr. He joined China Minmetals in 1992 and
had served the positions of director of general administrative office,
director of strategic planning division and a member of the strategic
planning committee of China Minmetals. He is concurrently a Deputy
General Manager of the Real Estate and Construction Business Centre
of China Minmetals and a director of Minmetals HK. Mr. He has over
20 years of experience in corporate management, strategic planning
and investment.

Mr. Yin Liang, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director and a
Deputy Managing Director of the Company in December 2006. Mr. Yin
is now an Executive Director and the Senior Deputy Managing Director
of the Company. He graduated from the University of International
Business and Economics of China in 1991 with a Bachelor of Law
Degree and obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Saint Mary’s University of Canada and a Master’s Degree in Law
from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yin joined China Minmetals in
1991 and has been serving various departments of China Minmetals
group for investment, corporate management, capital market, legal
affairs and trading. Mr. Yin has extensive experience in real estate
development, investment, capital market and corporate management.
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Ms. He Xiaoli, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in February 2002. Ms. He is now the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company. Ms. He holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Accounting from North China University of Technology and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the University of South
Australia. She is a qualified PRC Senior Accountant and a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to
joining the Company, Ms. He was the head of business division and
the deputy minister of accounting information division of the finance
department of the previous China National Nonferrous Metals Industry
Corporation. Ms. He has extensive experience in financial management

of enterprises.

Mr. Tian Jingqi, aged 51, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company in June 2010. Mr. Tian obtained a Bachelor’s Degree
from Beijing University of Iron and Steel Technology (now known as
University of Science and Technology Beijing) in 1985 and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from China Europe International
Business School in 1998. He is a Senior International Business Engineer
in the PRC and a Chartered Builder. Mr. Tian joined China Minmetals in
1988 and is the General Manager of the Real Estate and Construction
Business Centre of China Minmetals and a Director and the General
Manager of Minmetals Real Estate. Mr. Tian has extensive experience
in real estate and international trading business.

Mr. Liu Zeping, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company in June 2010. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor's Degree
from Military Academy of Engineering and an Executive Master's
Degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua University. He is a
Qualified Senior Engineer in the PRC. Mr. Liu joined China Minmetals
in 1992 and is a Deputy General Manager of the Real Estate and
Construction Business Centre of China Minmetals and the President
of 23rd Metallurgical. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in real estate
development and construction business.
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Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel, aged 69, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 1997. Mr. Lam is an
Authorized Person under the Buildings Ordinance and a Registered
Professional Surveyor. He is a fellow member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, a
fellow member and the Past President (1986-1987) of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, and a fellow member and the past chairman
(1997-2000) of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Lam is a
director of the Urban Renewal Authority and was a member of the
Hong Kong Housing Authority, Chairman of its Building Committee
and a member of its Administrative Appeals Board, a member of the
Hong Kong Surveyors Registration Board and a consultant to the World
Bank on the Urban Land Policies Study for the PRC. He is also a Council
Member of the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre. Mr. Lam
was the director of the Property Division of the previous Kowloon-
Canton Railway Corporation and had worked in various large well-
established organisations. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of experience in
the surveying profession.

Mr. Selwyn Mar, aged 79, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2002. Mr. Mar
graduated from the London School of Economics, University of
London. He is a Chartered Accountant, a director of Nexia Charles
Mar Fan Limited and the Managing Director of Marfan & Associates
Limited. Mr. Mar was the President of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 1991, a member of the Appeals Panel
of Securities & Futures Commission and a member of the Board of
Governors of Chinese International School. Mr. Mar has been actively
involved in commercial and industrial undertakings in Hong Kong and
the PRC in the past 37 years. Presently, he sits on the board of two
other Hong Kong listed companies. Mr. Mar is an Honorary Fellow
of the Lingnan University and appointed a member of the Court of
Lingnan University by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR.

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria, aged 69, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 1997. Ms. Tam holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Law from the University of London and has
been a practising barrister since 1972. Ms. Tam is currently involved
in numerous community services, which include the Deputy of the
National People’s Congress of the PRC, a member of the Basic Law
Committee of the HKSAR and the Bar Association, as well as the
Chairman of the Operations Review Committee, a member of the
Witness Protection Review Board and the Ex-officio member of the
Advisory Committee on Corruption of the Independent Commission
Against Corruption.
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Mr. Yang Lu
BEEE

Deputy General Manager
=] \_ EE

Mr. Xu Bingliang
FFRRELE

Deputy General Manager

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang Lu, aged 57, joined the Company as the General Manager
of the Real Estate Development Department in May 2007. Mr. Yang
is now a Deputy General Manager of the Company and is responsible
for the initial management of new projects and oversees the business
development of real estate development projects of the Company in
the PRC. Mr. Yang graduated from Chongqging (Jianzhu) Architectural
& Engineering University (now known as Chongging University) in
1982 with a Bachelor of Engineering Degree. He also holds a Grade
One Project Manager Certificate issued by the PRC's Ministry of
Construction and is a member of the Chartered Institute of Building,
U.K.. He was previously employed to managerial positions in various
companies of China Overseas Holdings Limited with exposure to a
variety of domestic and overseas engineering projects. He was also the
general manager of a PRC real estate development company of China
Overseas Holdings Limited. Mr. Yang has extensive experience in the
development, operation and management of construction contracting
and real estate development business.

Mr. Xu Bingliang, aged 49, joined the Company as the Deputy
General Manager in December 2008. Mr. Xu is also a director and the
general manager of Condo Shanghai, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company engaged in specialised construction business in the PRC.
He graduated from Central University of Finance and Economics of the
PRC in 1986 with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and completed
his graduate study in accounting in the same university in 2002. Mr.
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Xu is a qualified PRC Senior Accountant. Since Mr. Xu joined China
Minmetals in 1989, he has been responsible for financial management
of various subsidiaries of China Minmetals. Mr. Xu has more than 20
years of experience in corporate financial management and strategic
investment.

Mr. Law Yiu Wing, Patrick, aged 52, joined the Company as the
Chief Operating Officer in September 2006. Mr. Law assists the
Managing Director in business development, day-to-day operation and
financial and general management of the Company. Mr. Law is also
responsible for the management of the investment properties and
the Property Management Department, and is the general manager
of Condo HK, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company engaged
in specialised construction business in Hong Kong. He also assists the
planning, management and development of the Company’s business
in real estate development and investment. Mr. Law holds a Bachelor
of Building (Hons.) Degree from the University of New South Wales,
Australia and a Master of Business Administration Degree from
the Australian Graduate School of Management. He is a member
of the Australian Institute of Building, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Law has extensive
experience in property development, strategic planning, financial and
general management gained from listed companies.

Mr. Tang Ying Kit, Edward, aged 41, joined the Company as the
Financial Controller in April 2013. He is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tang holds a
Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Finance (Honours) from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Tang worked in listed company and state-owned
enterprise in Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in corporate
finance, financial and general management.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Board would like to submit the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are real estate development,
specialised construction, property investment and securities
investment. Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
and geographical segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 75.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK1.5
cents (2013: HK1.5 cents) per Share payable in cash to Shareholders
whose names appearing on the register of members of the Company
on Thursday, 11 June 2015.

The dividend cheques will be distributed to Shareholders on or about
Friday, 26 June 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES
Particulars of the major properties held for investment and properties
under development of the Group are set out on pages 16 to 29.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2014,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda,
amounted to HK$814,459,000 (2013: HK$301,931,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 7.

SHARE OPTION

2003 Share Option Scheme

The 2003 Share Option Scheme, which was adopted by the Company
on 29 May 2003, expired on 28 May 2013. Share options granted
under the 2003 Share Option Scheme prior to its expiration shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms of
issue.
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Details of the movements of share options granted under the 2003 RKREZ-ET—NF+-_A=+—HIFE =ZF
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2014 are Z=FHERE 2 EHF B0 T
as follows:
Number of share options
BiREHE
As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
1 January during the during the during the 31 December
Exercise 2014 year year year 2014
Category of participant Date of grant Exercisable period price 120145 REEE REFE REEE 20145
SHEEEN RHBEH TEH fTiEE 1818 i & 3] 12A31H
HK$
BT
(i) Directors
BE
Mr. Sun Xiaomin (Note 3)  30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 1,970,000 — — — 1,970,000
HEER & & (KT5E3) 30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Fff &£ 2)
Mr. He Jianbo 1.12.2008 1.12.2010 to 30.11.2018 (Note 1) 0.45 1,428,000 — — — 1,428,000
] &% 5 & 1.12.2008 1.12.2010%30.11.2018 (Fff &£ 1)
30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 2,900,000 = — = 2,900,000
30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Pff £ 2)
Mr. Yin Liang 1.12.2008 1.12.2010 to 30.11.2018 (Note 1) 0.45 952,000 — — — 952,000
FrEE 1.12.2008 1.12.2010%30.11.2018 (Fff 7% 1)
30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 2,200,000 — — — 2,200,000
30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Pff &£ 2)
Ms. He Xiaoli 1.12.2008 1.12.2010 to 30.11.2018 (Note 1) 0.45 793,333 — — — 793,333
O 5 1.12.2008 1.12.2010%30.11.2018 (Fff &£ 1)
30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 2,100,000 = — = 2,100,000
30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Pff £ 2)
Mr. Tian Jinggi 30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 1,700,000 — — — 1,700,000
HEELE 30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Pff £ 2)
Mr. Liu Zeping 30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 1,470,000 — — — 1,470,000
2181 F &4 30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Fff &£ 2)
(ii) Employees and others 1.12.2008 1.12.2010 to 30.11.2018 (Note 1) 0.45 7,638,668 — 2,657,666 — 4,981,002
EEREM 1.12.2008 1.12.2010%30.11.2018 (Mt 3% 1)
30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 41,950,000 = — 3,150,000 38,800,000
30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Pff £ 2)
Total 48 5t 65,102,001 — 2,657,666 3,150,000 59,294,335
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Notes:

These share options are exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage of
share options of each tranche exercisable within the periods commencing from 1
December 2010 to 30 November 2018, from 1 December 2011 to 30 November
2018 and from 1 December 2012 to 30 November 2018 are 30%, 30% and 40%

respectively.

These share options are exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage
of share options of each tranche exercisable within the periods commencing
from 30 November 2014 to 29 November 2022, from 30 November 2015 to 29
November 2022 and from 30 November 2016 to 29 November 2022 are 30%,
30% and 40% respectively.

Mr. Sun Xiaomin resigned as a Director on 18 March 2015.

Save as disclosed above, no share options in respect of the 2003 Share

Option Scheme were granted, lapsed or cancelled during the year.

2013 Share Option Scheme
The 2013 Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 7

June

2013 to recognise and acknowledge eligible persons for their

contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

No share options have yet been granted by the Company pursuant to
the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

The principal terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme are set out as

follows:

1)

Participants

Any directors or any employees of any company of the Group
and any advisers of, consultants of, contractors to any company
of the Group or any person who has any relationship (whether
business or otherwise) with any company of the Group or any
person whom the Directors consider, in their sole discretion, has
contributed or will contribute or can contribute to the Group.
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®)

(4)

(5)

56

Total number of Shares available for issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the
2013 Share Option Scheme is 333,785,270,
approximately 9.99% of the issued share capital of the Company

representing

as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No share options under the 2013 Share Option Scheme may be
granted to any eligible person, which, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the share options already granted or to be
granted to such eligible person under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such new grant exceeding 1% of the issued share capital as at
the date of such new grant. Any grant of further share options
above this limit shall be subject to the requirements under the
Listing Rules.

The period within which the Shares must be taken up under a
share option

The Directors may in their absolute discretion determine the
period during which a share option may be exercised and notify
each grantee, save that such period shall not be later than 10
years from the date on which the Directors make an offer of
the share option subject to the provisions for early termination
as stipulated in the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on acceptance of the
share option

The offer of a share option made in accordance with the 2013
Share Option Scheme must be accepted within 28 business days
from the date on which the offer is made and the amount
payable on acceptance of the share option is HK$10.
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(6)

(7)

The basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board at the
time of grant of the relevant share option and shall not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price per Share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the relevant share option; (ii) the amount equivalent to the
average closing price per Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant share option; or (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life
The 2013 Share Option Scheme is valid until 6 June 2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Sun Xiaomin (resigned on 18 March 2015)
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong (appointed on 18 March 2015)

Mr. Tian Jingqi

Mr. Liu Zeping

Executive Directors
Mr. He Jianbo
Mr. Yin Liang
Ms. He Xiaoli

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel

Mr. Selwyn Mar
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria

Ms. He Xiaoli, Mr. Selwyn Mar and Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria will retire
from the offices of Director at the AGM in accordance with Bye-law

111(A) of the Bye-Laws and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-
election at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company and any
of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The interests of Directors in competing businesses that were required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules as informed
by the relevant Directors are as follows:

Mr. He Jianbo, Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and an Executive
Director, is also a director of Yingkou Industrial Park, Minmetals Real
Estate and 23rd Metallurgical.

Mr. Tian Jingqi, a Non-executive Director, is also a director and the
general manager of Minmetals Real Estate, and a director of Yingkou
Industrial Park and 23rd Metallurgical.

Mr. Liu Zeping, a Non-executive Director, is also a director and the
president of 23rd Metallurgical, and a director of Yingkou Industrial
Park and Minmetals Real Estate.

All of Yingkou Industrial Park, Minmetals Real Estate and 23rd
Metallurgical are enterprises established under the laws of the
PRC. Yingkou Industrial Park is engaged in the development of
Minmetals (Yingkou) Industrial Park. Minmetals Real Estate is engaged
in real estate development and operation, construction, property
management, real estate agency, real estate advertising and exhibition
and other real estate related business. 23rd Metallurgical is engaged
in construction engineering, mining development and operations, real
estate and related industries business.

In case the Board decides that there are any issues of conflict between
the Group and the aforementioned companies, conflicting Directors
will abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors or their respective associates had any competing interests in
a business which competes or is likely to compete with the business
of the Group (as would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules if each of them were a controlling Shareholder).
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of Directors for the year ended 31 December 2014 are as
follows:

Changes in Director's emoluments during the year are set out in Note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO), which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, or as recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, were as follows:

BHEEZ2EH 28

B FHREBEI3SEE  UTABRE_Z—
NWE+_—_A=+—BILEFEEEEREH 2B
jR :

REFEEEWME 2EHBREAN G TER
FMIFE9 ©

EEREETHAERKRMG - HE
Iy RBEH R 2R R %
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ZER)ZBRORBEROTEBERREFR
HEGAFTERELRENDF(BERR
REEHFRPEGIGRXEB LR GEEE 2
B IORR)HRIE LRI +AEH 2
RETRMAGEARE MBI zEsm KRR
m

Long Position in Shares REHhzEFE
Number of Approximate percentage
Shares held of total issued Shares
Name of Director Nature of interest FisEZ HE#ETRY
EEKA EnnE % & 8 B HEEZEMAERH
Mr. He Jianbo Personal 612,000 0.018%
] 1) 8% 52 A & A
Mr. Yin Liang Personal 408,000 0.012%
FEiE &l A
Ms. He Xiaoli Personal 370,000 0.011%
A/ NBEZ L &l A
Note: Details of the interests of Directors in share options of the Company are disclosed ~ Hl 5% : AR E F A A B B A A4 o 2 7 B 800 L 0B R

in the section headed “Share Option” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company or any of their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any personal, family,
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corporate or other interests or short position in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age,
was granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any equity or
debt securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) during the year ended 31 December
2014.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option” and
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, the Company had
no other outstanding options, convertible securities, warrants or other

similar rights as at 31 December 2014.

Save as disclosed above, there was no repurchase or exercise of options
and convertible securities during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, according to the register of interests kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the following entities
had interests in the Shares and underlying Shares which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Long Position in Shares

IE&%

E-NE+-_A=1+—H REARAR
%&Hﬂ S EPIE=a="1< MZ%E;ETEZ

% /Mpﬂﬁﬂpﬂﬁ“ TIE
ERREZLEEHRD
il //\WZ'S j%&EﬁZEE iy

Rik#BziEe

Interest in Shares

Name of Shareholder BEZE

7 B 3
ZiEm

BN ARE KGN EP%
F+EHE_RFE=
S RKE

Approximate percentage
of total issued Shares
HE T K
BEz@MHEREL

China Minmetals B A E

CMCL A E D

Minmetals HK EADE

June Glory June Glory

Mr. Osbert Lyman Osbert Lyman 5t 4

Strategic Power International Strategic Power International
Limited (“SPI") Limited ([SPIJ)

Notes:

1. June Glory is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Minmetals HK, which in turn is wholly
owned by CMCL. CMCL is owned as to approximately 88.5% by China Minmetals.
Accordingly, each of China Minmetals, CMCL and Minmetals HK was deemed as
interested in the 2,071,095,506 Shares held by June Glory.

2. SPI is owned as to 70% by Mr. Osbert Lyman. In view that SPI had direct and
indirect interests in 19,290,000 Shares and 150,849,862 Shares respectively,
each of SPI and Mr. Osbert Lyman was deemed as interested in an aggregate of
170,139,862 Shares.

2,071,095,506
(Note 1)
(B £ 1)

2,071,095,506
(Note 1)
(B 3E1)

2,071,095,506
(Note 1)
(B 3E1)

2,071,095,506
(Note 1)
(B 2E1)

170,139,862
(Note 2)
(B 5E2)

170,139,862
(Note 2)
(P 3% 2)

62.00%

62.00%

62.00%

62.00%

5.09%

5.09%

June Glory AE B RB 2 2EWB AR MESARE

ABAmBRHO2EHEE  FEEBIBEAREBRG A
88 5% o It PEARE AEBRHOLBEARRE
B B WAR B A June Glory T & 22,071,095,506 %

B 15 2 4 3 o

2. SPI 3 Osbert Lyman 7t 4 #5 B E70% # %5 & 7 SPI

5 Rl H # K 5 55 19,290,000% 150,849,862 %

B& 15 » SPIX Osbert Lymanc A& BWE AEEA L
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The following contract of significance was entered into between the
Company or its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling shareholder
or its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2014:

Minmetals Land Beijing and Minmetals Zhidi (both are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company), and Minmetals Futures (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Minmetals) entered into a construction project
management agreement on 24 February 2014 regarding the provision
of construction project management services for the project involving
the construction of a commercial complex and certain ancillary facilities
for the use by Minmetals Futures as its southern headquarter in the
PRC. Details of the transaction have been published in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 February 2014.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance were entered
into or subsisted between the Company or its subsidiaries and the
Company’s controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, or any of their subsidiaries was a party, in which a Director
had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

62 Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2014

EXEH
RBEE_Z-—NF+_A=+—HILEFE &R
713k H B B N B B AN X B 2 4% AR AR o EL Y B
RAGILHDABRZEBRELHMT :

RZE—WNF_A+ME AEELKZIERK
hESMMEAERAG 22 EWB AR BRI
HE(ARPERBEZ2EMB AR BB R
BEESR BROEHEERENFEZERM
RBHBE R AMEEETARRERBRE
HBEEIHEEEERY - Z XS ZFABHRAEAR
AEA-—E—NME-_A-+tHEZAERA °

BREXHBEEEN REBEE-_T—NE+_-A
=T -RILEFE BEEAHARREENE
NEEARR 2B RKEN B QB PRI
IMABERZERNEGH -

ARTE] - BEMERABRKRE 2 ERHNERR
1L BT S7E fa] 5O 6 A B SRR A A B R ATD 4R
ERAEERNEFHEAEANGE ZEREL o

EEEH
AFEERBETIREFEEMEBRARRZ K
TAEXRBOEHEERITEEL



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS TEERRMIER

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases M TAZTEEFRHEEFNAFEL KAEBEH
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the year is %8 MR v &} :

as follows:

Percentage of the Group’s total

HEAREAFEZzESLHE
Sales Purchases
SHE®H R
2014 2013 2014 2013

ZE-—NFE ZEF—=F ZF-—0OFE —FT—=

The largest customer BAEP 1.9% 2.0%
Five largest customers in aggregate B A AR F A5 %E 6.4% 6.4%
The largest supplier SN Y] 9.0% 3.9%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate B F At f& i AT (5 42 28 22.4% 9.0%

23rd Metallurgical (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China Minmetals) HE-+=)8(R+TEAE2FE2EMBE AT
is the largest supplier of the Group during the year. REEBERKRERE 2 KEER -

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, had the Directors, & EXFI#HBEEIN - RAFEEMERHE - §F
their associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the 553k Bt 88 A 3l (F (7] A% 3R (Bt & % P A0 4L (] 9
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had BARFRAS%IA L2BRR)HEHEE LIE
any interests in the above customers and suppliers. PRUEER 2 EMER -

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S BE - HESEENAAT LT

LISTED SECURITIES 55
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold AAFSHEEAMBERARRAFEREEE -
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year, HEXBEARQAR 2EMLETES °

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BhEEH#E
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or ERMAISKBREEZFHEELEEERE 2R
the laws of Bermuda. iE °
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:

A tenancy agreement dated 30 December 2011 was entered into
between Minmetals Cheerglory (a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Minmetals) as the tenant and Texion (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as the landlord (“Tenancy Agreement
["), details of which are set out below:

Premises . 11th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham
Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Period : 29 months commencing from 1 January 2012 to
31 May 2014 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$133,239 per calendar month (exclusive of
government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other : HK$25,489.20 per calendar month (being the

charges tenant’s share of service, management and air-

conditioning charges)

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Cheerglory
under Tenancy Agreement | for the year ended 31 December
2014 was HK$666,195.

A tenancy agreement dated 30 December 2011 was entered into
between Minmetals HK (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Minmetals) as the tenant and Texion as the landlord (“Tenancy
Agreement I1”), details of which are set out below:

Premises : 19th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham
Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Period : two years commencing from 1 June 2012 to
31 May 2014 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$133,239 per calendar month (exclusive of
government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other : HK$25,489.20 per calendar month (being the

charges tenant’s share of service, management and air-

conditioning charges)

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals HK under
Tenancy Agreement Il for the year ended 31 December 2014
was HK$666,195.
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A material supply agreement dated 2 April 2012 was entered
into between the Company and Newglory (a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Minmetals) whereby the Company
may from time to time invite Newglory to tender for material
supply contract(s) and, subject to successful tender, appoint
Newglory as a supplier for construction materials regarding the
Group's existing and future real estate development projects
and specialised construction projects for the period from 2 April
2012 to 31 December 2014.

The aggregate sum awarded by the Company to Newglory for
the year ended 31 December 2014 was nil.

A property management service contract dated 20 August
2012 was entered into between Jiahe Risheng (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and Jiasheng Properties (a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Minmetals) whereby Jiasheng
Properties provides property management services to the
sales office, show flats and unsold residential units of LOHAS
International Community for the period from 20 August 2012
to 31 December 2014.

The aggregate sum paid by Jiahe Risheng to Jiasheng Properties
for the year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB4,558,006.

A property management service contract dated 5 January 2015
was entered into between Jiahe Risheng and Jiasheng Properties
whereby the said property management services provided
by lJiasheng Properties will be continued for the period from
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2016, details of which are
contained in the Company’s announcement dated 5 January
2015.

A property management service contract dated 20 August 2012
was entered into between Zhongrun Chengzhen (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and lJiasheng Properties
whereby Jiasheng Properties provides property management
services to the sales office, show flats and unsold residential
units of Scotland Town for the period from 20 August 2012 to
31 December 2014.

The aggregate sum paid by Zhongrun Chengzhen to Jiasheng
Properties for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
RMB1,287,854.
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A property management service contract dated 5 January 2015
was entered into between Zhongrun Chengzhen and Jiasheng
Properties whereby the property management services provided
by Jiasheng Properties to unsold residential units of Scotland
Town will be continued for the period from 1 January 2015
to 31 December 2016, details of which are contained in the
Company’s announcement dated 5 January 2015.

A framework agreement dated 7 September 2012 was entered
into between Boluo Bihua (a 80%-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Shenzhen Pan-China (a company holding 20%
equity interests in Boluo Bihua) whereby Boluo Bihua may from
time to time invite Shenzhen Pan-China to tender and award
construction contracts, subject to successful tender, in respect
of Hallstatt See project in Huizhou, the PRC for the period from
7 September 2012 to 31 December 2014.

The aggregate sum awarded by Boluo Bihua to Shenzhen
Pan-China for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
RMB115,548,899.

A framework agreement dated 30 December 2014 was entered
into between Boluo Bihua and Shenzhen Pan-China whereby the
transactions contemplated under the said framework agreement
would be continued for the period from 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2017, details of which are contained in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 December 2014.

A tenancy agreement dated 1 April 2013 was entered into
between Fifth Plaza Co (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Minmetals) as the landlord and Minmetals Land Beijing
(@ wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the tenant
(“Tenancy Agreement IlI”), details of which are set out below:

Premises : 7th Floor and part of BM and B1 Floors, Tower A,
Minmetals Plaza, 3 Chaoyangmen North Street,
Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC and six car
parking spaces

Period : 33 months commencing from 1 April 2013 to

31 December 2015 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : RMB1,227,328.24 per calendar month (exclusive

of management, electricity and public facility
charges)
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The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Land Beijing
under Tenancy Agreement Il for the year ended 31 December
2014 was RMB14,727,939.

A tenancy agreement dated 1 May 2013 was entered into
between Minmetals Capital (@ non wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Minmetals) as the tenant and Texion as the landlord
("Tenancy Agreement IV"), details of which are set out below:

Premises : 9th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham
Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Period : 13 months commencing from 1 May 2013 to
31 May 2014 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$133,239 per calendar month (exclusive of
government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other : HK$25,489.20 per calendar month (being the

charges tenant’s share of service, management and air-
conditioning charges)

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Capital under
Tenancy Agreement IV for the year ended 31 December 2014
was HK$666,195.

A conditional construction contracting agreement dated 4
November 2013 was entered into between the Company and
23rd Metallurgical whereby the Company may from time to time
invite 23rd Metallurgical or its subsidiaries to tender and award
construction contracts, subject to successful tender, in respect
of the existing and future real estate development projects of
the Group in the PRC for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016.

The aggregate sum awarded by the Group to 23rd Metallurgical
and any of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2014
was RMB442,749,733.
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A financial services framework agreement dated 4 November
2013 was entered into between the Company and Minmetals
Finance (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China Minmetals)
whereby Minmetals Finance would provide the Company and its
PRC subsidiaries with deposit, loan and settlement services for
the period from 4 November 2013 to 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the maximum daily
outstanding balance of deposits (including accrued interests)
placed by the Company and its PRC subsidiaries with Minmetals
Finance was approximately RMB1,798,711,068.

A tenancy agreement dated 29 May 2014 was entered into
between Minmetals Capital as the tenant and Texion as the
landlord (“Tenancy Agreement V"), details of which are set out

below:

Premises : 9th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham
Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Period : two years commencing from 1 June 2014 to
31 May 2016 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$139,032 per calendar month (exclusive of
government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other : HK$27,227.10 per calendar month (being the

charges tenant’s share of service, management and air-

conditioning charges)
The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Capital under

Tenancy Agreement V for the year ended 31 December 2014
was HK$834,192.
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13.

A tenancy agreement dated 29 May 2014 was entered into
between Minmetals Cheerglory as the tenant and Texion as the
landlord (“Tenancy Agreement VI”), details of which are set out

below:

Premises : 11th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham
Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Period . two years commencing from 1 June 2014 to
31 May 2016 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$139,032 per calendar month (exclusive of
government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other : HK$27,227.10 per calendar month (being the

charges tenant’s share of service, management and air-

conditioning charges)

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Cheerglory
under Tenancy Agreement VI for the year ended 31 December
2014 was HK$834,192.

A tenancy agreement dated 29 May 2014 was entered into
between Minmetals HK as the tenant and Texion as the landlord
("Tenancy Agreement VII”), details of which are set out below:

Premises - 19th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham
Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Period : two years commencing from 1 June 2014 to
31 May 2016 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$139,032 per calendar month (exclusive of
government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other : HK$27,227.10 per calendar month (being the

charges tenant’s share of service, management and air-

conditioning charges)

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals HK under
Tenancy Agreement VIl for the year ended 31 December 2014
was HK$834,192.
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13.
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ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the above continuing
connected transactions (“Continuing Connected Transactions”) have
been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions were carried
out:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s independent auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, was
engaged to report on the Continuing Connected Transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 "Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the Continuing Connected
Transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 64 to 69 of this annual
report in accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18
AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

1.

OFL as the borrower, the Company and MLI as the guarantors
and certain banks as the lenders (the “Lenders”) entered into
a facility agreement for a 3-year term loan facility (the “Loan
Facility 1) in the principal amount of HK$3,800,000,000 on 5
July 2013 (the “Facility Agreement 1”).
Pursuant to Facility Agreement |, China Minmetals, the
controlling Shareholder of the Company, shall own beneficially
(directly or indirectly) at least 31% of the entire issued share
capital in the Company as well as remain the single largest
Shareholder (directly or indirectly) of the Company and has
management control over the Company. A breach of any of the
aforesaid conditions would constitute an event of default and
the Lenders may (i) cancel all or any part of the commitments
under Facility Agreement I, and/or (i) declare that all or part of
the loans together with accrued interest and all other amounts
accrued under Loan Facility | be immediately due and payable;
and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the loans be payable on
demand.

OFL as the borrower, the Company and MLI as the guarantors
and certain banks as the lenders (the “Lenders”) entered into a
term loan facility agreement for a 5-year term loan facility (the
“Loan Facility II") in the principal amount of HK$5,300,000,000
on 20 December 2013 (the “Facility Agreement I1").

China Minmetals, the
controlling Shareholder of the Company, shall beneficially

Pursuant to Facility Agreement I,

(directly or indirectly) own not less than 31% of the issued
shares of the Company as well as remain the single largest
beneficial Shareholder of the Company and has control over the
management of the Company. A breach of any of the aforesaid
conditions would constitute an event of default and the Lenders
may (i) cancel all commitments under Facility Agreement II; and/
or (i) demand that all or part of the loans together with accrued
interest and all other amounts accrued under Loan Facility Il be
immediately due and payable; and/or (iii) demand that all or part
of the loans be payable on demand.
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Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other disclosure
obligations under Rules 13.18 and 13.21 of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the notices submitted to the Company pursuant to the SFO,
the Directors are of the view that sufficient public float exists for the
issued Shares as at the date of this report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed with the
independent auditor the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and has also discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the review
of the accounting practices and principles adopted by the Group.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has retired and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
was appointed as the independent auditor of the Company with
effect from the conclusion of the 2013 annual general meeting of the
Company held on 7 June 2013.

The consolidated financial statements as contained in this annual
report have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who will retire
at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the AGM.

By order of the Board
He Jianbo
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
J5 3L 1% B B ¥R &5

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MINMETALS LAND LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Minmetals
Land Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 199, which comprise
the consolidated and Company’s statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B R &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating

the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
20 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FEEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z—F —WF+=-H=+—HILFZE

2014 2013
—E—lE —ZT—=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 FHET FE T
Revenue I @N 6 5,983,634 5,905,854
Cost of sales 85 & A AR (4,756,883)  (4,463,399)
Gross profit E R 1,226,751 1,442,455
Other gains, net Hfb iz - F5E 8 49,588 36,088
Fair value changes on investment properties % & ¥ % A i E& F) 16 160,085 169,417
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHEAS (288,985) (184,907)
Administrative expenses TERAX (456,215) (448,244)
Finance income B 75 A 10 78,858 62,404
Finance costs B 75 BX AR 10 (65,845) (107,213)
Share of results of associated companies DB L AR ES 19 183,936 55,262
Profit before tax BR %% Al A 888,173 1,025,262
Income tax expense Fr 5 X 11 (452,244) (449,466)
Profit for the year NEE & F 7 435,929 575,796
Profit for the year attributable to: FRRANNEFBER :
Equity holders of the Company RRARRERFE A 12 425,171 476,832
Non-controlling interests IF 72 A% A% BR A 25 10,758 98,964
435,929 575,796
Earnings per share for profit attributable ~— ARG P& A A B(R = F 2
to equity holders of the Company, BRAR - B
in HK cents
Basic LN 13 12.74 14.29
Diluted #E 13 12.71 14.26
2014 2013
—F-—MNE _—_ZT—=F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
M = FETT TE T
Dividends % 2 14 50,108 50,068
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEmRkEMEEIER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ2=F —PF+=A=+—HIFFZ

2014 2013
—F—lE =—Z—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Profit for the year RN i A 435,929 575,796
Other comprehensive (expense)/income, BR#HEH M2 E(FAZ) WA :
net of income tax:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently B iZA[pEE# 7 E F 182 2 HA
to profit or loss:
Currency translation differences ME W =58 (56,266) 306,357
Share of exchange differences of FEAG B & A A IE =58
associated companies (430) 25,079
(56,696) 331,436
Items that will not be reclassified R Teg 2 BEEmcEA -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Loss arising on revaluation of financial FZREMEERSEARBETEZ
assets at fair value through other W EESMMEEL 2B
comprehensive income (110,626) (20,742)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for AEEHE M 2m(FIsk), A
the year (167,322) 310,694
Total comprehensive income for the year, ANFEEERTE 2 mEK A EZE
net of income tax 268,607 886,490
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for ANEEFE2EK A/ (FX)
the year attributable to: wEEEN:
Equity holders of the Company AAEREFEA 300,895 742,420
Non-controlling interests I 1% AR AR R A (32,288) 144,070
268,607 886,490
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ZEMBRAR

As at 31 December 2014 R=F—WFE+=H=+—H

2014 2013
—EF-mE =—ZZF—=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 FHET FE T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mm% REKRERE 15 150,785 141,214
Investment properties "EYE 16 1,387,079 1,235,149
Goodwill EES 17 10,073 10,107
Interests in associated companies REERNA 2R 19(a) 1,419,275 853,073
Financial assets at fair value through other F@EMEEMWFIRALE
comprehensive income FrECHBEE 23 511,643 622,269
Deferred tax assets EET I & BE 29 226,694 189,055
3,705,549 3,050,867
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 20 20,059,392 18,025,653
Amounts due from customers for contract EWEFE &4 IHE
work 21 366,651 200,334
Prepayments, trade and other receivables — TEfIFIE « & 5 & E A fE UL
KIE 22 3,315,265 1,914,110
Cash and bank deposits, restricted TRHIR e MNETER 24 488,315 115,605
Cash and bank deposits, unrestricted NZRFIIR S M ERITFER 25 5,240,461 6,102,303
29,470,084 26,358,005
Total assets EE®EHE 33,175,633 29,408,872
EQUITY iz
Share capital % 25 26 334,051 333,785
Reserves i 27 7,668,732 7,403,746
Equity attributable to equity holders of AXA S REFBABIEZER
the Company 8,002,783 7,737,531
Non-controlling interests IR RERS 4,017,680 3,606,661
Total equity R 12,020,463 11,344,192
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HEMBRRAR

As at 31 December 2014 R=F—WFE+=H=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mE —"ZT—=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 Ti# T FH T
LIABILITIES Bf&
Non-current liabilities ERTERE
Borrowings & K 28 11,524,591 8,739,607
Deferred tax liabilities RIERTHBE 29 121,062 97,748
Other liabilities HEfatfE 386 386
11,646,039 8,837,741
Current liabilities RENEE
Borrowings B 28 116,882 1,412,171
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M A 30 5,163,088 5,536,742
Deferred revenue i FE U A 31 3,857,972 2,023,791
Taxation payable JE 1t 756 18 371,189 254,235
9,509,131 9,226,939
Total liabilities BEEE 21,155,170 18,064,680
Total equity and liabilities EXRkEREESR 33,175,633 29,408,872
Net current assets mEEEFE 19,960,953 17,131,066
Total assets less current liabilities BEHERRDER 23,666,502 20,181,933

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 199 were H75ZFI19EMNFAPBRREN_-T—HF
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 20 =A-tBEEZEFSHELRETZ L HT

March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: FIANETHREKEE:
He Jianbo {d &l j§ He Xiaoli fa/MNEE
DIRECTOR E = DIRECTOR E =
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Statement of Financial Position

BA 5 1K L 3R

As at 31 December 2014 R=F—WFE+=H=+—H

2014 2013
—EF-mE =—ZF—=
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B ARKRE 18(a) 695,288 127,946
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI E G 18(b) 14,410,305 13,677,682
Other receivables A fE e FR A 22 5,573 1,347
Cash and bank deposits, unrestricted NRMBHIR S K RITF K 25 44,576 64,664
14,460,454 13,743,693
Total assets SEHEHE 15,155,742 13,871,639
EQUITY iz
Share capital N 26 334,051 333,785
Reserves fi# 27 5,115,528 4,588,841
Total Equity g k] 5,449,579 4,922,626
LIABILITIES BfE
Current liabilities REBE&RE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL NG S 18(b) 9,682,376 8,923,605
Accruals and other payables FE 5T & B & H fib fE 5 5 IE 30 23,787 25,408
Total liabilities BEEE 9,706,163 8,949,013
Total equity and liabilities R BEEEH 15,155,742 13,871,639
Net current assets mENEEFE 4,754,291 4,794,680
Total assets less current liabilities BEHBERRBDER 5,449,579 4,922,626

He Jianbo {d &l i
DIRECTOR E =

He Xiaoli fa/\EE
DIRECTOR &=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEDEBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ2=F —PF+=A=+—HIFFZ

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

FATIRERBAEL
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
FiE
B% & it ¥ BWE  REHER B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT THT TAT

(Note 27)
(P 5%27)
As at 1 January 2013 R-_ZT—=F—H—H 333,785 6,671,326 7,005,111 896,143 7,901,254
Profit for the year 4 79 3% - 476,832 476,832 98,964 575,796
Other comprehensive income for the year 4 R b 2 @& U A — 265,588 265,588 45,106 310,694
Total comprehensive income for the year, AFEER B4 2K A 458
net of tax — 742,420 742,420 144,070 886,490
Acquisition of non-controlling interest W fE — B A Al 2 FF R
in a subsidiary AR B4 25 - 9,673 9,673 (517,102)  (507,429)
Contributions from non-controlling EERBRRZEE
shareholders — — — 3,083,550 3,083,550
Employee share option benefits EEBRERF — 13,706 13,706 — 13,706
Dividends paid to shareholders of the MAAR KRR XA 2K
Company — (33,379) (33,379) — (33,379)
— (10,000) (10,000) 2,566,448 2,556,448
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A=+—H 333,785 7,403,746 7,737,531 3,606,661 11,344,192
Profit for the year F AN — 425,171 425,171 10,758 435,929
Other comprehensive expense for the year 4 R E fth 2 M — (124,276) (124,276) (43,046) (167,322)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for AEERF % EEIR A /(FX)
the year, net of tax BEE — 300,895 300,895 (32,288) 268,607
Issue of shares BT D 266 930 1,196 — 1,196
Contributions from non-controlling FERBRZEE
shareholders — — — 443,307 443,307
Employee share option benefits EEBERERTN — 13,229 13,229 — 13,229
Dividends paid to shareholders of the MARFREZFZKRE
Company — (50,068) (50,068) — (50,068)
266 (35,909) (35,643) 443,307 407,664
As at 31 December 2014 R=ZZT—WF+=—A=1+—H 334,051 7,668,732 8,002,783 4,017,680 12,020,463
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z—F —WF+=-H=+—HILFZE

2014 2013
—E—NE —T—=%F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E TFH#T FHET
Operating activities BEEH
Cash used in operations KEXBFRARS 33 (1,369,274)  (3,306,722)
Interest paid EAAE (524,550) (488,447)
Income tax paid BTSSR (549,722) (523,315)
Net cash used in operating activities KEETHFABEESFE (2,443,546)  (4,318,484)
Investing activities BEEH
Addition of investment properties RNEZEME (27) (243)
Purchase of property, plant and EEYE BELEXRE
equipment (7,517) (8,606)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant HEWSE  BEREKHE
and equipment Ffr 15 5018 35,056 —
Loan to a non-controlling shareholder of  AI— B AR Z2—%
a subsidiary FIERBRRE K (26,100) —
Repayment of loan to an associated BEERT —HEE AT
company — 234,706
Investment in an associated company R—EEE AR ZRE (382,696) —
Interest received 2 A & 78,858 62,404
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEFSH (A R/
investing activities H& 38 (302,426) 288,261
Financing activities RIEES
Net proceeds from issue of shares BATIRD PRSI F 5 1,196 —
Acquisition of additional interest of W B — ) BT B8 A B 2 B A
a subsidiary P = (507,429)
Contributions from non-controlling FEZERBEZEE
shareholders 443,307 3,083,550
New borrowings 2T B K 1,994,213 6,752,124
Repayment of borrowings EEENK (504,518) (1,581,596)
Dividends paid to the Company’s KA FARRRR R Z RS
shareholders (50,068) (33,379)
Net cash generated from financing MEZHMERLFH
activities 1,884,130 7,713,270
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash G/ 1EmiRE& RIBEE
equivalents By (861,842) 3,683,047
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUzHReRREeEEY
of year 6,102,303 2,419,256
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEGRESEEY 25 5,240,461 6,102,303
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ2=F —PF+=A=+—HIFFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Minmetals Land Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) is principally engaged in real estate
development, specialised construction, property investment and
securities investment. Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (other than Hong Kong and Macau) (the “PRC") are the
major markets for the Group’s businesses.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting amounts reported and/
or disclosures in the financial statements

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and revised HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”), amendments and new interpretation
("HK(IFRIC) — Int”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting amounts reported and/
or disclosures in the financial statements (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among them,
the amendments expand the disclosures required for an impaired
asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) whose recoverable amount is
based on fair value less costs of disposal. These new disclosures
include the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions, and valuation
techniques used which are in line with the disclosure required
by HKFRS 13. On the other hand, the amendments remove the
requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of a CGU to
which goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives had been allocated when there has been no impairment or
reversal impairment of the related CGU.

The adoption of such amendments does not have any impact
to the Group.

The application of the other new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bear Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

Financial Instruments®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exceptions

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

4 Effective for the first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or

after 1 January 2016

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

The Group has not early adopted these new and revised HKFRSs
in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
except HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Phase 1: Classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities which
was issued in 2009 and early adopted by the Group on 1
January 2011. The adoption of the above new or revised HKFRSs
is not expected to have material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKSA 11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective. The core principle of HKFRS 15 is
that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2014
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The management of the Group anticipates that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may affect the amounts reported and
related disclosures. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

Other than that,
application of the above new and revised standards and

the management anticipates that the

amendments will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, which are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting

policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2

or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirely, which are described as below:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has right, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Consolidation (Continued)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributable to the equity holder of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the equity holder of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value or,

when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expenses as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in business

combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from

a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the measurement period (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that

existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKFRS 9, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate, with the

corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the
Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at the date.

Changes in equity holdership interests in existing subsidiaries

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that s,
as transactions with the equity holders in their capacity as equity
holders. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interests and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on the initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Consolidation (Continued)
Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control

or joint control over those policies.

An investment in an associated company is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associated company. On acquisition of the investment in an
associated company, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in

the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investments in associated companies.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

Associated companies (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in the profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses of the associated companies exceeds the Group's
interest in that associated companies (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associated companies), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associated companies.

When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the scope
of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value on the date it lost significant influence over the
investee and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. Upon disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s
interest in an associated company, the difference between the
carrying amount of the associated company at the date the
Group lost significant influence the investee, and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of
a partial interest in the associated company is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associated companies
are recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to
the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associated
companies. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associated companies have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising from investments in associated
companies are recognised in the profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
identified as the executive

operating segments, has been

directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“"HK$" or “HK dollar(s)”), which is the Company’s
functional and Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of respective entities of the Group using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

—  Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings.

—  Exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

—  Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the end of
the reporting period;

— income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income accumulated in equity (and
attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Group companies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange

differences arising are recognised in equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating

sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the Group and specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described below. The Group
bases its estimates on historical result, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics

of each arrangement.

Sales of completed properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised when
the properties are delivered and titles have passed, at which time

all the following additional conditions are satisfied:

o The Group has transferred to the purchasers the significant

risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

o The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

o The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the

transaction can be measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of completed properties (Continued)

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to
meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are included
as deferred revenue under current liabilities.

Contract revenue
The accounting policy for contract revenue recognition is set out
under Construction contracts.

Operating lease rental income
Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (including
leasehold land) net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
the related costs as expenses for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Depreciation and amortisation
are recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than
properties under construction) less their residual values over their
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Amortisation
on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost to the residual values over the estimated useful
lives with annual rates as follows:

Land and buildings 2%-5%

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining period of
the lease

Machinery 5%-25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%-25%
Motor vehicles 20%-30%

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain and loss on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties, comprise land held under operating
leases and buildings are held for long-term yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the companies
comprising the Group.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by external valuers. Investment properties that are
being redeveloped for continuing use as investment properties,
or for which the market has become less active, continue to be
measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment properties reflect, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions about
rental income from future leases in the light of current market
conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’'s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance costs are expensed in the profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Gains and losses arising from fair value changes on investment

properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes. Property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property is carried at fair value. Where
fair value is not reliably determinable, such investment property
under construction is measured at cost until the fair value
becomes reasonably determinable or construction is completed
(whichever is earlier).

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has been changed, any
differences between the carrying amount and the fair value of
this item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as a
revaluation of property, plant and equipment under HKAS 16.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss,
the gain is recognised in the profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associated
companies represents the excess of the consideration transferred
over the Company’'s interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the

acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation or
depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: those to be measured subsequently at fair value,
and those to be measured at amortised cost. This classification
depends on whether the financial asset is an equity investment
or a debt.

Debt investments — Financial assets at amortised cost

A debt investment is classified as financial assets at amortised
cost only if both of the following criteria are met: the objective
of the Group’s business model is to hold the asset to collect the
contractual cash flows; and the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding. The nature of any
derivatives embedded in the debt investment are considered in
determining whether the cash flows of the investment are solely
payment of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
and are not accounted for separately. The Group’s financial
assets at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables
and cash and bank deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Equity investments

All equity investments are measured at fair value. Equity
investments that are held for trading are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. For all other equity investments, the
Group can make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
recognise changes in fair value through other comprehensive
The Group’s equity
investments comprise financial assets at fair value through other

income rather than profit or loss.

comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the financial
asset is derecognised or impaired and through the amortisation

process using the effective interest rate method.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has irrevocably elected
to present unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent recycling of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as long as they represent a return on investment.

The Group is required to reclassify all affected debt investments
when and only when its business model for managing those

assets changes.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured
at amortised cost is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of

the asset (a

impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults. The amount
of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The amount
of the provision is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss within administrative expenses. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
administrative expenses in the profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories represent properties under development and

completed properties held for sales.

Properties under development and completed properties held for
sales are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Development cost of properties comprises cost of land use
rights, construction costs and borrowing costs incurred during
the construction period.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling expenses
and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal

operating cycle.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Construction contracts

The Group uses the “percentage of completion method” to
determine the appropriate amount to be recognised in a given
period. The stage of completion is measured by reference to
cost incurred to date as a percentage of total contract cost.
Costs incurred in the period in connection with future activity
are presented as inventories, prepayments or other assets,
depending on their nature. Variations in contract work, claims
and incentive payments are included to the extent that the
amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered
probable.

Contract costs are recognised when incurred. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable. When the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated reliably and it is
probable that the contract will be profitable, contract revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract. When it is probable
that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amounts due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid by
customers and retentions are included within trade and other
receivables.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amounts due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associated companies operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Current and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax

Inside basis differences
Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Group’s financial
statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40
Investment Property, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences

associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Current and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or paternity
leaves are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

Group companies participate in various defined contribution
pension schemes. The schemes are generally funded through
payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense in the profit or loss. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted at the grant date. The total amount
expensed is recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied and based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the employee share based
compensation reserve.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when the
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the Group's financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.
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FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

(a)

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash

flow interest-rate risk, fair value interest-rate risk and

equity securities price risk for financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive income), credit risk and

liquidity risk. These risks are managed by the Group's

financial management policies and practices as described

below to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group'’s

financial performance.

(i)

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. Majority of the
subsidiaries of the Group operates in the PRC, with
most of their transactions denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from the exposure of RMB against United
State dollar (“US$”). It has not hedged its foreign
exchange rate risk.

In addition, the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the exchange rate, and
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 December 2014, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against US$ with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$45,000 (2013: HK$24,543,000)
higher/lower mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is different from the
functional currency of the Group’s entities.
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Cash flow interest-rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest-rate risk arises from
borrowings issued at variable rates. The Group
maintains a close relationship and communicates
regularly with its finance providers to explore
financing alternatives to monitor and mitigate
interest-rate risk.

HK dollar-denominated

If interest rates on

borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, (i) pre-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would be HK$21,460,000 (2013: HK$25,668,000)
lower/higher in respect of the net finance cost
charged to the profit or loss; and (ii) properties
under development would be increased/
decreased by approximately HK$57,420,000 (2013:
HK$42,485,000) for finance cost capitalised into
properties under development.

If interest rates on RMB-denominated borrowings
had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, (i) pre-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2014 would be
HK$507,000 (2013: HK$636,000) lower/higher in
respect of the net finance cost charged to the
profit or loss; and (ii) properties under development
would be increased/decreased by approximately
HK$11,056,000 (2013: HK$6,713,000) for finance
cost capitalised into properties under development.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to other borrowings issued at fixed rate.
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

Equity securities price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because of investments held by the Group and
classified on the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value. If the market value of the
equity securities held by the Group increased or
decreased by 10% and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s equity would increase
or decrease by approximately HK$51,164,000 (2013:
HK$62,227,000) as at 31 December 2014.
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

Credit risk
The Group's credit risk primarily arises from deposits
with banks,
guarantees provided in respect of mortgage facilities
(Note 34).

trade and other receivables and

The credit risk on deposits with banks is limited
because the counterparties are banks with sound
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s financial
position, past history of making payments and take
into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
Monitoring procedures have been implemented to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade and
other receivables at the end of the reporting period
to ensure adequate provision for impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has arranged bank financing for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers
for repayments. If a purchaser defaults on the
payment of its mortgage during the term of the
guarantee, the Group is able to retain the property
sales proceeds received from the purchasers and
sell the property to recover any amounts paid by
the Group to the bank. In this regard, the Group
considers that the credit risk is minimal.

4.

HHEEREEREREREE)

(a)

MEEER(E)

(i) EEEE
AEBEZEERBREZRER
TER B5KEMEWRFKIE

AR RBEERHZER
(B 5E34) -

BRARTERZEERRIER
ER REERZHHARER
REEFBBRERTERE
EFRzRT - REFHREAM
RKFEMES  FEHEEE
BR-—SBZAATPETHE
PIEER MG  ZEFEFEIR
BEPZMBAR - BEERT
% WEBEPZEEEFIA
KR P EEEEHRE B
RE - —RMs  AKETE
AEPIRGEMERR - N&E
EEEREZEERF - BARRKR
RETBHUREAMER - It
S AEERHREHRRBEY
EERNE SR EMERFTIELZ
AU E 5 RR o DARE AR B AT I
B & % 1F 1 2 498 8 & B #
e

AEBERETHMEEMLZE
REHFRITHME WHERZ
EERBHREMER - HERAE
EROBERRBNZK - AR
SERREEEPUIR ZME
HEMSHIR  YHYMELE
REEAREERENTRITZE
Bepltms  AEERBE
B &R -

EWERARAT —T—mEER | 117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M5 R R Mt aE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ2=F —PF+=A=+—HIFFE

4,

118

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Company’s credit risk primarily arises from
the amounts due from subsidiaries. The Company
considers the credit risk is minimal because the
subsidiaries are financially capable and management
does not expect any significant losses from non-
performance of the subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk
Prudent
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of

liquidity risk management implies
funding through an adequate amount of credit
facilities. Management aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping credit lines available.
Management monitors the rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity reserve (comprising undrawn
borrowing facilities (Note 28(a)) and cash and bank
balances (Note 25) on the basis of expected cash

flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities at amortised cost and
corporate guarantees to subsidiaries (Note 34) into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including both interest and principal).
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4.

— —
FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT 4. HHBERAREZERER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BAFBEEEEE)
(ifii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) TEVE 2 Bl FE ()
Between 1 Between 2
Within and and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
—ER —ZWE WMERE HEWUE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH T FHIT FH T
THE GROUP ARE
As at 31 December 2014 R=-FT—HNE+=A=+—H
Borrowings f& & 570,568 5,024,912 6,575,455 1,169,533
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b & 3B 3,083,296 — — —
Amounts due to non-controlling FE A5 BT B8 1 ] FE R A%
shareholders of subsidiaries % 3R 2 B IE 664,715 — — —
Amounts due to associated companies & {3 B & A 7] 2 ZIB 1,396,553 — — —
5,715,132 5,024,912 6,575,455 1,169,533
As at 31 December 2013 R=-F—=%+=-H=+—H
Borrowings % 1,747,338 2,942,548 5,766,325 1,284,405
Trade and other payables B RkHMENKE 2,660,636 — — —
Amounts due to non-controlling JE A B BB 1 R 3E £ AR
shareholders of subsidiaries B% R 2 3R E 1,771,232 — — —
Amounts due to associated companies &< B & R &) 2 FKIB 1,088,226 — — —
7,267,432 2,942,548 5,766,325 1,284,405
THE COMPANY AATF
As at 31 December 2014 R-F—HmFE+=-HA=+—H
Financial guarantees to subsidiaries wTHBRRZMBER 7,938,731 — — —
Other payables H A fE A RE 23,787 — — —
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB RRZ 5K\ 9,682,376 — — —
17,644,894 — — —
As at 31 December 2013 R=-F—=%+=-HA=+—H
Financial guarantees to subsidiaries BTHEBLRR B ER 6,841,674 — — —
Other payables H i FE A RRIE 25,408 — — —
Amounts due to subsidiaries K ERRZ KA 8,923,605 — — —
15,790,687 — — —

The table above excludes guarantees given to banks
for mortgage facilities granted to certain purchasers
of the Group’s properties (Notes 4(a)(ii) and 34) as
management considers the risk as minimal.
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FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The total equity and borrowings of the Group represents
the capital structure of the Group. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and bank deposits.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were
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as follows: +—HZEXBELRDOT:
2014 2013
—E—NE —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT T& T
Total borrowings Rk 11,641,473 10,151,778
Less: Cash and bank deposits IR e RIEBTER (5,728,776) (6,217,908)
Net debt (EW -] 5,912,697 3,933,870
Total equity Hm AT 12,020,463 11,344,192
Gearing ratio ERBEL 49% 35%
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Fair value estimation

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of
trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair values of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes are estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
The financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise primarily equity
securities listed in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2014,
equity securities amounting to HK$511,643,000 (2013:
HK$622,269,000) are measured at fair value and based on
qguoted market prices of an active market (Level 1) at the
end of the reporting period. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price.

In estimating the fair value of a non-financial asset or
a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to
the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engaged third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of investment properties. Note 16 provides
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value of investment properties.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing uncertainty to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities are discussed below:

Investment properties

Independent valuers were engaged to carry out an independent
valuation of the Group’s investment property portfolio as at
31 December 2014. The fair value of each investment property
is individually determined at the end of the reporting period
based on market value assessment, on an existing use basis. The
valuers have relied on the income capitalisation approach as its
primary method, supported by the direct comparison method.
These methodologies are based on the estimation of future
results and a set of assumptions specific to each property to
reflect its tenancy and cashflow profile. The fair value of each
investment property reflects, among other things, rental income
from current leases and assumptions about rental income from
future leases in the light of current market conditions. The fair
value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that
could be expected in respect of the property.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’'s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the Directors have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has
not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties as the Group is not subject to any income
taxes on the fair value changes of the investment properties on
disposal.

Goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 3. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates (Note 17).

If the estimated discount rate applied to the discounted
cash flows for the Group’s CGUs had been 1% higher than
management’s estimates or no growth rate had been applied
to the revenue, the Group would not recognise any impairment
against goodwill for the year (2013: Nil).

Construction contracts in progress

As explained in the accounting policy stated in Note 3, revenue
and profit recognition on an incomplete project is dependent on
estimating the total cost of the construction contract, as well
as the revenue estimated to date. Based on the Group's recent
experience and nature of the construction activities undertaken
by the Group, the Group makes estimates of the point at which
it considers the work is sufficiently advanced such that revenue
and cost can be reliably estimated. Actual outcomes in terms of
revenue and cost may be higher or lower than estimated at the
end of the reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised.

b7 €8 = 5T i 5 & FIER (4R)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in the PRC and
Hong Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Employee share option benefit

The fair value of options granted is estimated by independent
professional valuers. The value calculated requires use of
assumption on expected volatility, expected life of options,
expected dividend rate, excluding impact of any non-market
vesting conditions, which generally represents the best estimate
of the fair value of the share options at the date of grant.

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from the sale of properties
held for sale as disclosed in Note 3. It takes into consideration
when the construction of relevant properties has been
completed, the properties have been delivered to the purchasers
and collectability of related consideration is reasonably assured.
In most cases, the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
coincides with the date when the equitable interest in the
property vests with the purchasers upon release of the respective
property to the purchasers.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence on
impairment loss of trade and other receivables, the management
considers the aging analysis of the receivables and the estimation
of future cash flows to be recovered from these receivables. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor.
The amount of the impairment of receivables is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flow.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
Operating segments

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the

executive Directors. The executive Directors review the Group’s

internal financial reports in order to assess performance and

allocate resources. The executive Directors have determined the

operating segments based on these reports as follows:

Real estate

development: properties

Development of residential and commercial

Design, installation and selling of curtain walls
and aluminum windows, doors and other

Holding of properties to generate rental
income and to gain from the appreciation

in properties’ values in the long-term

Specialised
construction:
materials
Property
investment:
Securities Investment of securities
investment:

Revenue (represents turnover) comprised the following:

7 8 &E #
T 5
IERERFRECHRARGTES -
T8 B AR 2 AR - AR
ERARDEAR - HITEECRIEZ

s RETIEEH 8
FHERR: REATRAANE

FRRE: R REREERER
£% - FIRAfLDH

MERA:  BENEUEBALK
A BREETE - &
ZESIET S TE

BHRA: RABS

WA X% BEATER:

2014 2013

—F—lE —ZT—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Sales of properties X kS 4,844,750 4,734,704

Revenue from specialised construction BEEBRZESHOWRA

contracts 1,071,319 1,109,648
Rental and management fee income from HEWEZHEREEEW A

investment properties 67,565 61,502

5,983,634 5,905,854
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b 4| — —
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. TEEE(E)
. . TR 2 =
Operating segments (Continued) KEIEE)
Segment revenue and results DEHBRARES
Real estate Specialised
development construction Property investment  Securities investment Total
BRHEER BRER MERE HHRE ag
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—¥-ME —2-=F Z¥-ME “T-=F Z¥-NE “F-=F ZF-MF “T-=F “¥-NE “F-=F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL fTEr TER Tz TER TEz TR TEr TER @ TER
Revenue WA
Total segment revenue PHBRALE 4,844,750 4,734,704 1,173,189 1,123,117 69,913 63,456 — — 6,087,852 5921277
Inter-segment revenue AEEKA — — (101,870)  (13,469) (2,348) (1,954) — — (104,218)  (15,423)
Sales to external customers HINEFHE 4,844,750 4,734,704 1,071,319 1,109,648 67,565 61,502 - — 5,983,634 5,905,854
Results 4
Segment results NEPEE 587,819 979,510 57122 (22,428) 217,360 223,196 21,884 16,072 884,185 1,196,350
Unallocated corporate AOBEERR
expenses, net FE (192,961)  (181,541)
691,224 1,014,809
Finance income B A 78,858 62,404
Finance costs BB A (65,845)  (107,213)
Share of results of associated ~ AMEHE AR EE
companies 183,936 55,262
Profit before tax BBATERN 888,173 1,025,262
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Operating segments (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

Real estate Specialised
development construction
ERERR Bxgs

2014 2013 2014 2013

“E-NF —Z-=F “F-0F —F-=F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TEAT TER THT

78 E ()
EEDBERE)
PHEEREE

Property investment  Securities investment Total
MERE HHRE ag
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z8-0NF —T-=F -“B-0OF —T-=F “B-MOF -T-=%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T#ERT TET TER  ThET  TER FAT

1,409,257 1,247,270 511,643 622,269 30,685,189 27,435,052

Assets BE
Segment assets NHEE 27,475,652 24,639,097 1,288,637 926,416
Unallocated corporate assets ~ AR EREEE
Total assets BELE
Liabilities B
Segment liabiliies AHEME 19288201 16,641,456 938,689 649,044

2,490,444 1,973,820

33,175,633 29,408,872

21,110 19,998 = — 20,248,000 17,310,498

Unallocated corporate liabilities &2 B A&E

Total liabilities aELes

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, goodwill, inventories,
receivables and operating cash but exclude items such as bank
deposits for corporate use and deferred tax assets. Segment
liabilities comprise all operating liabilities but exclude items such
as taxation.

907,170 754,182

21,155,170 18,064,680

DHWEETREREME  BERRE &
BYE BE FE BRUREREER
2 BEAERELEREZIRTERRK
ERERAEEESTHRRE - D HEEREME
EERE BTEREME-
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

6. STEAF(E)

Operating segments (Continued) BESER(E)
Other segment information Hfth 7 B & ¥
Real estate Specialised
development construction Property investment  Securities investment Unallocated Total
RHEER EES L MERE ARG ARE aE
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z¥-ME —F-=F Z¥F-0f —T-=F “F-0Ef —T-=F Z¥-MF —T-=F “¥-MF —T-=F “¥-MF —T-=F
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TET TEr TER TAr TER TExr TEx ThAx TEx ThEx  FER  TiEx
Interests in associated REE AR Z
companies B 1419275 853,073 - — - — - — — — 1419275 853,073
Capital expenditures BAME 2726 1429 3718 6150 302 881 = = 798 389 7584 8849
Depreciation recognised in the REABHERS
consolidated statement of ~ HERZ T E
profit or loss 5,542 6,670 3,406 2,473 598 619 - — 2,147 2,032 11,693 11,794
Fair value changes on REWE
investment properties MEED - — - — 160,085 169,417 - — - — 160,085 169,417
Impairment loss REBE 75,986 - = 3,191 - - - - - — 75986 3,191
Geographical information ih @ & B
The Group operates its businesses in two main geographical REBEZEBEZS DR ME MR LS
areas:
Hong Kong: Specialised construction, property investment and EE BEXEEE MERERES
securities investment ®"E
The PRC: Real estate development and specialised R FHEZERRBEERE
construction
In presenting geographical information, sales are presented RET|MERELE  HEZ2IEBEEFZ
based on the geographical locations of the customers. Total HMEVEAREE - ERDEELATE LS
non-current assets are presented based on the geographical SR B EFRE 2R B A E X o
locations of the assets.
Hong Kong The PRC Total
i hE ELE
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—EF—NE —T—=F Z¥T-—-NE —_T—=F ZFT-—-0NFE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT FHET FHEIT FTHET FHET
External sales HINHE 240,816 179,715 5,742,818 5,726,139 5,983,634 5,905,854
Total non-current assets FnBEELTE 1,998,315 1,950,733 1,480,540 911,079 3,478,855 2,861,812
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

7. XEE@H

2014 2013
—T-mE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHE T
Advertising and other promotional costs & T E fth HE E K AR 288,985 184,907
Cost of properties sold BE H Y KA 3,786,437 3,385,048
Cost of specialised construction BEFERARN 959,388 1,068,601
Depreciation e 11,693 11,794
Auditor’s remuneration = EE B & 3,930 3,730
Direct out-goings arising from investment I SWAZZE 2
properties that generated rental income BEERAX 11,058 9,750
Employee benefit expense (including BERIMFAX (BREZH<)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) (Pt 3£9) 135,807 165,385
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BMERZEHERE
equipment — 1,381
Legal and professional fees ERREXEER 11,952 14,410
Operating lease charges — minimum lease =EMHEEBH —E@ LT REF
payment in respect of land and buildings 2 &K & & 31,567 24,074
Provision for impairment of trade and other & 5 K £ ftb [ U 3k 18 5l E B 15
receivables 1,921 3,191
Provision for impairment of inventories FEREEE 74,065 —
Net exchange loss P& W B 18 F 58 2,023 38,125
OTHER GAINS, NET 8. Hithlrss - iF#
2014 2013
—F—lE =—ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FA T
Government subsidies BT & B 2,537 12,949
Dividend income i B &= 21,895 16,133
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEKRERER
equipment 13,124 —
Others Hh 12,032 7,006
49,588 36,088
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I

0

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

9. EEEFXZH

2014 2013
—T-mE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T FHE T
Wages, salaries and bonus TE& - Fa REA 202,860 213,445
Provision for/(reversal of provision for) long & EJRRS & B /(B [@)
service payment 319 (138)
Pension costs — defined contribution plans B KA — 58 H G2
(Note 32) (B 5£32) 19,164 19,779
Share option benefits B8 % #E 43 7 13,229 13,706
235,572 246,792
Less: amount capitalised as properties under & : JA & A{b 77 =X # A Z &
development Y% 2 &5 (34,124) (31,376)
Less: amount included in cost of sales W ETAHEKRK AN Z &/ (53,214) (38,817)
Less: amount included in advertising and & : 5T A B & K H il HEE K AR
other promotional costs e (12,427) (11,214)
135,807 165,385
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9. EERFAZHE)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEWML
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 BHE-Z—HNF+-_A=1+—HIHF
December 2014 is set out below: B ARRZERTZHMEMT
Employer’s
Salaries contribution Share
and Discretionary to pension option
Fees allowances bonuses scheme  benefits Total
Name of Directors B 2EtE ]
EEHE HE HEREMK B8 TE AL U R 3 A (R |
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTHERT FTERT FTHERT FERT FTERT
Mr. Sun Xiaomin (note (i)) TR B IR 5 A4 (P X)) — — — — 447 447
Mr. He Jianbo* ] R %5 A * — 3,352 850 114 658 4,974
Mr. Yin Liang FEAE — 2,755 600 97 499 3,951
Ms. He Xiaoli /B L — 2,455 550 83 476 3,564
Mr. Tian Jingqi REELE — — — — 385 385
Mr. Liu Zeping 28 F & A — — — — 333 333
Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel MBS E 350 — — — — 350
Mr. Selwyn Mar BRELE 360 — — — = 360
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria BERX L 360 — — — — 360
1,070 8,562 2,000 294 2,798 14,724
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9. EEEFZHE)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEME(E)
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 BHE_ZT—=F+-HA=+—HBIL#F
December 2013 is set out below: B ARRSEE M0 T
Employer’s
Salaries contribution Share
and  Discretionary to pension option
Fees  allowances bonuses scheme benefits Total
Name of Directors BIREEE 8 % 7
EENE wWe HaeKkERL B 15 1 4T [ZES N 1& A “EE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAT FAET F& T FET FH& T FABT
Mr. Sun Xiaomin RERLE — — — — 463 463
Mr. He Jianbo* ] &l 357 4 A * — 3,217 1,000 109 681 5,007
Mr. Yin Liang F5s 50 A — 2,670 700 93 517 3,980
Ms. He Xiaoli fl/NE &L — 2,382 650 79 493 3,604
Mr. Tian Jingqi mERE — — — — 399 399
Mr. Liu Zeping 281 ¢ e & — — — — 345 345
Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel MBS E 350 — — — = 350
Mr. Selwyn Mar BBRELE 360 — — — — 360
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria BEERLL 360 — — — — 360
1,070 8,269 2,350 281 2,898 14,868
During the year, no Directors waived or agreed to waive FRN VWEEEFHNEXRENEL
any emoluments (2013: Nil). e (—E—=F: &)
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to FA-AEEREMNEWNES I
the Directors as an inducement to join or as compensation Bl & ER RS MAREE 2 RE) sk
for loss of office (2013: Nil). EEMBBE(CCE —=F &)
The executive director marked “*" above is considered as EEFZHITEEERAAEE 2
chief executive of the Group. ITERARE -
Note: B -
(i) Resigned on 18 March 2015 (i) R-E-—AF=ZA+N\B#E
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9.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest-paid individuals
In 2014, five highest-paid individuals in the Group include
three (2013: three) Directors. These directors’ emoluments
are disclosed in (a) above. Details of the emoluments of
the remaining two (2013: two) individuals are as follows:

9.

& & & 7 32 th (48)

(b)) ABREHMAL

R-ZT—F  KE

B 1% & = % B

ATHFBR=2(CFT—=F:=4)
ARARIEF BTSN EXE@AE
PHRE HEBME(CTE—=F M

BIANTZHEFHIBAOT -
2014 2013
—E-lmE =—ZF—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHEIT FHET
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 4,327 4,276
Bonuses 14T 870 900
Employer’s contributions to pension schemes E K& 5t 2|18 EH A 138 128
Share option benefits HE i 7 4= 7 952 987
6,287 6,291
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B eEEmT
2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT—=
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7t & 3,500,000
BT 2 2
2 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
these individuals as an inducement to join or as compensation
for loss of office (2013: Nil).

The emoluments of senior management are disclosed in (a) and
(b) above.

FA-AEEBERNZFALINMEE
RBRBIMAREE 2 BB KR BB E

—E—=F )

°

b
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10. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 10. AR B B &
2014 2013
—F-mE "—"T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T FHB T
Finance income B 75 0 A
Interest income from bank deposits AT A B WA 77,833 60,860
Interest income from loan to a non- W —HNB AR —%4
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary FEERBRRE R 2FEHBA 1,025 —
Interest income from loan to an associated ~ HHL— Rt & AR ER 2
company A2 A — 1,544
78,858 62,404
Finance costs B 755 B AR
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within ~ ZBRAFRNBHEE 2
five years R 1T 18 3K 295,236 213,371
Other borrowings wholly repayable within ~ ERAFNBHEE 2
five years H A & 5K 166,213 231,915
Other borrowings not wholly repayable TERDERNEBHREEZ
within five years = 63,101 43,161
524,550 488,447
Less: Amount capitalised as properties under & : A & Z&R1{b 77 =X %5 A 3 &
development (note (i) W) % 7 & 78 (M &£ G)) (458,705) (381,234)
65,845 107,213
Note: B 5
(i) Borrowing costs were capitalised at rates ranging from 2.74% to 6.50% (i) ERKAIRERNRH274E650B(ZFE—=
(2013: 2.78% to 7.38%) per annum. F:278%8738E) FIAE R -
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11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable
profit for the year or has sufficient tax losses brought forward to
offset current year’s assessable profit (2013: Nil). PRC enterprise
income tax has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year derived in the PRC at the rate of 25% (2013:
25%).

Land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including costs of land and development and construction

expenditures.

11.

Fir 45 $i B 32

RN 55 B AN 4F [E 7 4 (F 1] F& 2R B 0% 7
SARBEBEEEUNREEFREREZ
HErERT EN - I BN RS B W
RABBEBFNEGEIELEMEEG (2T —
=FE) PEGEMEHRIIAREEIR
B B 2 & FE AR B F R25% (=& —
=4 :25%) 2T EETH o

THEERBE L HEE R (EIHE
YT S RIBINBR AT IR X (B 1 i
RARBERKEREST ) RREREI0%
Z60% B -

2014 2013
—E—HmE =—ZT—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FE T

Current tax — PRC BNHARE I — R
Enterprise income tax TEMEH 278,668 214,788
Land appreciation tax T IR E 187,217 188,802
465,885 403,590
Deferred tax (Note 29) i € 56 18 (B 5529) (13,641) 45,876
452,244 449,466
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11.

Tax charge on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as

P 1% %t b 32 (48)

AR B BAER 2 BURRY - R
R R R A TR 2 0k R 2 0 P B K
HEFRSEREEIERMT

follows:
2014 2013
—F-lmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Profit before tax B 52 A 2 A 888,173 1,025,262
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates % 53 FA R AR A B R % ) 2
applicable to profits in the respective BB RAE 1B
countries 182,226 202,605
Land appreciation tax 4 AR 187,217 188,802
Deferred tax on undistributed profits Rk s F) 2 3 3T 7 18 23,945 —
Tax effect of land appreciation tax T IR E R 2 S & (38,411) (37,310)
Tax effect of share of results of associated D 1EHE ARIEE 2 HRIEFT £
companies (45,984) (13,815)
Income not subject to tax AR 2 WA (34,990) (35,392)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A 40 %: 2 B X 89,612 104,064
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax ) T Al K ¥ 32 2 Bt 15 E5 48
losses (430) (13,869)
Unrecognised tax losses RIER BB 89,059 54,381
Tax charge 758 38 i X 452,244 449,466

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 20.5% (2013:
19.8%). The year-on-year change is primarily caused by a change
in the relative profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
respective regions.

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE  12.

COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company includes
a profit of approximately HK$562,596,000 (2013: loss of
approximately HK$109,799,000) dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.
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13.

14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE — BASIC AND DILUTED

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company divided by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares granted under
the Company’s share option schemes.

13.

BREF - BEEXRiES
BRERRF AL TRBESE AR
R L B BT AR 2 T R
B -

IR EE AT TR B EE BT E BB
BT IR A B R 8 RN A R IR 3T &)
THE I 2 5 258 0 0 7 0 R

T

2014 2013
—T-mFE —FT—=

Weighted average number of ordinary shares = %717 & 3@ % A4 F 159 % &0 (T %)

in issue (thousands shares) 3,338,458 3,337,853
Adjustment for share options (thousands &% % 4% 38 & (T %)

shares) 5,471 7,041
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R &t & & i% 858 & F) 2 i/ i

for diluted earnings per share (thousands A1 5 B% £k (F %)

shares) 3,343,929 3,344,894
Profit attributable to equity holders of the 7N &A%+ B A & 15 & A

Company (HK$'000) (FHT) 425,171 476,832
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREAREF B 12.74 14.29
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FREFRF (BL) 12.71 14.26

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.5 cents (2013: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share. Such
dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 28 May 2015.
These consolidated financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.

Dividend recognised as distribution and paid during the year
ended 31 December 2014 amounted to HK$50,068,000 (2013:
HK$33,379,000).

14.

iz B
EEERRNABRESRERKISE
(T —=F:1581) - ZERBER
BERR-_ZE-—HAFAATNBEITZR
REFAGLME - ZEREMBREA
I B 2Bk bt AN AR S e

REBEEZZT—EHFF+A=+—HBIEHF
E EBRAADIEREINZKRE AR
50,068,0007% 7T (=& — =4 : 33,379,000
B IT) °
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERRE
Movements in property, plant and equipment are as follows: M BMERKBEZEFSHWNT
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings improvements Machinery equipment vehicles Total
HE A
T RiEF MELKE W KERRE =24 7 A
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAT FHxT FTHT TFTHT

Year ended 31 December 2014 HBE_—F—[M
+-A=+—BiLEE

Opening net book amount FHEREFE 112,590 3,440 5,344 11,504 8,336 141,214
Exchange differences b N = (161) (8) 17) (42) (33) (261)
Additions NE = 1,040 692 3,294 2,491 7,517
Transfer from inventories HEaER 27,758 — — — — 27,758
Transfer from investment EEEREDME

properties 8,182 — — — — 8,182
Disposals L& (21,350) — (121) (54) (407) (21,932)
Depreciation e (1,856) (1,395) (851) (4,116)  (3,475) (11,693)
Closing net book amount FRE@EFE 125,163 3,077 5,047 10,586 6,912 150,785
At 31 December 2014 WZZE—NFE+=A=+—H
Cost DN 130,758 9,588 10,658 27,937 19,252 198,193
Accumulated depreciation and REMERRE

impairment (5,595) (6,511) (5,611) (17,351) (12,340) (47,408)
Net book amount B EF B 125,163 3,077 5,047 10,586 6,912 150,785

Year ended 31 December 2013 H#EZE_-FT—=%
+=ZA=+—HLEE

Opening net book amount FYRE®FE 109,204 3,951 5,310 11,248 9,813 139,526
Exchange differences & =5 698 75 140 400 194 1,507
Additions NE — 1,305 1,682 4,067 1,552 8,606
Transfer from investment EHRBIREYE

properties 4,750 — — — — 4,750
Disposals & — (233) (1,046) (102) —  (1,381)
Depreciation e (2,062) (1,658) (742) (4,109)  (3,223) (11,794)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 112,590 3,440 5,344 11,504 8,336 141,214
At 31 December 2013 R=ZE—=F+=-A=+—H
Cost BN 119,726 8,641 10,121 26,031 22,112 186,631
Accumulated depreciation and 2T ERRE

impairment (7,136) (5,201) (4,777) (14,527)  (13,776) (45,417)
Net book amount BREFE 112,590 3,440 5,344 11,504 8,336 141,214

38 Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2014



15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 15.

At the end of both reporting periods, the Group’s buildings are
erected on land under medium-terms and long-terms in Hong
Kong and long-terms lease in the PRC respectively.

Land and buildings with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$Nil (2013: HK$82,964,000) have been pledged as collaterals
for bank borrowings (Note 28(a)).

ME BERREGEE)
RRESRESEHKRA  AEBEFHRRE
BRPEBEFHARRARRABEE +
i - B o

BREENTET(ZT—=%F 82,964,000
B2 THEEBFTEERIERRITER
Z B (£ 28() -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. &Y%
2014 2013
—F-lmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
At beginning of the year F 4 1,235,149 1,070,239
Transfer to land and buildings ERE T RETF (8,182) (4,750)
Additions NE 27 243
Increase in fair value recognised in profit ~ AEZNER Z AR BN
or loss 160,085 169,417
At end of the year FR 1,387,079 1,235,149
The carrying amounts of investment properties are analysed as REMEZHREEITOT :
follows:
2014 2013
—F-lmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
In Hong Kong, held under medium-term MNRES  EPHBELNER
leases (between 10 to 50 years) (10 &50%F) 780,400 701,000
In Hong Kong, held under long-term leases fZ A& B @ HERHBHELOFF
(over 50 years) (B #B504F) 606,679 534,149
1,387,079 1,235,149
Investment properties with carrying amounts of approximately FEEENE B =T — = F:

HK$Nil (2013: HK$1,205,100,000) have been pledged as
collaterals for bank borrowings (Note 28(a)).

1,205,100,0008 70) 2 I E M EE B # 1E
AR ITE R 2 R & (K 5E28@)) °
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16.

140

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16. &YX (E)
The investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2014 REMER_ZE—NOF+_HAH=T—HZ
by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, independent valuers. B {8 1 B 7 14 B Bl B A8 Hr & & 5 fh B 9
The valuation for completed investment properties, was arrived BERAREHEE BRIREVENGE
at by considering the reversionary potential of the properties BNZEEMEZAEFZBNXDEZEAE
or, where appropriate, by reference to market evidence of EEMEELERAE ERUNERT
transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations R 5 e
and conditions.
Details of the Group's investment properties and information RZZE—NE+ZA=+—0 A5EE
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2014 are as EMERAABEERERDAT
follows:
Fair value as
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 at 31.12.2014
ARE
R-F—NE
E—8 B8 E=#%H +=—H=+-—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FAET FHET
In Hong Kong, held under R ES  HPHELD
medium-term leases (between  #4 (105 &504F)
10 to 50 years) — — 780,400 780,400
In Hong Kong, held under long- 2R BB @ ERHHEL
term leases (over 50 years) A (B iBE509F) — 33,379 573,300 606,679

There were no transfers into or out of Levels 2 to 3 during the
year.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 2 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Investment
properties held
by the Group in
the consolidated
statement of
financial position

GEMBRART
FRERFEFZ
RENE

Fair value
hierarchy

Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

ARERE HEHAREAIEARR

16. IRAMER)

Relationship of

Significant unobservable inputs for
unobservable input(s) fair value
TORREABRE

EXTURRZEBARE ALEZRHE

Sensitivity

EqE

Property 1 in
Hong Kong
EENE

Level 3
F=R

Direct comparison method and income method

BEELBERBAR

The key inputs are:
BREAMER:

1. Reversionary yield; and
LESREE: R

2. Market unit rent of individual unit
2. AR B THEMES

Reversionary yield, taking
into account annual unit

market rental income value
and unit market value
of the comparable AR

properties of 5%

EHRRE ZRUAL
EMEZFREEMTS
e WA REMTIHE
1E.25%

Market unit rent,
using direct market
comparables and taking value
into account of similar
character, location and =)
sizes.

misENHE  KRER
MELRERT AZER
B LERR
o

BHERERER

mEELESEE

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair

RAE

The higher the market unit
rent, the higher the fair

AR

If the reversionary yield to the
valuation model is 50 basis point
higher/lower while all the other
variables were held constant,
the carrying value of Property 1
would decrease by approximately
HK$54,800,000 and increase by
approximately HK$68,000,000
respectively.

ffEEEA 2 EFRERER /T
RSOEEE - K2 BRET
B AMKIZEEEER TR
2 5114754,800,0007% 7T & 1 A1 43
68,000,000/ 7T °

If the market unit rent to the
valuation model is 2.5% higher/
lower, while all the other variables
were held constant, the carrying
value of Property 1 would increase
by approximately HK$13,300,000
and decrease by approximately
HK$13,500,000 respectively.

EEEANTEENES A/
TFE2.5% « 142 BRF T
g AMFINFEEERHFIE
A#713,300,0007% 70 JA & T B& 40
13,500,000 7T ©
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

142

Investment
properties held
by the Group in
the consolidated

Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

ARERE HEHARAIBARR

16. IXAME (&)

Significant
unobservable input(s)

EXTUREZBAUE

Relationship of

unobservable inputs for

fair value

R 51PN ¢

AREZHE

Sensitivity

EHE

statement of Fair value

financial position hierarchy

FEMBRARS

FREFRFEZ

REYE

Property 2 in Level 3
Hong Kong F=H

ENeEIEY)

Other properties in  Level 2
Hong Kong E-
ERAMLYE

Direct comparison method and income method

BERLBERBRAE

The key inputs are:
BREABER:

1. Reversionary yield; and
LESREE: R

2. Market unit rent of individual unit
2. BRI B ATHEMEE

Direct comparison method based on market

Reversionary yield, taking
into account annual unit
market rental income
and unit market value
of the comparable
properties of 5%

EEWEE ZERTEL
BNEZEEEUTS
HEWARBATSE
H25%

Market unit rent,
using direct market
comparables and taking
into account of similar
character, location and
sizes.

misENHE  KRER
MELREEY BEERE
MBS LERR
o

N/A

observable transactions of similar properties 7~ i@ A

and adjust to reflect the conditions and

locations of the subject property.

EERBEEREUNEZTETERR S
VEBBARRZDE ZGITRLE -
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The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair

value
BEREEAE -
AR

RAE

The higher the market unit
rent, the higher the fair

value
misELEeHS
Ba

N/A
@A

CRARE

If the reversionary yield to the
valuation model is 50 basis point
higher/lower while all the other
variables were held constant,
the carrying value of Property 2
would decrease by approximately
HK$74,700,000 and increase by
approximately ,HK$93,100,000
respectively.

fEEEA 2 EFREEER /T
RSOfE £ % - A2 BRET
2 AmRIcFEEERD R
T F& 4974,700,0007% 7T & 38 104
93,100,000/ 7T

If the market unit rent to the
valuation model is 2.5% higher/
lower, while all the other variables
were held constant, the carrying
value of Property 2 would increase
by approximately HK$18,600,000
and decrease by approximately
HK$16,700,000 respectively.

ffEERAN TS ERRS L/
TFE2.5% * i E b2 8RE T
g AmFINTEEERD R
4 1114918,600,0007% 7T 8% P 41
16,700,000/ 7T ©

N/A
TER



17.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising from acquisitions of subsidiaries are as follows:

17. HE

BEBHBARMSEHENT:

2014 2013

—F—lE =—ZT—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAET

At beginning of the year F 7)) 10,107 9,800
Exchange differences E X =% (34) 307
At end of the year F R 10,073 10,107

Impairment test for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Cash generating unit (“CGU")
identified as follows:

7 2 i (B %
BENARET#AZREELBN (R
SELEM) FBEWMT

2014 2013
—F-lmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA T
CGU: REeELEBM:
Specialised construction EEEER 10,073 10,107

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a one-year
period and extrapolated for the remaining operating period
based on the following information with reference to past
performance and expectation for market development.

ReELBMNZAROcRIREERAE
BifE - AESAFBRERERA - &
N—FHBHBERKE  MAREEF
HAIRRATERELER - Y2 E BT
RARHMBER HEHFE -

2014 2013
—EF—MF ===
% %
Estimated growth rate fHEH g R = 5.00 5.00
Discount rate B 3R & 5.60 5.60

The estimated growth rates disclosed above applied to the five-
year cash flow projections and no growth was assumed when
extrapolating to later periods. The estimated growth rate of
5.00% used represents the general growth in the market.

EXWBEZEAERXEARAFRER
EFRA MuARRBAREERIRRL

BREE -

=N
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ2=F —PF+=A=+—HIFFE

18. SUBSIDIARIES 18. MfiB A Tl
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a MBATIHRE
2014 2013
—F-mE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FE T
Unlisted share investments, at cost FELETRHITEE LKA 695,296 695,296
Less: provision for impairment TRk c Rk B B (8) (567,350)
695,288 127,946

As at 31 December 2014, the provision for impairment for
investments in subsidiaries was reassessed with reference
to the financial performance of subsidiaries.

W-Z—mE+=A=+—8 KB
RARBEREBRBEHLRIBEAR
ZH B REMERT & -

(b) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries (b) FEU FEFTBEBATIRIE
2014 2013
—E-mE =—ZF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFi# T FHT
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE UG B B A Bl FR B 14,659,201 13,926,197
Less: provision for impairment B ORUE B (248,896) (248,515)
14,410,305 13,677,682
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN ENGIE @] 9,682,376 8,923,605
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non- FEUL  FEASHBT B A B FN TE A R

interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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18. SUBSIDIARIES

(c)

18. B A E

List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014: (c) R=FT—MWF+=—_A=1T—8 FZ
ME ARSI :
Percentage of equity interest
BREEZE S
2014 2013
—g-mf —Z-ZF%
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
Place of Particulars of issued share held held held held
incorporation/ capital/ registered and by the by the by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation paid up capital (note (i)) Company Company Company Company Principal activity
=§:3 i =k A
MR ERTRE HEREYE HALET MFAT RARE AARH
WEAEEME U B 2 3 18 (B &£ (1) FH A o) RE TEEH
TRENEHEREERAF PRC RMB2,338,120,000 - 51 — 51 Real estate
(Beijing Wanhu Property Development Co., development
Ltd.) (“Beijing Wanhu") (notes (iii))
LRERFHEREERAR R A K #2,338,120,0007C EHEER
(T3 & 1) (B 3 Gii)
Best Pearl Development Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares of HK$1 each — 100 — 100 Property investment
ERERARAA BB 1,000 EREEIET NERE
BESRERERHERZARRE PRC RMB778,013,150 — 80 - 80 Real estate
(Boluo County Bihua Property Development development
Company Limited “Boluo County Bihua")
(note (iii))
BEGEZERHEREFERAR Rl AR #778,013,1507T FEHEER
(T &2 =) (0 & (i)
Bright Circle Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100 = 100 Property investment
BRERDH BB 10,0005 &R EE1E T NERE
ER(EREXEARAR PRC US$6,600,000 — 7 — 71 Real estate
(Dragon Construction (Nanjing) Properties development
Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))
ERER)EZARAR (M) i 6,600,000% 7 FHEER
Eastrend (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each — 100 — 100 Property investment
RE(BB)BERAA BE 2REREEVET NERE
Full Pacific Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each - 100 — 100 Property investment
ENEERAA Bk 2REREEET MERE
Great Way Properties Limited Hong Kong/PRC 2 shares of HK$1 each - 100 — 100 Property investment

BHREXERAAF

R/ HH

2B BREEET

TRERERAT —T-masR |

NERE
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

146

(c)

List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014:

(Continued)

18. MIE AT (&)
AZE-—WE+=—A=+—R FE
B ARFK: (F)

(c)

Percentage of equity interest

BREEZESIL
2014 2013
—g-mf —Z-Z%
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
Place of Particulars of issued share held held held held
incorporation/ capital/ registered and by the by the by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation paid up capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company Principal activity
=§:3 i & BE A
MR ERTRE ERERYE HALE MFAT RARA AARH
MWEAEEME U B 2 5% 18 (B &£ (1) (L] A ) RE TEEH
HEPEREEXBRARA PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100 — 100 Real estate
(Hunan Zhongrun Chengzhen Real Estate development
Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))
W TR R B R A R A A (P i) F gl AR #%10,000,0007 i EE R
Byt EXFEREERAR (Langfang PRC US$55,000,000 - 50 — 50 Real estate
Kuangshi Jiye Property Development Co., Ltd. development
“Kuangshi Jiye") (note (iii) & (iv))
BBt EXEHEREERAR Gl 55,000,000% 70 FHEZR
(g8 1t 2 22 ) (Bf & (i) R (iv)
Linkcheer Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each - 100 = 100 Property investment
EEERATE Bk 2EEREEIET NERE
Luck Achieve Limited British Virgin Islands/ 2 shares of US$1 each — 100 — 100 Securities Investment
Hong Kong
FERRAA RERLZES,/ REREEIZET EHRE
0
Minmetals Condo (Hong Kong) Engineering Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 — 100 — 100 Design and installation
Company Limited of curtain walls
TRHA(FE) IRERAR EE REREEIET Rt R ZERE
Minmetals Land Capital Limited British Virgin Islands 10 shares of US$1 each 100 — 100 — Fund raising
AEEREABRAR RERAES 10REREEIET 3
Minmetals Land (China) Limited Hong Kong/Hong 2 shares of HK$1 each - 100 = 100 Provision of
Kong and PRC management
service
IEER(FR)ERAR B/ BERTE 2REREEIET REEBRE
Minmetals Land Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ 100 shares of US$10 each 100 - 100 — Investment holding

Minmetals Land Investments Limited

Hong Kong

RERREE/
BE
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014:

(Continued)

18. MiB AT (&)
R-E—NE+_A=+—H =&
WEARZRK: (8)

(c)

Percentage of equity interest

RAEERT L
2014 2013

—¥-mE —E—=%
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
Place of Particulars of issued share held held held held
incorporation/ capital/ registered and by the by the by the by the

Name of subsidiary operation paid up capital (note (i)) Company Company Company Company Principal activity

EE Gk E# LiF3
HEMAIL ERTRE HEREYE HALET MFAT RARE AARH

HEAS&E EEBE F 7 2 1 (B &£ (i) E) k) 5B e EEEH

ERERAMENEREHEREERE  PRC RMB380,000,000 - 100 — 100 Real estate
7] (Minmetals Land (Hunan) Jiahe Risheng development
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. “Jiahe
Risheng”) (note (ii))

TRERNE) ENAEEHEREERAR 76 A K #380,000,0007 BHERR
(TE= 0B 2% 1) (B 2 (i)

IEERENEEEXARAT PRC US$100,000,000 — 100 — 100 Real estate
(Minmetals Land (Yingkou) Hengfu Properties development
Co., Ltd.) (note (i)

IERR(BO)VEEEXERAR G +E 100,000,000% 7 FHERR

TEMERRERAR PRC RMB894,800,000 —  98.88 —  98.88 Real estate
(Minmetals Property Development Nanjing development
Co., Ltd.) (note (iii))

B ER AR AR (M i) H AR #894,800,0007 BHEER

TREX (RR)EEHRERAH PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100 — 100 Real estate
(Minmetals Real Estate (Tianjin) Binhaixinqu development
Co., Ltd.) (note (i)

TREX(RR)EEMBERAA M EM) HE AR 10,000,000 BHERR

BENEMR)ERAR PRC RMBS5,400,000,000 —  66.67 — 66.67 Real estate
(Kuangji Properties (Nanjing) Co., Ltd. development
“Kuangji Properties”) (note (iii)

BELE(BR)ERAH HE A K #5,400,000,0007C FHERR
(T8 2 3t 2= ) (B = (i)

B wEER)ERAR PRC RMB1,200,000,000 - 100 — 100 Real estate
(Kuangshi Properties (Nanjing) Co., Ltd.) development
(note (ii))

T tt 340 2 (7 ) A R 22 &) (i) H AR #1,200,000,0007 FHEER

HEEREHRERZEERAR PRC RMB300,000,000 — 100 — — Real estate
(Hunan Kuangdai Property Development development
Co., Ltd.) (note (i) & (v))

HEERERERBEARAR M EHRY) FE A K #300,000,0007C BiEER

TRERERAT —T-masR |
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18. KB AT (4)
(c) R=FT—MWF+=—_A=1T—8 FZ
MEARZI%: (&)

18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(c) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014:
(Continued)

Percentage of equity interest

RAEZES

2014 2013
—E-0mf —E-=%

Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly

Place of Particulars of issued share held held held held
incorporation/ capital/ registered and by the by the by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation paid up capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company Principal activity
=§:3 i & BE A
MR ERTRE ERERYE HALE MFAT RARA AARH
MWEAEEME U B 2 5% 18 (B &£ (1) (L] A ) RE TEEH
ONFEM Finance Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1,000 shares of US$1 each 100 — 100 — Provision of financing
Hong Kong for group
companies
ONFEM Finance Limited KBEZ#ES/ 1000REBREHEIEZT REERARRERE
&k
Oriental Dragon Construction Limited Hong Kong/Hong 10,000 shares of HK$ each 1 — n — 71 Investment holding
Kong and PRC
RABRERAR BE/BBERTE 10000REREEIET RERK
IEHM(LBRIBERAA PRC US$4,270,000 - 100 = 100 Design and installation
(Minmetals Condo (Shanghai) Construction of curtain walls
Co., Ltd. (note (ii)) and aluminum
windows
BRHA (L8 ZRAER QA (M (i) HE 4,270,000% 7 R RZEERR
A
Texion Development Limited Hong Kong 50,000,000 shares of HK$1 — 100 — 100 Property investment
each
CrLERERAR N 50,000,000/ & iR E & MERE
BT
Tinnex Management Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each — 100 — 100 Property management
IEMERRAA EE 2REREBEIET MEER
Top Gain Properties Limited Hong Kong/PRC 2 shares of HK$1 each - 100 — 100 Property investment
BREXEAERAF &5,/ HE REREEIET MERE
Virtyre Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$10 each — 100 — 100 Property investment
Virtyre Limited BB 2REBREEIET MERE
HKERABREEZERAA PRC RMB44,000,000 - 100 — 100 Real estate
(Zhuhai (Oriental) Blue Horrison Properties development
Company Limited) (note (ii))
FKEBR7BREEBERAR (M) I AR %44,000,0007T EHEER
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014:
(Continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. None
of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

These are foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC

with operating periods ranging from 15 years to 40 years.

These are sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the PRC

with operating periods ranging from 20 years to 30 years.

Although the Group owns 50% equity interest in Kuangshi Jiye,
it has control over Kuangshi Jiye by holding 60% of the voting

power.

The company is established/incorporated during the year ended 31
December 2014.

18. MBS ()
(€ R=F-mME+=A=+-0 B
HBARIE: (%)

o A

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ABEER

BEBRAT —T—mEER

BRBEAFEN  IFHERMERNHEE
Ak BHE-T-—NFE+-_A=1+—H
IEFEAREMER - S M EA R &
BEITEMEERAE -

ZEABNFBEKL ZIERE  EiE
HEBISFERI0FRE -

ZEARFBEKLZHIINEELEE D
¥ AEHANEEIERSE -

BEAEEEAE L EE0%KE
HEBRHAEBRYEEX0% I KEES

HER G -

ZARRBE=ZT—NWF+=_A=1+—
Bilt&EE& /s -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ2=F —PF+=A=+—HIFFE

18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests

18.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

subsidiaries of the Group that have material

controlling interests:

Place of
incorporation

and principal

non-

Proportion of equity

interests and voting

Fit /B8 2 5] (48)

d BEREXFEHESHES
AMEARIZHR
TREJAEEABEAERR
B AMBARZHE -

place of rights held by non- Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiaries business controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests
& i A 37 & FifiRAERT IR
Bt B 2 5] & 18 FTEEEBE FENESAHFREE RAEEHERIEZ®HF Rt FEiEHER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F Z¥-—-NE —T-=F ZF¥T-NEFE —T-=F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET FHET TET FET
Boluo County Bihua PRC 20% 20% (43,914) (7,565) 139,152 183,862
HEBDE B
Kuangshi Jiye (Note 18(c)(iv)) PRC 50% 50% (7,949) (464) 228,482 237,272
%t 2 2 (P £ 18(c)(iv)) &
Beijing Wanhu (Note 18(c)(iii)) PRC 49% 49% 79,579 (12,713) 1,243,633 730,228
18 = 85 (P E18()(iii) GE
Kuangji Properties (Note 18(c)(iii))  PRC 33.33% 33.33% (17,330) (2,546) 2,252,884 2,301,547
T 7 3t 2 (BT 5E18(c)(iii)) H
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests 372 122,252 153,529 153,752
ERFERESNMEAFEER
(iN=PNG|
10,758 98,964 4,017,680 3,606,661

Summarised financial information in respect of each of

the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling

interests is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts before intragroup

eliminations.
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

18. MiE A E (&)

d BEFEXEEHEZNES

EMBEASZFR (&)

Boluo County Bihua BEEE

2014 2013
—EF-mE =—ZF—=

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&E T
Current assets mEEE 2,190,839 2,273,339
Non-current assets EREBEE 7,130 11,666
Current liabilities mEAE 919,690 767,883
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 582,520 597,812
Total equity - Enp 695,759 919,310

TRERERAT —T-masR |
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—=—FE—WF+=-H=+—HIFE

18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. MIB AT (&)
(d) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have d BEFEXEEHERZNIESR
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BMBATZH1E (&)
Boluo County Bihua (Continued) BEEE(E)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BE H=
—E—HmF —FT—=
+-—A=+—HB +=-—A=+—H
IEEE WFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Revenue N 324,683 214,159
Expenses i3 (544,253) (251,986)
Loss for the year KEE BB (219,570) (37,827)

Other comprehensive (expense)/income ZAFEEHM2ME (F%), WA

for the year (3,973) 17,940
Total comprehensive expense REETHEHRXLBE

for the year (223,543) (19,887)
Net cash outflow from operating KERBEER RN FE

activities (288,013) (411,208)
Net cash outflow from investing KREEBEAR ST L FE

activities (258) (3,064)
Net cash inflow from financing activities & & & 8 &E AR & % A JF 58 229,045 300,653
Net cash outflow Bemb %8 (59,226) (113,619)
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

18. MiE A E (&)

d BEFEXEEHEZNES
EMBEASZFR (&)

Kuangshi Jiye R E ¥
2014 2013
—E-mE _—_ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FH& T
Current assets mEEE 811,586 573,731
Non-current assets ERBEE 8,477 3,326
Current liabilities mEAaE 363,100 102,513
Total equity Hmiasa 456,963 474,544
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—=—FE—WF+=-H=+—HIFE

18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

18. BB 28] (&)
d BEFEXEEHEZNESR
EMBASZFR (&)

Kuangshi Jiye (Continued) Wt E % (E)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BE HE
—F-NE —=—=
+=A=+—-8 t-A=+-8
ILEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHET
Revenue N — 1,693
Expenses =3 (15,897) (2,621)
Loss for the year REEEIE (15,897) (928)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income AFEEH2ME (F%), WA
for the year (1,685) 14,412
Total comprehensive (expense)/income ZAEE2ME (Fsz), WA 4E5E
for the year (17,582) 13,484
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KEEBELERSARA
operating activities O ) 58 45,337 (40,354)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing & ESHELE S GRd),/
activities AR (@) 38,490
Net cash inflow from financing activities @& & 8 &E 43R & K A JF 58 71,898 —
Net cash inflow/(outflow) RemA/ Ont)FE 117,231 (1,864)
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

18. MiE A E (&)

d BEFEXEEHEZNES
EMBEASZFR (&)

Beijing Wanhu = E

2014 2013
—EF-mE =—ZF—=

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TH& T
Current assets mENE E 5,727,152 4,250,509
Non-current assets EREBEE 53,325 20,766
Current liabilities mEAE 2,988,933 2,781,014
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 253,518 =
Total equity - Eny 2,538,026 1,490,261
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e M B|RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—=—FE—WF+=-H=+—HIFE

18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

18. BB 28] (&)
d BEFEXEEHEZNESR
EMBASZFR (&)

Beijing Wanhu (Continued) =B (&)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BE H=
—E—HmF —F—=
+=—A=+—H +=-B=+—8H
IEEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THE T
Revenue N 1,731,089 4,075
Expenses =3 (1,568,683) (30,019)
Profit/(loss) for the year REFEEA (EE) 162,406 (25,944)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income AFEEHM2ME (F%), WA
for the year (17,845) 5,197
Total comprehensive income/(expense) AFEEZ2EUA (FX) 4458
for the year 144,561 (20,747)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BEETHELBESRA S
operating activities (fE ) ¥ 1,526,318 (4,176,734)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing & ESHELE S GRL),/
activities mAFEE (5) 14
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from mEEHELER S (RE),
financing activities mAE R (1,790,010) 4,838,341
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be R, mAFE5E (263,697) 661,621
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. MiB AT (&)

(d) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have d BEFEXEEHERZMIESR
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BMBATZH1E (&)
Kuangji Properties B & i B

2014 2013

—¥F-mE —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT F&E T
Current assets mENE E 8,340,964 6,832,143
Non-current assets IERBEE 42,037 11,653
Current liabilities mEAE 1,624,350 9,561
Total equity R 6,758,651 6,834,235

ot
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e M B|RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—=—FE—WF+=-H=+—HIFE

18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. MIB AT (&)

(d) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have d BEFEXEEHERZNIESR
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BMBATZH1E (&)
Kuangji Properties (Continued) BEE (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
B=E H=
—E—HmF —F—=
+-—A=+—8B +=-—A=+—H
ILEE WFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Revenue N 9,314 1,280
Expenses X (61,310) (34,982)
Loss for the year KEE B E (51,996) (33,702)

Other comprehensive (expense)/income AEEH2E (F%), WA
for the year (23,588) 25,548

Total comprehensive expense for the ANFEE 2 4%

year (75,584) (8,154)
Net cash outflow from operating WEEHELER S ML FE

activities (806,521) (5,083,424)
Net cash outflow from investing KEFEBEAR ST HFE

activities (278) (261)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from BMEEBELRS(RE),

financing activities A R EE (7,140) 6,696,570
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be(rd),/ RAFE (813,939) 1,612,885
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 19. REtEATIZHER

(a) Investments (a) H®™E

2014 2013

—¥T-mE —"ZT-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#&ET FAT

At beginning of the year F 7)) 853,073 772,732

Exchange differences &5 =% (430) 25,079

Investment in an associated company (i) R—HEBELAR2KE 382,696 —

Share of profit o1k & K 183,936 55,262

At end of the year F 4R 1,419,275 853,073
Details of each of the Group’s material associated A—E—WF+ZH=1+—8 ' &&

companies at 31 December and 2014 are as follow: BXEBABEARFIBLOT :

Place of  Proportion Proportion

incorporation of equity of voting

and interest held rights held

Name of entities Principle activities operation by the Group by the Group
#MEk *KREHAF FRKEHHF

Z2% FTEER EEWE BRAERILS BREELLH
By EEREFHEREBRAR Real estate development PRC 50% 40%

(Langfang Wanheng Shengye
Property Development Co., Ltd)
("Langfang Wanheng”) (note ii)
Ry BEREFHEREERAR BHEER Y 50% 40%
(18 2% % 1) (Kt &%)

TR AREERNEBEEXEERAR Real estate development PRC 51% 40%
(Beijing Minmetals Vanke
Real Estate Co., Ltd) (“Beijing
Minmetals Vanke”) (note ii)

IRAEERBEXEGRAA P i 2 2 Y 51% 40%
(M6 7 i & D (B =)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # 2 ==

19.

160

—HFEF+ A=+ —HIEFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONTINUED)
Investments

(a)

(b)

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group and the
other shareholder increased their investments in Beijing Minmetals
Vanke according to the corresponding equity interests.

The companies are Sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in
the PRC with operating periods of 30 years. The Group accounts
for its investments in these companies as associated companies
as it only exercises significant influence over the investment by
minority representation in the board of directors. Pursuant to
shareholder agreements, the Company has the right to cast 40%
of the votes at shareholder meetings of Langfang Wanheng, and
40% of the votes at shareholder meetings of Beijing Minmetals
Vanke.

Summarised financial information of material
associated companies
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the

Group’s material associated companies is set out below.

The summarised financial information below represents

amounts shown in the associated companies’ financial

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these associated companies are accounted for

using the equity method in these consolidated financial

statements.
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4,

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONTINUED) 19. MEfZ NS 2R (48)

(b) Summarised financial information of material (b) ch BEATMBERBE
associated companies (Continued) (#8)

Langfang Wanheng BB B 1E

2014 2013

—ET—MNE —F—=

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&EIT F&E T

Current assets mENE E 433,699 488,236

Non-current assets ERBEE 13 40

Current liabilities mEBE 33,244 80,558

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

A BE

—E—MmF ===

+-—A=+—8B +=-—A=+—H

ILEE IHEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET F& T

Loss for the year KEEEE (5,832) (1,623)

Other comprehensive (expense)/income ZNEEH 2 M (), WA
for the year (1,418) 12,394

Total comprehensive (expense)/income ZAEE 2 (FX), WAL
for the year (7,250) 10,771
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ2=F —PF+=A=+—HIFFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONTINUED) 19. REtZE AT 2R (E)

(b) Summarised financial information of material () EXBHEATHMBERBE
associated companies (Continued) (#8)
Langfang Wanheng (Continued) FEHhEE (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial EXHBERBEEBHEBRE
information to the carrying amount of the interest EMBHmEAANERREE 2SR

in Langfang Wanheng recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2014 2013
—F-mE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Net assets of the associated company B Na & E SR 400,468 407,718
Proportion of the Group's interest in AEERBERERN

Langfang Wanheng T 2= LE I 50% 50%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHETT

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in 7 £ [ 1A EE 37 & 18 A% 78 # 25
Langfang Wanheng ZEHEE 200,234 203,859
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Summarised financial information of material

19. REE AT Z2H# = (48)
() EXBEATUBERME

associated companies (Continued) (#8)
Beijing Minmetals Vanke tZABEER
2014 2013
—EF-mE =—ZF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA& T
Current assets BN & E 3,028,130 3,659,399
Non-current assets IERBEE 21,609 58,450
Current liabilities mEAE 659,463 2,141,242
Non-current liabilities EREBEE — 303,638
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
BE HZE
—F—MNF =E==4
+=A=+—H8 +=-—A=+—8H
IEEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FA& T
Revenue A 2,093,290 1,855,200
Profit for the year NF E A 366,376 109,948
Other comprehensive (expense)/income ZN4E[EH A2 mE (), WA
for the year (2,965) 37,022
Total comprehensive income for the REEZHEKABEE
year 363,411 146,970
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ2=F —PF+=A=+—HIFFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Summarised financial information of material

associated companies (Continued)
Beijing Minmetals Vanke (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
Beijing Minmetals Vanke recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

. REBtE AT 2 # % (8)
(h) EXBHEATFUBEAME

(48)
tREREREN(E)

EXHMBERR BRI RARER
REEMBHRRAERRAE Y

B -

2014 2013
—E-lmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Net assets of the associated company B Na & E SR 2,390,276 1,272,969
Proportion of the Group’s interest in Beijing AN% B R 1t = A 1E & &Y

Minmetals Vanke T 2= LE I 51% 51%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in 78 £ B 7 b R F 1% & B A
Beijing Minmetals Vanke w2 BREE 1,219,041 649,214
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20. INVENTORIES

20. &

2014 2013
—E-—E —_T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Properties held for sale — located in the #H{EHEWE — LA H
PRC 3,968,317 3,176,571

Properties under development — located ZE T Y% — 2R E (@)
in the PRC (a) 16,091,075 14,849,082
20,059,392 18,025,653

(a) Properties under development (a) BERPhYE

2014 2013
—T-mE "—"ZT-—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Land use rights + 3 {5 A 12,845,691 12,837,993
Construction costs BEKA 3,245,384 2,011,089
16,091,075 14,849,082

As at 31 December 2014, properties under development
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$7,185,451,000
(2013: HK$1,583,903,000) have been pledged as collaterals

N-ZZE—mME+=-_A=+—8 " &R
{B#77,185,451,000/8 7T (- — =4 :
1,583,903,000/8 7o) 2 E R H W ED

for bank borrowings (Note 28(a)). G E &SR AT 1B R 2 S (B R
28(a)) °
21. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS 21, ERBRIESY
2014 2013
—F-mFE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FHB T
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BB &S AR I B B 3R & R
profits less recognised losses EREE 3,496,855 2,818,445
Less: progress billings B LIREREERR (3,130,204) (2,618,111)
Gross amounts due from customers for BUWEFZEHN TIREE
contract work 366,651 200,334
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—=—FE—WF+=-H=+—HIFE

22. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, ERRIE B REMLEKR

1]

THE GROUP &
2014 2013
—FE—MNE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FE T
Trade and contract receivables, net (b) B REANEWFKIAE  FE(b) 810,870 763,470
Retention receivables & W AR & & 77,097 91,304
Deposits Z& 90,141 502,908
Prepayments (c) T8 £t ZIE () 642,239 272,395
Prepayment for land cost (d) T8 45 £ Hb B A (d) 1,609,419 239,728

Loan to a non-controlling shareholder of a B X T — K B A& <

subsidiary (Note 36) — % FE I A% A% B (B 5E36) 26,100 —
Others HAtb 59,399 44,305
3,315,265 1,914,110

THE COMPANY FaTF
2014 2013

—E—-HmE =—ZT—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Deposits Z& 26 34
Prepayments SERNE O] 885 840
Others H Aty 4,662 473
5,573 1,347
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22. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

(a

The carrying amounts of prepayments, trade and other

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

22,

HfRIE - B35 R H b Bl =

IH (48)

@ BENHE BRIREMGELKEL
B I 1B 7 BA TS 31 1 9 51U B -

THE GROUP = &
2014 2013
—E-lmE —"ZET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAT
Hong Kong dollar 7 TT 164,998 92,769
RMB AR 3,150,267 1,821,341
3,315,265 1,914,110
THE COMPANY b, /N
2014 2013
—E—lmE =—ZT—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&ET FET
Hong Kong dollar 7T 5,573 1,347
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ2=F —PF+=A=+—HIFFE

22,

168

PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

(b)  The aging analysis of trade and contract receivables based
on due date for rental receivables, date of properties
delivered to purchasers and billing date of construction
services certified is as follows:

22. FHRIA -BEHREMEBIR
I5(48)

(b)

REWKESINEBRE WEXINTE
WA MERBERERGOIRE
HHESZ2EHRAENEBKRIELZ
IR DT

THE GROUP xE
2014 2013
—T-mE —"ZE—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
0 to 90 days 0%E90H 472,937 354,933
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 28,485 143,478
181 days to 1 year 181BE—F 89,466 68,274
1 year to 2 years —FEEWF 115,733 110,151
Over 2 years LA £ 112,609 93,091
819,230 769,927
Less: provision for impairment R A B (8,360) (6,457)
810,870 763,470

No credit period is granted by the Group to customers in
respect of trade and contract receivables.

Majority of trade and contract receivables are with

customers having good repayment history and no default
in the past.

Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2014

AEEYERESDREDEBKIA
BTEPEEY-

REIDEH KA K EYREAD TR
BAERMERTHLBELERZLY
TRZEP °



22. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(Continued)

Trade and contract receivables that are less than two
years past due are generally not considered impaired.
Trade and contract receivables of HK$519,868,000 (2013:
HK$532,056,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no history of default. The aging analysis of these
trade and contract receivables is as follows:

22. ARRIE - BESHRHEMEBKR
I8 (48)
b) ()

—RmE BHLAMFEFZES
REHRBBKRREIEHRRE R
B ° 519,868,000/ L (=T — =4 :
532,056,000 7T) < B 5 K& # U
RIBE @ HR B R (E o 2 E R IE
ZRBENCHR 2 BUIRFEH@ -
ZEBHREAENEWRARIE ZRRD

Mran T

2014 2013
—E—lmEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT

Past due days 1 5 B 2
1 to 90 days 1£290H 184,647 248,971
91 to 180 days 91£180H 28,476 60,197
181 days to 1 year 181BE—F 89,308 46,096
1 year to 2 years —FEMF 113,190 115,053
Over 2 years M 104,247 61,739
519,868 532,056
Trade and contract receivables of HK$8,360,000 8,360,000/ (= & — = #F:

(2013: HK$6,457,000) were impaired and provision
for impairment was made. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to construction customers, which
are in unexpected difficult financial situations. The aging
of these receivables is as follows:

6,457,000/ 70) 2 B 5 K& #) I YR
HERE  WEFHRERE - @
Bl 5 E FE W R IE T) = B B 2R AR B
AMBRE 2 ZEZFHEB - 2%
FEWRIE Z BRRDTAT

2014 2013
—E—lE —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&ET FET
Past due days & HA B 2
Over 2 years S 8,360 6,457
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22. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

170

(b)

(Continued)

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and
contract receivables are as follows:

22. FHRIA -BEHREMEBIR
I5(48)

(b)

(48)

HESRA DB 2 (8
BEzEHOT:

2014 2013

—E—lNE —T—=%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At beginning of the year F 1) 6,457 6,261
Exchange differences E X =% (18) 185
Provision for impairment BB B 1,921 11
At end of the year FR 8,360 6,457

The provision for impaired receivables has been included
in administrative expenses in the profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2014, prepayments include prepaid
tax and other charges of approximately HK$502,439,000
(2013: HK$252,821,000).

As at 31
represents payment to the PRC Bureau of Land and

December 2014, prepayment for land cost

Resources for the acquisition of lands in the PRC and the
amount will be recognised as inventory upon issuance of
Land Use Rights Certificates.

The other items within trade and other receivables do not
contain past due or impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.
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EYORERBE A ABRZFTHITI
FA3Z

R-ZE—MmMFE+-_fF=+—H: F&
NREESEEMNHELEME A
#9502,439,000% L (=& — = F :
252,821,0005 JT) °

RZZE—HWFE+=ZA=+—8 ' B
2 1 B AN 5 A AR B U B b BT
SHFHRBERLERBZRE M
Gt BEBRER T FE REERRE
RETE -

B5 K HEAMEWRIBEARZ HAIRE
TABEFEaHUCREEE -

REeEHMRBZEREERRD L
AR FIAE REE - NEEY E
FAEMERRELR -



23.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 23. EBHmMmE2mIE AR ET

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BZUHBEE
2014 2013
—F—lE =—Z=—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FA T
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong REB LM ZRAE 5
At beginning of the year F 7 622,269 643,011
Fair value loss recognised in other 7 E b 2 T U 55 7 7R
comprehensive income NAEER (110,626) (20,742)
At end of the year F I 511,643 622,269
The Group’s equity securities investment is measured at fair value AEBRREHREANBRABEFEERA
at the end of the reporting period AEE -

Fair value as at

RUTHHBMARE
Valuation
31 December 31 December Fair value technique(s) and
Financial assets 2014 2013 hierarchy  key input(s)
—F—-mE —T—=F HERAR
MBEE +ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H0 ARERH ETEZHABE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&EX FET
Financial assets at fair value through other 511,643 622,269 Level 1 Quoted prices in an
comprehensive income — Listed equity active market
securities
FREMEPHKNRERAABENEZ E—& R BB T 35 1Y
MBEE — FMIRAR 5 BRE AR
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24. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED 24. ZRFFERBITHER
THE GROUP AEH
2014 2013
—F—DEFE —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHIT
Restricted cash X PRl IR & 488,315 115,605

172

The carrying amounts of restricted cash are denominated in
Renminbi.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of cash and bank deposits.

The restricted cash represents (i) performance deposits for
construction projects; and (ii) guarantee deposits for the benefit
of mortgage loan facilities granted by banks to the purchasers
of the Group’s properties.
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25. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS, UNRESTRICTED 25, AZMRHARERBITHER

THE GROUP XEE

2014 2013

—F—E T =4

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&EIT FAETT

Cash at banks IRITIR & 2,925,096 3,478,913

Short-term deposits % B F K 2,315,174 2,623,103

Cash on hand FHEES 191 287

Cash and bank deposits e RIBITHERK 5,240,461 6,102,303

Short-term deposits mature in approximately 6 days (2013: 6
days) from the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December
2014, the weighted average effective interest rate was 2.29%
(2013: 1.49%) per annum.

CHERERERRBERFNR (2T —

=F:6H)FH -

RZZE-—OF+ZA=

+—H  MEFHEBRFANELE2.29% (=
T —=4:1.49%) °

The carrying amounts of cash and bank deposits are RERRITFRZEEBEIIATIE R
denominated in the following currencies: | B
2014 2013
—E—WmE =—"T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&ET FHET
Hong Kong dollar 7T 31,102 188,723
RMB AR 5,198,508 5,410,906
us$ Xt 10,851 502,674
5,240,461 6,102,303
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting RBEHRBEAZ 2 EREERRA
period is the carrying amount of cash and bank deposits. Re RIBITHFREERE -
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25. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS, UNRESTRICTED 25. FERHEERBITHERE)
(CONTINUED)

THE COMPANY AN T

2014 2013

—FE—MNE T =F

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi#ExT THE T

Cash at banks RTR < 6,304 911

Short-term deposits S RER N 38,257 63,732

Cash on hand FERE 15 21

Cash and bank deposits B MBITER 44,576 64,664

Short-term deposits mature in approximately 82 days (2013: 2
days) from the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December
2014, the weighted average effective interest rate was 4.80%
(2013: 1.88%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

REGEREREHKLBRFTANRA(ZE
—=F2A)EH c RZE—NHF+Z A
=+—H MEFHEEFFHEF480%
—E—=%F:1.88%)°

RBeRROGRZEBMEIATIER
51 B

2014 2013
—E—lNE —"T—=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FE T

Hong Kong dollar 7 TT 5,863 906
RMB AR 38,264 63,743
Us$ X TT 449 15
44,576 64,664

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of cash and bank deposits.
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On 29 May 2003, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “2003 Share Option Scheme”) under which the Directors, at
their discretion, invited any person who has contributed or will
contribute to the Group to subscribe for shares of the Company
at nominal consideration of HK$10 for each lot of share granted.
The exercise price was determined by the Directors, and would
not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price per share as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of Main Board of the Stock
Exchange; (ii) the closing price of the shares quoted on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the
Company. The scheme remained in force for a period of ten
years to 28 May 2013. On 7 June 2013, the Company adopted
a new share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option Scheme”)
with the same terms under the 2003 Share Option Scheme. No
share options have been granted by the Company pursuant to
the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. Ig&
2014 2013
—F—-mE —E—=%F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
% & ok Az £ + 8
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
(F k%) TET (F i) FAT
Authorised: JERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each EREBE0IB T
=5 I 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREH:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FRHEENETT
3 A
Balance at beginning of the & 1) 4 £
year 3,337,853 333,785 3,337,653 333,785
Exercise of share options 77 {58 B IR A 2,658 266 — —
Balance at end of the year F IR 4B R 3,340,511 334,051 3,337,853 333,785
Share options R B #E

R_ZEE=ZFRA_TNE KAARH
—EREEFE(—ZET=FB K&
2Bt EFARBEEFEAEYHK
HEeERAKEBELERMZALTREAR
BARARN 2 BIE  SHEHBERE
ZEREARERIOET - THREMHES
EEE AT2@BERTI=8FzRaE
(VXA EREBARERMBZERET
B (iR EZRE L E R B R AT A (E
EERARMNBIAERTARERAER
ZWTHIE : R(i)ARRMDZEE © &t
KRE_ZE-—=FRAA-TNBILT+FH
FAB®R - RZZE—=FA+tH £A2Q
AEA—ENBEREFS (2T —=F8
Rt &) RRE T T =FRAES
2R - ARBAERE—_FT—=FBER
TR BAE -

|
ot
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Share options (Continued)

176

(i)

26.

Details of the share options granted are as follows:

Category of participants

Date of grant/exercisable period of

share options

Bz & (4&)

RS B A2 (4R)
() FEEBBREFEOT

Exercise price

Number of

share options

SEEHR RUEBH BERETES TEE BRENE
2014 2013 2014 2013
“¥-NEFE —T-=F Z¥-0OF —_T-—=
HK$ HK$ ‘000 ‘000
T BT Fix T &
Directors 1 December 2008/1 December 2010 to 0.45 0.45 3,173 3,173
30 November 2018 (Note 1)
=5 —TENF+=ZA—B/
—T-TF+-A—RBZE
—E-NF+—A=+AHE)
30 November 2012/30 November 2014 1.20 1.20 12,340 12,340
to 29 November 2022 (Note 2)
—2E——F+—-RA=+H/
—E-ME+—-—A=+HZE
ZE-F+—RAZ+AB(FE2)
15,513 15,513
Employees and others 1 December 2008/1 December 2010 to 0.45 0.45 4,981 7,639
30 November 2018 (Note 1)
B8 R HA —TENF+=A—B/
—T-TF+=-A—HBZE
—E-NF+—-A=+AHE
30 November 2012/30 November 2014 1.20 1.20 38,800 41,950
to 29 November 2022 (Note 2)
—2——F+—R=t+H/
—E-NME+-—A=+HZE
“E-F+ A=+ NB(E2)
43,781 49,589
59,294 65,102
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Share options (Continued)

26. BRA ()
IR HE(48)

()  (Continued) (i) (&)
Notes: Bt 7
(1) The options are exercisable upon fulfillment of certain performance (1) BREVEARAER RERAZEBE
targets achieved by the Group and grantees. These options are TRBEGERAAITIIE - ZFHER
exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage of options AN =#TFE BT —FF+=A
of each tranche exercisable within the periods commencing from 1 —HEEZZE-N\FT+—A=THILH
December 2010 to 30 November 2018, from 1 December 2011 to M -BZT——F+t=-A—HAEE=Z
30 November 2018 and from 1 December 2012 to 30 November —NEF+—-—A=t+BILHERE=ZF—
2018 are 30%, 30% and 40% respectively. The fair value of share —F+-A—BBRE=-ZT—N\F+—A8
options in the three tranches is HK$0.3355 per share. =+HILHAEARITEZSHERE
R BEALH R HE30% « 30%K%40% °
Z=HBREZFRA R EHR0.3355
BT e
(2) The options are exercisable upon fulfillment of certain performance (2) BERELNERAEEREARANERS
targets achieved by the Group and grantees. These options are TRBEEREIATTE - FER
exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage of options A =#TE BT —HFE+—A
of each tranche exercisable within the periods commencing from =THREZZE=-_—_F+—-—HA=+NH
30 November 2014 to 29 November 2022, from 30 November IEHE - B2 —AF+—A=1+HE
2015 to 29 November 2022 and 30 November 2016 to 29 EE__F+—-AZtABIEHER
November 2022 are 30%, 30% and 40% respectively. The fair B-E—R"F+—A=tEERE=-ZTZ=
values of share options in the three tranches are HK$0.6538, —F+—AZ+NBILBREARITEZ
HK$0.6774 and HK$0.6912 per share respectively. BHERESZS B LS R /30%
30% K%40% - Z=#HEBREZERA
# 18 7 5 50.6538/ Tt * 0.6774/ Tt
$%0.6912% 7T ©
(i) Movements in the above share options are as follows: (i) LuEERREZESHmT:
2014 2013
—g-mE -T-=%
Number of Number of
share options share options
BREHE BREHA
‘000 ‘000
TR F
At beginning of the year F 1) 65,102 69,307
Lapsed B R (3,150) (4,205)
Exercised 21T (2,658) =
At end of the year F R 59,294 65,102

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 2,658,000
share options were exercised and the weighted average

share price was HK$0.88. No share option was exercised

during the year ended 31 December 2013.

2

B

—E—NE+=—A=+—HIt&E
217 1$2,658,000% &5 fx 2 - H

n#E-FIR(ER0BEB L - HEZ

=

BT

=FE+-_A=t—HLFE ¥
68 (o) B8 A HE -
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217.

178

RESERVES 27. fiti i
THE GROUP xE
Employee
Capital ~ share-based Investments
Share Contributed redemption compensation revaluation Revaluation  Other Exchange Retained
premium surplus  reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserve earnings Total
&% RERKAE k&
Bt HHRGE BOHRE SRAEEE EREE ESEE ZtHE EREE RER: ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TAT TR FAT FAET FAT Thx ThHrx TEz Thxn
(note (a))
(Bt 2 (a))
Balance as at 1 January 2013 RZZT-=%F
—A-BZz&% 4,267,699 598,783 769 5,505 85,274 21,967 309,400 1,380,615 6,671,326
Employee share option benefits EEBRERF — — — 13,706 — — — — 13706
Fair value loss on revaluation of BREMRENRE
financial assets at fair value BOREHEL
through other comprehensive HBEESR
income FMELZAR
BE = = = = (20,742) - - —  (20742)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest 4 & — & K & 72 7]
in a subsidiary (note b) ZFERRE
i (M3th) — — — — — 9,673 — — 9673
Currency translation adjustments [E A= — — — — — — 286,330 — 286,330
2012 final dividend paid =% —ZF
RERE = (33,379 = = = = = — (33379
Profit for the year EEHF — — — — — — — 476,832 476,832
Balance as at 31 December 2013 ~ R=ZF—=%
+ZA=+-H
ZEH 4,267,699 565,404 769 19,211 64,532 31,640 595,730 1,857,447 7,403,746
Issue of shares kG 930 - - - - - - - 930
Employee share option benefits EEBERERT — — - 13,229 — — - — 13,229
Fair value loss on revaluation of BREMEENRE
financial assets at fair value BAREHEZ
through other comprehensive HHBEEER
income FESZARE
BE — — - —  (110,626) — - —  (110,626)
Currency translation adjustments [E R A= — - - - - —  (13,650) —  (13,650)
2013 final dividend paid X% -=F
REAKE = (50,068) - = = = - — (50,068)
Profit for the year FERF — - - — — - — 425171 425171
Balance as at 31 December 2014 RZZ-—NE
+=A=+-H
25 4,268,629 515,336 769 32,440 (46,094) 31,640 582,080 2,282,618 7,668,732
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27. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

27. fili & (&8)

THE COMPANY AAT
Employee (Accumulated
Capital share-based losses)/
Share Contributed redemption compensation retained
premium surplus reserve reserve earnings Total
X EEKRHE (RitBEHE)
fix 153 itk {8 BENRG BEOHE EWREEMEE REEA M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note (a))
(Pt 3£ (a))
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZZT—=F
—A—Bz#&#% 4,267,699 575,220 769 5,505 (130,880) 4,718,313
Employee share option benefits {& & & A% # & F — — — 13,706 — 13,706
2012 final dividend paid TN —=F
NEAAR B — (33,379) — — — (33,379)
Loss for the year REEEE — — — — (109,799) (109,799)
Balance at 31 December 2013 WZ=-ZT— =4
+=A=+—H
P 3 4,267,699 541,841 769 19,211 (240,679) 4,588,841
Issue of shares BEITIRHD 930 — — — — 930
Employee share option benefits {& & i % # & £ — — — 13,229 — 13,229
2013 final dividend paid N2 —=F
RE PR B — (50,068) — — — (50,068)
Profit for the year N [E i A — — — — 562,596 562,596
Balance at 31 December 2014 WRZ=Z — 4
+=ZA=+—H
Z R 8 4,268,629 491,773 769 32,440 321,917 5,115,528

Contributed surplus mainly represents the excess of the
fair value of shares in Minmetals Land Investments Limited
acquired by the Company over the nominal value of the
new shares of the Company issued pursuant to the share
exchange agreement.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, contributed surplus
is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition
that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities,
issued share capital and share premium account.

TRERERAT —T-masR |

EABRRIEREARARARKE
Minmetals Land Investments Limited
Bip 2z AR EBEARRBIRERG
RBBHERBETHROZROEEZ
EH o

REARZEREEL  BEHRHAH
DIKRTRER BETIBERITAR
AT E RSEKER BHDIKEH
B8R (M ARR R AEL DK
BRAREXNIPEE  RH AR
AEEZAZREARRAMERE
BE BETRARKRODEERZ
A o
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27. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

180

(b)

During 2013, the Group completed the acquisition of
the additional 48.53% of the issued share capital of
Ample Hope Investments Limited which is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company (“Ample Hope”), at
a cash consideration of RMB405,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$507,429,000). The carrying amount of
the non-controlling interest in Ample Hope on the date of
acquisition is approximately HK$517,102,000. As a result,
the Group recognised an increase in equity attributable to
equity holders of approximately HK$9,673,000.

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the Company’s
subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC are
required to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit
(after offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory reserves
and enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by
their respective boards of directors. The appropriation
as at 31 December 2014, amounting to approximately
HK$234,557,000 (2013: HK$135,344,000), was included in
retained earnings at 31 December 2014.
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27. f# ¥ (4&)
XAE(&)

(b)

RZZE—=FR  AEEEKKES
FREERAR(KARARFEENE
AR EFA])BEIN8.53% 2 BT
- 32 R(E AR/ ARKRK4L05,000,000
7t (#8 & 7 #9507,429,0005% 7T) B
WHEBE  REAIEERER 2K
M {8 %) A&517,102,0007% JT » & it -
REERRAEREEAREERR
KE 2 N 499,673,000 It °

BRI E - ANAR R ARBIAK L K&
LB B ARAEKBY RBE R
(ERHEEFBERR)BAEERE
¥ EXAES  LEHSTAAZ
EZgETF MR-_Z-—WNF+=-A=
+—H ' B @4 %234,557,000
B L (= & — = 4 : 135,344,000/
) BEEE—_ZE-—WNFE+-A=
T—HANRBAFNZA -



BORROWINGS 28. &=

2014 2013
—F—lE —"ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Non-current IE 7 B
Bank borrowings, secured (a) RITEFR - BHEIE@Q) 8,838,995 6,061,137
Guaranteed bonds (b) ERE S (b) 2,685,596 2,678,470
11,524,591 8,739,607
Current 2
Bank borrowings, secured (a) RITIER - BEIF@Q) 88,731 83,597
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder —EfE ARz —RBIFERRR
of a subsidiary, unsecured (Note 36) Z B EER (T 5E36) 28,151 8,649
116,882 92,246
Current portion of long-term bank loans EHETERZ B A5 — 1,319,925
116,882 1,412,171

11,641,473 10,151,778
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28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

182

(a)

Banking facilities

The Group’'s aggregate banking facilities, including
bank borrowings, as at 31 December 2014
amounted to approximately HK$13,674,306,000
(2013: HK$10,812,895,000), of which approximately
HK$4,597,469,000 (2013: HK$3,208,741,000)

unutilised. As at 31 December 2014, the assets pledged

was
by the Group as collaterals for the banking facilities are as

follows:

(i) Investment properties with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$Nil (2013: HK$1,205,100,000);

(i)  Land and buildings with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$Nil (2013: HK$82,964,000);

(iii)  Properties under development with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$7,185,451,000 (2013:
HK$1,583,903,000);

(iv)  100% equity interest in a subsidiary; and

(v)  Corporate guarantees given by the Company.
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28. & (&)

(a)

SRITRL &
RZE—WOE+_A=1T—H K&
BzRTRERE(BERITER
#) /513,674,306,000% T(— T — =
£ :10,812,895,0005 7T) * H A KB
FRE 49 54,597,469,000/8 L (=
— =4 :3,208,741,00058 7T) c X —
T—MFE+-A=1+—8  ~NEEFAT
EREADSRITHMEERARZE
EWT:

() HFREEHNARZEEL(ZZE—=
£ :1,205,100,000/% JT) 2 #&
B

(i) BREENAZEET(ZE—=
£ : 82,964,000/ 1) 2 T H#1 &
BF

(iiy BRMI(E# A7,185,451,000/% JT
—Z—=%:1,583,903,000/&
TC)Z BB

(iv) — 8 BT B 2 A1 2 100% A% 1 1
< B

B

(v) ARFMAIEARER -



28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Guaranteed bonds

On 26 April 2013, the Group issued the Guaranteed
Bonds (“Guaranteed Bonds”) with a principal amount of
US$225,000,000 and US$125,000,000 bearing interest
at the coupon rate of 5.50% and 6.50%,
respectively, which will be matured on 26 April 2018 and

per annum

26 April 2023 respectively. The Guaranteed Bonds were
guaranteed by the Company and have the benefit of a
keep well deed from China Minmetals Corporation, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company. Upon the
occurrence of a change of control and taxation triggering
event, all outstanding Guaranteed Bonds may be redeemed
and repurchased.

The Group may at its option redeem the Guaranteed Bonds
at any time, in whole but not in part, at a Make Whole
Price as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but
excluding), the redemption date.

“Make Whole Price”
Guaranteed Bonds at any redemption date, the greater

means with respect to the
of (1) the present value of the principal amount of the
Guaranteed Bond, plus all required remaining scheduled
interest payments due on such Guaranteed Bond from
the optional redemption date to the maturity date (but
excluding accrued and unpaid interest to the option
redemption date), computed using a discount rate, which
the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual equivalent
yield in maturity of the comparable treasury issue, plus
0.50 per cent., and (2) the principal amount of such
Guaranteed Bonds.

Early redemption options are regarded as embedded
derivatives not closely related to the host debt instrument.
The Directors consider that the fair value of the above early
redemption options is insignificant on initial recognition
and as at 31 December 2014.

28. & (&)

(b)

IBERERRD

BRESH
RZE—=ZFWA=-+B &
BEEToEREF(ERESD:
K& % 5 5l £225,000,000% T &
125,000,000 7T + 2 E F F & 5 7
A5.50% M 6.50% ° Utk L E 515 D
AR—ZE—N\FHUA-—F+HE_-Z
—=FMA=Z+BEH - ERE
%Em$ﬂﬂﬁﬁ-i§$#$ﬁ
ARKREEREFERAESEE A
REMNRFRERZE - RARQ Tm
THIBREFCRBHEER ML
% FIBEREENERESTEFE
B K EE -

AEEAETERETMAERENAE
MY UEREREDE
®REH - MR (ETEHE)EL B
A EEARRNNME(WA) -

thﬁmkh%wfﬁﬁﬁﬂh
EBHHHUTERSENOREBFH
$§ﬁﬁ’ﬁMLEﬁﬁm%@E
HEINHEAMFBRTHNE(ETEHE
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28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

() The maturity of the Group’s borrowings is as follows:

28. & (&)

() AEBERZBHMBRAT

2014 2013
—E—lE —ZT—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT T&T
Bank borrowings HRAT B K
Within one year —F R 88,731 1,403,522
In the second to fifth year BE_EERF 8,838,995 6,061,137
8,927,726 7,464,659
Bonds (EE
In the second to fifth year FE_EERF 1,728,314 1,721,874
In the sixth to tenth year EREEFTF 957,282 956,596
2,685,596 2,678,470
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder of —RfiB AR Z2—%
a subsidiary FEERKR ZERK
Within one year —&F R 28,151 8,649
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(d)

28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28. B (E)
Borrowings of HK$8,955,877,000 (2013: HK$7,473,308,000) (d) 8,955,877,000% jt(— & — = F:
are on a floating interest rate basis. The effective interest 7,473,308,000/8 7r) Z & F 3L ) Z &) A
rates at the end of the reporting period were as follows: EHE o R EHKRBE 2 BB X
PUNNE
2014 2013
—F—0E —F—=
HK$ RMB HK$ RMB
i AR BT AR
Non-current FE T B
Bank borrowings HRITE N 2.93% 5.68% 2.89% 7.37%
Current &
Bank borrowings RITE R — 5.60% 3.02% 6.49%
Loan from a non-controlling —ERBARZ
shareholder of a subsidiary —FIEER
RE 2 & — 6.16% — 6.77%
The fair values of borrowings approximate their carrying () BHRZARBEHHEEKREEMESE - A

(e)

(f)

amounts. The fair values are based on cash flows
discounted using borrowing rates as at 31 December 2014
ranged from 2.74% to 6.50% (2013: 2.63% to 7.38%)
per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are

REDERZE—NF+A=1+—
BN T2.74%26.50% (Z T —=4F:
2.63%%E7.38%) 2 &R FFIER 2
ReRENE -

(f) AEBERZEEETIATIEE

denominated in the following currencies: I B
2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
Hong Kong dollar A TT 7,761,545 6,738,381
RMB AR 1,194,332 734,927
us$ ETT 2,685,596 2,678,470

11,641,473 10,151,778
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29.

186

DEFERRED TAX 29. iEMEFIE
2014 2013
—F—lNE —"ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THE T
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBE E 226,694 189,055
Deferred tax liabilities R ERIE B & (121,062) (97,748)
105,632 91,307
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FAELEHBEERBENEFHNAT
year are as follows:
Deferred tax assets EEHRIESE
2014 2013
—F-lE —Z—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
Tax losses HIAE B
At beginning of the year F 1) 53,190 —
Exchange differences fEH =58 (28) 846
Recognised in the profit or loss RIE DR (10,554) 52,344
At end of the year F IR 42,608 53,190
Temporary difference on cost recognition Ak AN 52 HY R B = 58
At beginning of the year F 1) 135,865 269,669
Exchange differences ME W =58 (80) 6,636
Recognised in the profit or loss RIE DR 48,301 (140,440)
At end of the year F IR 184,086 135,865
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29.

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 29. BIEHIE(E)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE
2014 2013
—B-NE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEX FAT
Fair value gain AR ERE=E
At beginning of the year F 1) 84,954 112,132
Exchange differences PE X =58 (792) 8,631
Recognised in the profit or loss RIEE R (2,962) (35,809)
At end of the year F R 81,200 84,954
Accelerated tax depreciation hnaR I 3T &
At beginning of the year F 1) 12,794 5,463
Recognised in the profit or loss 18 2= B 3R 3,123 7,331
At end of the year FR 15,917 12,794
Unremitted retained earnings AR PE TR BB & 7
At beginning of the year F 1) — —
Recognised in the profit or loss 18 2= B 3R 23,945 —
At end of the year FR 23,945 —
Temporary difference on cost recognition  FX AN 52 HY R B = 58
At beginning of the year F 1) — 13,742
Recognised in the profit or loss RIE TR = (13,742)
At end of the year F R — —

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$143,229,000 (2013:
HK$128,782,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unremitted retained earnings
of certain subsidiaries, as the Directors currently intend not
to distribute the retained earnings outside the PRC in the
foreseeable future.

5 € 7 T8 B {5143,229,0008 T (ZF — =
£ 1 128,782,000/ JT) I FE ZL & T B A
Al RERRBRAMEZ N 2 B E
HiER  DEESRETEZ AR KK
15 1R B & F 7k HH A B 3E A o
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29.

30.

188

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 29. EIEHIE ()
Deferred tax liabilities (continued) i3 B IE B 5 (48)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried MAETBEEERR CBELEHRIEE E
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits ThLAB BT % F 2= 1R A Al gL i 1B R 2K JE
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December A BENERZBERLAR - RZZT— T
2014, the Group had unrecognised tax losses in Hong Kong FH+ZA=+T—HB AXEEREBAL
of approximately HK$484,457,000 (2013: HK$337,719,000), B S R 2R FE AR B A 2 R R R 75
which can be carried forward against future taxable income B3 18 49 5 484,457,000/8 T (=T — =4 :
and have no expiry date. As at 31 December 2014, the Group 337,719,000 70) - AW EEB B A - K=
had unrecognised tax losses in the PRC of approximately E—NFE+-_A=+—H AEBEEF
HK$367,390,000 (2013: HK$109,727,000) which will expire at B 7 RHE RN B 18 40 /8367,390,000
various dates up to and including 2019. Bt (ZZ — =4 :109,727,000/8 7T) * R
BEE-Z-NFEEZF)IEZ2TERH
FHER o
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. ESRHEMEFNRIE
THE GROUP AE
2014 2013
—F—lE —Z=—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Trade, bills and contract payables (b) 25 EEBREAENFKIE(D) 678,055 839,564
Retention payables ENRE2 16,936 27,969
Accruals and other payables FE 5T & A & H fh f& 1~ 5k 18 2,388,305 1,793,103
Rental deposits received BlEEZE 18,524 16,648
Amounts due to non-controlling FE AT B /B8 & ) 3E 4% ARk AR 3R 2 3R
shareholders of subsidiaries (Note 36) (Pt 5E36) 664,715 1,771,232
Amounts due to associated companies FE B & X\ 2 3k E (MY 7E36)
(Note 36) 1,396,553 1,088,226
5,163,088 5,536,742
THE COMPANY AAE
2014 2013
—EB—lNE —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T FHE T
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H b fE 5k IE 23,787 25,408
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

(a

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

30. E5 R H b FE A RRIE ()

B o N E MM FKIBZ BREE A

THEEIIR:

THE GROUP xEH
2014 2013
—E—lE =—ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEX FAET
Hong Kong dollar 7T 91,987 118,796
RMB ARH 5,041,823 5,388,668
uss$ ET 29,278 29,278
5,163,088 5,536,742

THE COMPANY V. /]|
2014 2013
—E-lmE —"T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Hong Kong dollar 7T 23,787 25,408

The aging analysis of trade, bills and contract payables of

the Group based on invoice date is as follows:

AEEES REBEMAOENKA
EREZABMZRESTAOT

2014 2013

—E-lmE —"ZFT—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#&ET FAT

0 to 90 days 0£90H 305,162 316,853
91 to 180 days 91 180H 26,954 230,061
181 days to 1 year 181BE—F 41,070 31,781
1 year to 2 years —FEMF 170,738 74,861
Over 2 years Y 134,131 186,008
678,055 839,564
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31.

32.
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DEFERRED REVENUE 31, BEUKAN

2014 2013
—E—MmE =—ZT—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FAET
Receipt in advance from property sales ) % 88 & TE W IR 3,820,512 1,983,650
Government grants BT & B 37,460 40,141
3,857,972 2,023,791

PENSION OBLIGATIONS 32. BhE&EEE

The Group participates in a defined contribution pension scheme
and a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme for the eligible
employees in Hong Kong. Before 1 December 2000, a defined
contribution pension scheme was provided to certain eligible
employees employed by the Group. The Group ceased the
contributions since 1 December 2000, upon introduction of the
MPF scheme.

Under the MPF scheme, the Company and each of the Hong
Kong subsidiaries of the Company make monthly contributions
to the MPF at 5% of the employees’ cash income as defined
under the MPF legislation. Contributions by both the Company/
Hong Kong subsidiaries and their employees are subject to a
maximum of HK$1,500 per month per employee and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. The Group’s contributions to the
pension scheme and MPF scheme are expensed as incurred.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plan for its
employees in the PRC as determined by the local government.
The Group is required to contribute to the plan at a rate ranging
from 7% to 12% of the basic salary of the PRC employees
in addition to contributions by employees at a rate ranging
from 7% to 12% of the basic salary as specified by the local
government, and the Group has no further obligations for the
actual payment of the pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions made.
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33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 33. Z AR &K E KM
FLOWS
Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash used in MR EEESXEFIARS
operations 2 H BR
2014 2013
—F-lmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&ET FAT
Profit before tax B 35 A& A 888,173 1,025,262
Interest income B WA (78,858) (62,404)
Interest expense AE X H 65,845 107,213
Depreciation e 11,693 11,794
Fair value changes on investment properties & & ¥ % A 57 (& & (160,085) (169,417)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HEW % - M E K &ZE (W),
equipment & (13,124) 1,381
Share option benefits i Az 43 7 13,229 13,706
Provision for impairment of trade and other & 5 K £ fth & Uk =X 18 Jii (B #5 15
receivables 1,921 3,191
Provision for impairment of inventories FERERE 74,065 —
Share of results of associated companies Pa (il RN (183,936) (55,262)
Operating profit before working capital LEECEYH 2 KL RN
changes 618,923 875,464
Increase in inventories FEE (1,738,550)  (10,030,560)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 & H b fE W R IB (S ),
receivables oA (1,189,210) 2,736,469
Increase in gross amounts due from BWEF 2 &4 Ti2 AR5 N
customers for contract work (167,002) (147,519)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B5 Rk EAqhEMARIBCORD),
payables 0 (364,281) 2,597,828
Increase in deferred revenue iR FE U 7 2 0 1,841,108 586,845
Decrease in other liabilities EmaEmd — (349)
Increase in cash and bank deposits, IR 3R & K R 1777 )4 N
restricted (373,105) (947)
Exchange adjustments & o 2,843 76,047
Cash used in operations CEERFAR® (1,369,274) (3,306,722)
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34. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2014, guarantees given to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to certain purchasers of the
Group's properties amounted to HK$3,750,800,000 (2013:
HK$2,986,434,000). Such guarantees will terminate upon the
earlier of (i) issuance of the property ownership certificate which
will generally be available within one year after the purchasers
take possession of the relevant properties; or (ii) satisfaction
of mortgage loan by the purchasers. Pursuant to the terms
of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by
these purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the
outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued interest
owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group
is entitled to take possession of the related properties. Under
such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the property
sales proceeds previously received from the purchasers and
sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the banks. Therefore, after taking into account of the
creditworthiness of the purchasers, the Directors consider that
no provision is required in the consolidated financial statements

for the guarantees.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had executed corporate
guarantees amounting to approximately HK$9,250,425,000
(2013: HK$9,220,425,000) to various banks in respect of
banking facilities extended to subsidiaries. As at 31 December
2014, the utilised facilities, under which corporate guarantees
from the Company were given, amounted to approximately
HK$7,883,070,000 (2013: HK$6,826,400,000). The Company
considers that the default risk is minimal because the subsidiaries
are financially capable and management does not expect any

losses from non-performance of the subsidiaries.

192 Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2014

34.

M5 ER
R_FE—NFE+—_A=+—8 BETAE
SEMEBERZEBRMEMS TRITZ
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35. COMMITMENTS 35. RiE

(@ The Group had capital commitments as follows: @ ZAEEBEREENT:
2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Contracted but not provided for BRI A EREE
Expenditure in respect of acquisition of land 7 g & it FA % U & 2
use rights =3 1,267,588 1,355,113
Expenditure in respect of properties under 7 8% R ) ¥ X%
development 2,545,215 2,460,232
Capital contribution into a real estate AE T —HEEE
development company ER AT — 385,805
3,812,803 4,201,150
As at 31 December 2014, the Company did not have any RZEBE—NE+TA=+—8 £&AQ
outstanding capital commitments (2013: Nil). A EEM AR ENEREAE(ZE —
=F |-

(b)  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments (b) AEERBEEBEIDE 2D HE
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office HEHERARENZZEBER
premises as follows: RE|MAT

2014 2013
—E—lNE —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Not later than one year —F R 28,108 25,203
Later than one year but not later than five —&FE#{EBERHER
years 4,115 27,739
Later than five years hFEE 1,788 —
34,011 52,942
As at 31 December 2014, the Company did not have any RZE—NFE+A=+—08 £&A
operating lease commitments (2013: Nil). AW EAAEERERE(CZZT—=
F:|)e
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35. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 35. K 1E(4E)

(00 The Group leases out investment properties under © AEERE—RUOPTRBH—ZE==F
operating leases which generally run for initial periods of LEBHEHEBHEEYSE - BN
one to three years. None of the leases includes contingent EEEBENAES -
rentals.

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease receipts REERBIAIMHEEERER K
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: REW 2 EHSHEFELAT :
2014 2013
—E—lE —ZT—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&ET FHET
Not later than one year —FR 66,610 57,849
Later than one year but not later than five —F#E{BAEFERN
years 75,665 98,881
Later than five years hF& — 4,828
142,275 161,558
As at 31 December 2014, the Company did not have any RZEBE—NE+A=+—8 £&A
future lease receipts (2013: Nil). AT ECMAARESWA(ZE—=
Fim)o
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36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies under
China Minmetals Corporation (“China Minmetals”), which is
controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the transactions
with the parent company and its subsidiaries which have been
disclosed in other notes to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group also conducts businesses with entities directly or
indirectly owned or controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (“stated-controlled entities”)
in the ordinary course of business. The Directors consider those
entities other than the China Minmetals group are independent
third parties as far as the Group’s business transactions with
them are concerned. In establishing its pricing strategies and
approval process for transactions with other state-controlled
entities, the Group does not differentiate whether the counter-
party is a state-controlled entity or not. The Group is of the
opinion that it has provided,
adequate and appropriate disclosure of related party transactions
in the consolidated financial statements.

in the best of its knowledge,

The Group has entered into various transactions, including sales,
purchases, borrowings and other operating expenses with other
state-controlled entities during the year in which the Directors
are of the opinion that it is impracticable to ascertain the identity
of the counterparties and accordingly whether the counterparties
are state-controlled entities.

36.

FAEE B X5
ANEBAGHATREBREERG ((FEH
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 36. FABEA X5 (&)
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the PREFTS ok Hth it 5 IR B B 40 - R
Group had the following material transactions and balances BTN AEERTER — R EBRET
with related parties, which were carried out in the ordinary and LEARGREBNT :

normal course of business of the Group:

(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HEABFIZRS
2014 2013
—T-mE —"ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT BT

Specialised construction costs to a fellow 4% F—EREEZKH B AR 2

subsidiary (note (i) FEEE R A (M REG) — 105,657
Construction costs to fellow subsidiaries for 4 ¥ & R /@A 7] A B8 5 i 2=

real estate development projects (note (ii)) ZEXRIER 2 & £k A

(Bt 5EGi)) 560,761 552,696

Construction costs to a non-controlling LT BB ARZ—%

shareholder of a subsidiary for a real estate  FEVERR AR A E i E R

development project (note (ii) T8 B 2 22 28 5 A (B 5 (i) 286,130 303,131
Rental income from fellow subsidiaries RE—HRZRHERA

(note (iii)) ik Al ONCi=A(D)) 5,481 6,155
Rental expense to a fellow subsidiary mH—EARERNBAR T2

(note (iii)) & 7 2 (e =X i) 18,598 13,745
Loan interest expense to a non-controlling % T — KM E AR Z2—%

shareholder of a subsidiary (note (iv)) FEERRR ZERF L

S H (B = (iv)) 880 576

Loan interest income from RE—HBARZ—%

a non-controlling shareholder of FERBRE 2 EFKFE

a subsidiary (note (v)) W A B 3£ (v)) 1,025 —
Interest income from a fellow subsidiary RE—ERZEMB AR Z

(note (vii)) A2 WA (B 5 (vii)) 1,253 —
Loan interest expense to a fellow subsidiary % TR X E AT 2 E X

(note (viii)) A B 78 32 (B 7 (viii)) — 46,809
Loan interest income from an associated RE—EEE AR ZER

company (note (ix)) A2 M A (B 3 (ix)) — 1,544
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 36. FAEtAARS(E)

(b)

Balances with related parties (b) EdREEERS Z 456
2014 2013
—E-lmE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Specialised construction costs payable to a FEfT — IR XM E AR 2
fellow subsidiary (note (i)) B2 SR A AN (9 RE ) 115,512 135,357
Contract payable to fellow subsidiaries for  FE{I R R M B A 7] 2 B it &
real estate development projects (note (i) ZEIBHALRIE
(B & (i) 9,973 90,494
Contract payable to a non-controlling ER—RERE ARz —%
shareholder of a subsidiary (note (ii)) FEER KR 26 D FIA
(B 3 Gi)) 244,795 53,781
Rental payable to a fellow subsidiary ERN—ERAME AR Z
(note (iii) GEEACEA(D) 3,111 6,244
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder of — R B AR Z—%
a subsidiary (note (iv)) FEERBRR 2ER
(Bt 5EGiv) 28,151 8,649
Loan to a non-controlling shareholder of a BERXF—HWB AR Z2—%
subsidiary (note (v)) I 158 A% AR BR (Bt & (v) 26,100 —
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAT BT B A R FEHEAR AR 3R 2
shareholders of subsidiaries (note (vi)) 38 (B =E (vi)) 664,715 1,771,232
Amounts due to associated companies JE PB4 N A 2 FROE
(note (vi)) (B 7 (vi)) 1,396,553 1,088,226
Fixed deposits placed in a fellow subsidiary FER —HMERNBE AR Z
(note (vii)) E B3 17 3R OB B (vii)) 2,276,917 2,286,950
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) Balances with related parties (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

Specialised construction costs to a fellow subsidiary of the
Company were based on terms mutually agreed by both parties.

Construction costs to fellow subsidiaries of the Company and
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary for real estate
development projects were based on terms mutually agreed by
both parties.

Rental and management fee income/expense received or receivable
from/paid or payable to fellow subsidiaries of the Company were
based on the terms in the agreements entered into between the
parties involved.

The short-term loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary is unsecured, bearing interest at 110% of the benchmark
interest rate for a one to three year loan quoted by the People’s
Bank of China per annum and repayable on demand.

The loan to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is
unsecured, bearing interest of 6% per annum and repayable on
demand.

The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
of the Company and amounts due to associated companies are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

The fixed deposits placed in a fellow subsidiary mature in
approximately 5 days from the end of the reporting period and
the effective interest rate was 1.62%.

The short-term loans from a fellow subsidiary are unsecured,
bearing interest at 110% of the benchmark interest rate for a one
year loan quoted by the People’s Bank of China per annum and
repayable in one year. The loans were fully settled in 2013.

The loan to an associated company is unsecured, bearing interest
at the benchmark interest rate for a one year loan quoted by the
People’s Bank of China per annum and repayable in one year. The
loan was fully settled in 2013.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 36. BBt H X5 (E)

(c) Key management compensation c) EEEBAEZHM
2014 2013
—E—lE =—ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Salaries and short-term employee benefits ¥ % & %5 i (& 8 48 7 11,632 11,689
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R{K® AR — & 58 H 5K 51 2l 294 281
Share option benefits i IR AR A 2,798 2,898
14,724 14,868
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Glossary of Terms

Al 5K

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

ERFHRA BXEZAMEIN  THRAEEEUATRE:

“23rd Metallurgical” The 23rd Metallurgical Construction Group Co., Ltd. of Minmetals
[AE—t+=)a] IR _T=ZAEREEARRAA

“2003 Share Option Scheme”
T FREREE]

the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 29 May 2003
ARARZZBE=FA AT NBHEN 2 ERE S

“2013 Share Option Scheme” the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 7 June 2013

[CTE—=FBEREE] RRABMRZZE—=FNALRRH 2 BRETE

“ASP” average selling price

[(FHEE] FIIEE

“AGM” annual general meeting of the Company for 2015
[IRRBFERE] AR ZZE-—hEERRBFERE

“Board” the board of directors of the Company

[Exg] ZAYNETE- =5

“Boluo Bihau” Boluo County Bihua Property Development Company Limited

EEul

“Bye-laws”
[E 124080

“CG Code”
[ftEEARTA

“China Minmetals”

[ B 7

"CMCL”
[ 5% B {7 )

“Company” or

“Minmetals Land”

[RRF KA ER

“Condo Hong Kong”

[T A& %5 |

BEZEEFHMEREBERAT

the Bye-laws of the Company
RRRAZERMA

the Corporate Governance Code
P EEESTR

China Minmetals Corporation

TEABEEEAQT

China Minmetals Corporation Limited

TEABRMDARAT

Minmetals Land Limited

hEERARNT

Minmetals Condo (Hong Kong) Engineering Company Limited
TR (EE) TREERAR
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“Condo Shanghai”
[ A0 _E &)

“Director(s)"”

[E %]

“Fifth Plaza Co”
[ERESAF ]

"GFA”
[ 4812 m m 75 |

“Group”
[Z & E

“HK$”
[T

“Hong Kong” or "HKSAR”
(&8

“Huizhou Gracehome”

EYANA =

“Jiahe Properties”
(R E]

“Jiahe Risheng”
E==Ea

“June Glory”
[June Glory]

“Listing Rules”
[ £ AR Al

“Minmetals Capital”

(A& K]

“Minmetals Cheerglory”
[ & 10 5K |

Minmetals Condo (Shanghai) Construction Co.,

Tk L8 EZRER QA

director(s) of the Company

RRBZESE

Beijing Fifth Plaza Real Estate Co., Ltd.
IRELRSEFARAA

gross floor area

HEE@E

the Company and its subsidiaries
ANNF) R H K E AR

Hong Kong dollars
T

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

REE B ITRE

Huizhou Minmetals Grace Home Property Management Co., Ltd.

BMNABEBRENEEEER AR

Hunan lJiasheng Properties Service Co., Ltd.
MEERYMERBER DA

Minmetals Land (Hunan) Jiahe Risheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

Ltd.

IRERAMBZNMERFHEREFGRAA

June Glory International Limited
June Glory International Limited

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited
EEBMAERSIMABRARES LEMHEA

Minmetals Capital (Hong Kong) Limited
HEEREBERAT

Minmetals Cheerglory Limited
ERBERERAT

ARERERAT —TmasR |
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Glossary of Terms
a5

“Minmetals Finance”

[T 81 7%

“Minmetals Futures”
(A E

“Minmetals HK”
E e

“Minmetals Land Beijing”

EX 3= Sl

“Minmetals Real Estate”

(AR E %]

“Minmetals Zhidi”
[ B %5 b

ML
[MLIJ

“Model Code”
12 2257 Al ]

“NAV”
[ & &= FE]

“Newglory”
[ &8

“OFL”
[OFLJ

“PRC" or “China”
[P B

“RMB”
(AR

“SFO"
[7& 75 & B & 1% 01

Minmetals Finance Company Limited

ITEEEMBEEREET AR

Minmetals Futures Co., Limited

IEHERRAR

China Minmetals H.K. (Holdings) Limited
FRAERBIZERERAA

Minmetals Land Investment Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

IBERREEEULR)BRAF]

Minmetals Real Estate Co., Ltd.
ABEEEERAA

Minmetals Zhidi Corporate Management Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
hESHMCEEEZRORIDBRAA

Minmetals Land Investments Limited
Minmetals Land Investments Limited

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
FHETAEFETESFRXINRESTRI

net asset value

BREEFE

Newglory International Limited

HARBEREEARAEE AR

ONFEM Finance Limited
ONFEM Finance Limited

the People’s Republic of China
R AR A

Renminbi

AR

Securities and Futures Ordinance

#& 77 M HR B A5 1)
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“Shareholder(s)"”
[ A% 3 |

“Share(s)”
[ % 17 ]

“Shenzhen Pan-China”
[ZE QA ]

usq.m.u

7K

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 32 PfT

“Texion"
[>T

"Uss”
E3

“Yingkou Industrial Park”

[Z2OEXE]

“Zhongrun Chengzhen”

7 92k 81

nopn
(%]

the shareholder(s) of the Company
VIN/NET v 3}

the ordinary share(s) of par value HK$0.1 each of the Company

RAAREFREEIVE T ZEB K

Shenzhen Pan-China Engineering Co., Ltd.

AIZETREEER QA

square metres

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EEBARIGABRAT

Texion Development Limited

EITERER AR

United States dollars
ETT

Minmetals (Yingkou) Industrial Park Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

TE(EMEXEZERERAA

Hunan Zhongrun Chengzhen Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MR EREEREAR AR

per cent

Bk

hEE

Bl
X

BR

n

A —T-mEFH |
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About China Minmetals Corporation

FARPEARERRERE 2T

Projects under development of China Minmetals

PEARERPIEE

Province/City Attributable land area Total gross floor area Usage
#/h it hmiE TREEEEEE 2 RE
(sq.m.) (FF75K) (sq.m.) (FF75K)
Beijing 345,000 506,000 Residential
dmm E=E
Yingkou City, 30,000,000 N/A Industrial and commercial
Liaoning Province TEA IEREE
EEXEOS 251,000 347,000  Residential
=
741,000 1,209,000 Residential
T=x
Tianjin 2,056,000 3,032,000 Residential
XEH =
1,667,000 3,423,000 Residential
£
Jiangyang City, Jiangsu Province 73,000 99,000 Residential
AEREIRS E=x
281,000 402,000 Complex
mERAE
147,000 567,000 Residential
£
Taian City, Shandong Province 119,000 355,000 Residential
WERER=ZS E=x

Founded in 1950, China Minmetals is one of the largest State-owned conglomerates
that operates globally with core business in exploration, mining, smelting, processing
and trading for metals and minerals, finance, real estate, and mining and metallurgic
technology. China Minmetals achieved operating revenue of approximately RMB343.7
billion for 2014 and was ranked 133 among the US Fortune world top 500 enterprises
in 2014.

China Minmetals has, in recent years, actively participated in commercial estate
development, construction and installation business after it has a footing on the
residential development and industrial estate business. Accordingly, it has equipped
with considerable resources in this respect. Excluding real estate development projects
of Minmetals Land, China Minmetals has a total gross floor area of approximately 15
million square metres for residential and industrial estate development in the Pan Bohai
Rim region and the eastern and central part of China. Furthermore, it has an industrial
site of 30 square kilometres in Yingkou City of Liaoning Province.

China Minmetals through its Hong Kong subsidiary, Minmetals HK, holds approximately
62% equity interest in Minmetals Land. Upon the approval of inclusion of property
development and operation to the core business of China Minmetals by the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council, China
Minmetals announced its intention to transform Minmetals Land into its sole listed
real estate flagship. Through gradual asset injection and consolidation of its real estate
resources, China Minmetals aims at the listing of its real estate business and turning
Minmetals Land eventually into a leading real estate development corporation which
creates better returns to the Shareholders, employees and the society.
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AIRERARAE"

MY MINMETALS LAND LIMITED

BENERPBRMER T SHEREEAE T/ E
18th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

B 5 Tel 1 2613 6363

fEE Fax: 25819823

EE Email : info@minmetalsland.com

A1 Website : www.minmetalsland.com

*For identification purpose only {1}t
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